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foha 3TehR HIvTeTEt FTHCT ST foha TRATTaReR agel shetl o), 3T AT Hu=T fohal WRaTaReRTehg, e
3 HIVTCR ST STel 7 I T, 597 Fe 790 fShad fohar STepR 3787 shell 38T ATl BI0TRT STIST T&-hH,
eiferd ShTeTadt R Yeted STeiedr Rere e 31 Sfearen S = Tuaey SASag 9eR SaRirel 37 et :

T 3T b, HIVAR] TEHRICT 7 Teiel 376 A & [ S ol AR THoT 7ege ek
TGET FIUART TR U7 AR AT

T el Y, FTEd HuT fSher RamTeRe: @ 3181 SholodT fohdl 3787 SHRISETeAT ST9M SIS, ATTeT qeiet
ST SITOT AT Arfereh e SAEe af GIgY shilel.

R6.3  STENTCAT aTeAT STEIMAT SHASSAUER GiE=0T 0l o =Td AMHIST ShTHehlsT 0T = Hiedt
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R - W e @
Re. HATHt—
Q9. AT U 3iAd 3THee fafem, faaRuT RamTgReH AT fosie faaRor ST [RaaT HuAre! R
FFITAT ST WIEIAT AT @A
¢. d TS ARtEvie gueT—
¢, IR0 REMTERS, 20 HIAeeihiar st RS HIOATe TSR TEeREHE aie] TiEt
FHIA. AT A, SENH A7 aHaHi= ST e T [Ketedn JE-shife, Teaq-Hhife fhal STeq-Hifer aist
TR AT 3T ¥he.
¢} TR AR, Qielel STt G3Hd, a1 ST Siqeld STheiedT AiiEeish gaid arer Fiet < —
(T) T ST SR Ui dear auaeT (TSt SH- el aiel AT SR THeied! Jad fshal hTeTaeen

FR Thal SHT 3T ot @iar;

(at) Tk TTUETT SR R | AHUeT (TSt HeaH-shifer dist TET) ST THeiea qad fohaT shTetraeteT
PR Tehell Sra3iad diist @Rl 3o

() ww a9 fohar TIeT T SO YR fohall I = (RUISTe STed-hlef dist TRET) R fhar
ST AT BRAL.

R, AT W TAT—
R.2 IO RAMTERE W= RagareAT aTdel fasret AETol qof SHvarael aist W U e T aar
T STITOT & FISHT ST HSRIGaT |aY et -
T 3T Y, 3T ¢ UHST 028 UG T& SIVIRT SIS WG FISTT A7 fafamidicr 9T T J8R, ? TRt 026 o
32 HIE RoR0 THAAT FEA0T SR dist &% Mi¥ad A=At Aiashaiad |eY Hard I :
T STURET 3T i, TR ST WA AHHES, a1 [ aHiaaR, SisT TREMEET SH-hie, Teqg-ahiieh
3TIMVT ST -ShTeT foRd e THTeRT 38,
2R} TITRYT AR AT BREIAT AT Geilel Srea FHee e i—
(T) =T RESAT=AT SATceT fosiaral STHatd STURYd YR 31T Fated RT=T S&eish 3T ;
() w-Ffeis, Fiead Fheiedr st TR Siaihe gis: HUT=4T disT JRaSaTeAT URHTvTEr 3731 ;
() MR AR 3107 Fateer TRTHC fastel TrTol it ShRoaTarat foeiean Suctsucn 3iar
T Y P, IR AT AWTON T GReSAra SR WIeh-er e HeeHed ey Svas I
(TAY) e e 0T A
(Sh) =T Heitad faam—ER, fosiet o 31T TR REcardst ereard T ;
(3) SoTell o, ol SHIFRTHAT STITVT ST HRTON SHEATIATIIS! JRAIed heledl SUTEEisTH ;
(TF) T (T) T (3)=A YR, ST TGRS Fel Firer TReT i Sared T-HEd e =, 31 e,
30T ST RSS! Hee et = Hid Jrem THTeRT ST ;
(ST) 37RT oSt WSS ferster S, aimmoT 3nifor SiRisTd @
T 3T W, IH-HITe ST GEIEAT AT Ja-3THH fohal 378 € Tared AETvl STeiedn ST Hared
HAITO AT FHIATTHIIE!, TRET AT [asTel TieAToT (THIAE) ST gared Auit (Seene), aaes T8
FHIOATT AT ©
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T SUTET 3T i, SMIH T R028-2\0 T 3T TN 08]-R0 THTAT I €IS Ta- 3 HH fohar
31RTT & FiE0T ShTetrariicier Tedish Aie—amas! TR havard Adiet ©
HifgeeR TR fHd-a7=t s 3.
WEEHIOT. — T TAEHT FASHIIG!, “Hated ANTUier sHieTad)” TSt i Jriean heaetdict Jer
T Teha STfaeh ATaiea ShieTae e Ueh e Sared faaRoT WaTaReRTE fastel wared arTof Jeifas 3.
R.3  TI-3F fRaT 3ETS & AR HTeTaeidict STeheaR! o Sl hicsTagereal arstal edehior SERd Ja-

3T HIEUATAT Yl STANT e, TIR FHITAT Felted :

T 3T i, T8-3TIAM Tohall T3TST TAR AT THUT ST a1E, fasia SR &=iel forst=at arRide are,
AT ST = GoaTd, TF- RIS S AT e, BT At HoAIe! Haeted JerhRiET gRomd, ford
ATt FgTdier §a IR geh (HUCTUth)Hed M7 37 Fetd geahiaed GURoN, a1 geahidl [qaR FHIuard e

R.Y IR AR fasteT U ARl We-fHrHdrear fohar Jaeier Sell Sidished el @E
ST TS FROATE AT FHITTE ST

R4 IRYUTFT YA fIEA SROT=AT SR Heitd faHaHiaR qaR AT Seted ISt e
RAFTIR T TREVT SHUAIRS dsT WIEEAT ATl Td a8t :

T 3T I, FaR0T WAHTERE, STl diST @RETE AT TR FHIAMT ST FISTT TRE0T 20T SRRt GEd
TEUITAS! I GRYOT HUET FoeTl Bt

R.& 3TN, Tg-TU ST X AMTeharicr STRLTET Ueh T TV HIA0T SHIT ST SIS TE el ASTell
T S8,

R TR WEAFTRE, W SISt TG FiSHT @ 23,2 TR T16Y SRUATeAT Job! e Aifed! s
T fohal ot 3UeTed A9eAM e, 379N Hied! Meea R, fafag ¢ @refl wmiRe qemaH e
TN S FTTeIehT |G e Tkt

R.C TR, fafHam 2R.6 TR A5 WEEAT AT WA ST db! SAfaRe gt Taeardes fohar
T FROATT STCATER, FHANRIAT HAFE STETEATEN Uk 91T TV, 07 Sletaei=an Setean JeaihRdT, faawor
TETTRTEAT SiIST TG AT AT Haae! e Yeher.

R} o AR, A1 faf-=i=ar Wit U TaR 2 UM 026 o 32 TG 030 FaqeAT =0T SHicadiare
dist R FAfvea A ST Afahas, § U R0%% UG g& U= &1 (R0) auiear Hicaedat gah
TETER AITON-TRaaT Tt ST geres aiist RSN FSTT et |IRT Hiied, AT dist WA STaTes T 1T S/
e/ 31T T [ AT TRET SA0T ST HTeTerel SO AS BRaT @Y ST VAT AT STe Ut 5
FHIUITA eIt

0.  H-FHiferT/HEAR-FHAT T TRET FRTH/ATIE ATIaT—

0.3 fIERYT WaAMTERE FHdT ST fohaT TRaTeRe: fohall 37 RagareaT Tdishe ais Tia el &
TraTeR (FEUSH) ST TEIHE, FHolell Teieh SIH-ahiiel /TeqH-ahiietd R fehal sqaen anfor faemm s
Tohal HaT AT SIVIATE! S5eT, HeRd STETTAT Ja-HI=ad AT 86t -

T 3T I, TAALNCT Sl BREAT (STRUTS) T Yial FHIUARIIR! ANt SoTeal SHaihg = &=
Tohan STk THdeaT SR TasteaT hotea TS, AT faemiaR SR qa-HI=IdT TR AT,
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R0 FNT W IR/ T WIS ATTahHed AT HIATAE RIS SISt T FeT-aT THTeT 3.

0.3 TN faEm Ro.¥ A SegT FHezdlet deel, ATTeshTehdl, SN 3G Ketedl THIER STt
AIE! Fefifed aRyul sRefedl SRR AR JHY 9IeR .

R0y T fafqawia fafise wvard sieied Te STavgehdidl Jadl ORI ¥d MEvdes Hifed!, queiet o
YRRt AR AMTerehT UTESTT SUITHEIET aaR TGeaT ATTeehlehed ol shodalo.

0.4 TN fa=H R0.% THI HesdudTd AR i [Sardiean 3TTd AlTeehiehdl, ATraehel Hefed STdeied
ST HiSaT YHTOMER @9 STHUM=AT SHHI HH 31 SUST o 319 RIS WISl S adaHusiHed Ush STER A Uas
FA, S dieT TSR WA TR Tohall el Sobeh STTS3el 3T AT TR T o diel S @RI
RO, 37T AR ST JTAT Feiiel 3T ST SMEl T FHlerd STAhSH T J gehell HIIuaTe Aot ©

T 3T hY, ARG ST IUFTT AgeT ST TSI o 319 S, HIVTCATR! el /Tl FyuT ATt T
DI T FTeehTehd] STCTeY T S5
T SMURET 3T i, AMTeshTehdl, AT 3EH Keledl TgdaR, el T aiiet TohdeIaleR, ST
HIET hetedl FTrerehT aTaise Ge Fames Jiied!, qusier o SEesge Seird i
T TR B, AT AFEH=aT a1 WAt Soeid SholodT HITEaieh Rl JUaTd STeTel! oe-oTeh &1 WesTqor Sqetee
TUIARGET 31T Aifed! SaReA HUaTea e Jok T T8 dl AMeshIheared] TeXeaRie] Hohaeeala Sesehuvl
TRISTT 0T ASA ¢
ge I A.
R0.& TN, AN WAl FRR Thall AT AHRAT HRI ANUARR! 3TeiedT A1taeht foarTd adqmr fadwor
TR AT TSetet! et TS ATSTHT STI0T Wiefiel geshian foar Fifet :—
(W) AT feeioan aisT BRa! Are ST St TRET FHuaTdt SavdehdT ;
() atufaT=ar Hem &3 T g A HAHT Hefear TRIRSTS GeioHTor hal SR TREe aiet
Uiehad et ;
(1) ar fafamrear 9mT € we st X fvedieRonae! fEiHies wRvar seiedr 312l & It oot ;

() 9IS IERUST T=Ad AT aeT g8 30T/ ekl SATfaarea shetd §3 3idvd fhal 37 SHermiaid
YT FeireaT ATEHI HeToretl ast 8X AT qotd aiisT STat SaeieendT :

T 3T I, ATFTIH ForH &3 ATARTT 37T FHerHidid TS Sielt UTsHaT TEdad Hear Sedrd
TIEROT RAFTERE Siel SXATASTAT qEH=IT 53, IThdT -

T STV 3T hY, AT 3T Al AlhATS! ANIRER G [afed F& et ;

(3) TR Tehal T TRET Sheted fasrd fShr ST QaaT ShRUATHTS! IISATdTd TRl =0T eacrt
Iucteudr (fram aTdferd Sctee) ;

() - 70T Jaeiet Sl S e fostear MiHeaa sremT Svart =T

o I TSI IR Tohal FaEEd SRS [aaR Ul SR, ST i—
(T) AT BRET IR TRl SHEIT A o HRagel hiee SAOT I Sel W=l JuaTe ST e hiiet ;
(aft) FTerehTeRe T T TEOTor HigUaTdl aTeTa Gelt 33, T Teeidl RO odl g e, ATTaehT AR,
R AfaRem st evdt—

2.2 TIeROT RaEmTeRe, A1 ool STEe, ST =0T SeTae e Rar J=r fetedr dist @it sAfane,

HIT IR-h-Lo—Y
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R SR fosear AnTiges SutTd aTe e foheT AT feeiot [RaSHTeAT SdIehe ot ST faster wHt
FHE .

R SN JaT BT feied Sdibe 31 SdieheT sholedl Uehl auTdiel Wel Hig—areat UleedT fohar gg=ar
TSN, AT TWREER I Wt fohaT URATT, STERTH /=T feetodT dist Tt @artet o () ZFerig SR awred
TG STRIAT 3T, TR AT qaHT=IdT SATel oA -

AR TATIA T5eTes ST ST T T TR HATRT o] SR AR, et aett s 2o TR oA
AT ST

Y OO RAFMEREH S STeaehiion fasted [acardTe! Faid i YHee T8, SaTeATher hilaare
AT TEEAT SHes SR REAHTIRBTEAT Tl [GoiedT THoT dist TSN T HHl g0 3¥e ), df ST
TEHTATTET STETehIer o] GRS 379N RASTERTSRIER FIR fohall el % Ihet,

UL SR TIEROT FvieAT TR HiehT R FROTRE Serte aRRe T Set et fohar e 5 ug e
AR T FROAY THTAUASAN 97 feet STadier X, ST qaar=idiorars foaRor tRamTeRes STeqahtie arst
RIS T fhal R H& Iehel.

RE  STTANTIAT YOI TRST AT 3TN STCUhITe alst WIEMTE! holodT IR Toha SHaeei=a [
TR T 31, faeRoT wRaTaReR, = faframines fafafese sRvar sTeiear St g Siett 31 fohar et A

2 TR RAFTEREH FRR fhal e HRdMT a)ie [afHem 2.3 d 2.4 7ed fafafes e afetear

ar-gt : faeig T
R fovdg wesigas qurEeit—
R} TATHE FHo fohal AR fhar THUAUASHT it et IR0 Tseaq ST HISSIgesh
TGl Yot
R} T T e AR oheT THUEUCTST Fel UshT Hegelt TRST ST aieT 3% fAfved e,
ST, ETeATeT FZehieal HadTd HaeiodT foiia shicssiie TSdiesv Filer :—
(T) HeHqe ;
(@) Tegel @ ;
(&) vigaet =
T 3T I, AT Al SaeTelt Flegstl TR SIS 3@ 3Tt R, 3TN, FHILTHAT areTal TUH, TS
Hegell TRSTUeh! ShIEl AT A= ORI
R3 HEGATAT YT Heled i hiessiie Tedleavll Wiefiel ATaESiean Teid sevdrd Jgct :—
(0) i fasman 3fer arce siersTer said 38 fhar J@l, T Sfeifed shelodr fashigdier
HITITE! TG AEIS! FTROT RAHTIRETR ST W THIT J0aTd 3Tt 3T {ohall 1l
(S) RT fohaT faeRoT A0, ST e O, SiEId sholodT T JeHRiT T shueT fohal TRamTeReH
TTIeT SATIC AT THRFARIMAR 395 SRRV HIEASHAT HSUaTd AT ;
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(F) ST AV ST THOT THEI T ot e TRamTERe ael dholedl THHeT TFRaRITIR
FYATCT AT HST0ATT o5 ;

(3N) AR/ TEHIFHS AU ST THATRIT Ferel T ;

(3) OO RAFTIRETEAT STedld, ThT TEeh STIT0T ST SToRTIsh! STsFT HieX STcic! TTesh ST Hiexer
e disT AT A TFRART ;

(Th)  ToROT RAFTERER IS faeiedT THUT Sehiteh! STSTToTd dIT aTRTeT SMER TS aeiedT STehiel <ahar! ;

(ST) =nferches TRITTd SheledT TMOT SMERTH SeiedT Tcen STHE Hegel agel el 31 fhaT el

RY TRl G HHHT Sdcied [ et TSl Wieliel HTIdeiear HeHid Hivard AgeT (—

(W) AT Su-T fham TaMTaRe™ 9 T ST 37 HO=HT < AT USH Ao’ 0T Adrd fehan
TR T TRUATHIR! T helodl HEgel shotedT Hegel! Gere |iTET S ;

() SreTeRTer st 3TITOT WA HiSTeT IS AT YR FHIUATAT JSTIhde, Hedell T qr=idT feetedr
Hegell TaTeT Haisd gid 3T fehdl ATl ard T2=0T SHRUARTS! Ggel AT ToTr ;

(&) fafTem 2¢, 2], Ro 3T 2 qeF faffee SRvard eI AR, dist TR T Teay - vt
SETgE disT TS TRESTh U ;

(3 Tam fasl WS i ged foar g S8 @, fost stavashan, ke sitex fewte, fafay
TR dieT TErET R o oot fastean foskien faga aeRusde R, 3T9eard, Areamee SRl 3TER
AR o Fedet MHesvaTel TeReT :

T 3T Y, TEGel W BT U HEHotTeAT ThHUET Y THRRIigT SR Setl X, FrHdt o foha wRameRes
AT ST GHRSHIERTAT AMaehd dhEdEEdd qUeeaRr qHeT T hifel, T HewaTeal INSshraret
TR TS Shotell, STERTH AT fKetell o Fedel Sotell Hegell @ 37T Fegel Atet qorT §1eg e :

T UG 3T I, M A fhaT TRAMTaRe HeEtdd SHaHaTae! fewdR e e [qaRurs deY
F; A Hegerrd fafay Td, fasi=an fasnmet smaesan Tesh sRaRiT TefaeiedT SaeRTeal THHTe Teael
YT hetell TR, RIS 9 FFIamT Fedelt @d o Hiedelt Garel Foged Teqelt T 37T wigael & et
W@:IT%!Q?H@FT:

RAFATERE TEEdd T THE 3T (TR T 5.
RN AT AT WU WSl GaTeAT Yo SUATT ST foie siessiidt Tedreav Huar I8 (—

(T) VeI Yoo AUAHTeAT Gl WehodTedl Hifdeh WA |07 SRuardret Hibet ot fohar
EAHTERS AT T Haeadie ;

() wAieael TaTe FeTear Hifde AR Sedr el Hot 70T 3791 FHeiar Herd a0 ;

(F1) SR wegeT iegae T fhaT Sieaeiienon T Sieael GEreAT o JHRRTET SR aet ¥, M
AT FRaT TRETERE A1 JHTEe WOy G0, 2T FHRISHIAEEAT @ faharier e H ;

(3 T AT fSetelt ST SEIet SR SHIUTdTR! ST & FEERI % HR0A STl Al R, 3T
FHEISHTEAT ATfeheRisR oy T Qe H0aTd Age.

3. Wigaelt @Y AT Wigdw TEAT—
3.2 YieHel! Aav[sh TehedTeAT WigHe Wl Wielel STaidr FHIE 3THe (—

(T) STHTHATEAT AT ST T Higded IHRUTETGAT EaEE, TeIelld shololl Tohall S&iiad shotell
T, S ST, FHlBsTgdh ST AT [Gefell 378 ;

HIT IR-h—-Lo—X¥H
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(@) =1 faframica faffee FRuard STeiedT AT HATRT ST 3THA YEA Hiaeiighd Hvard Seiel goardrd
g2 9 ;

() afEarer=n goh W FUAR! WRAMFTEREH holell T, HleUash SHAAT STeT IEA ST
AT e ER ;

(@) faf=e ¥ @relt Mivad Fuam el AdReR Treaetinio ;

(3) afoTTSaeh ShTHERTSTEAT SATRITET U SoTedl SHeireaT THHPN i T Fer el e SXrdret
TATTSS BIUTRT HIVTATET T TEhall 2T, SHlczsiesh ST 1€ TE ST A=l e 4R
TS TFATTS EIOTRT SHIVTATET T TShall diel Sheled Wiedetl TeTeT Hekd Shelleal ST THRITSTT SRvard I8t :

T SR 3T Y, TR qNT STedT Hedl, ST TR STUTCed ARld fohdl aTaRTd Adtet, ciearaiic]
TY Aieael Tad AU I8 ©
SIS QA HIET HLer -
TETE! 3T AT STevash RIS QET ST U SHetel FHIus 0ard ga.

IR SAEANTHET HIBSIIe® BHAMT T ST STerell Tieae! @d &1 ais aIreAm FMivacemondare!
MY e -

T 3T T, YA DA HIAMT, TigTel TaraT ASTAToT, Jiedetret SHRUT e Fet 3yRvar w1
T UG, ATETRTHTAT FIATEC ST, AT T TR, faeiares Seiell ST @ 31T ATetel STaT des, 37T
TR AT AT FfYadientoaet Stad aTedier 319 37 Sel for=md Suad Jeiiel.

3.3 I AT MR oTETEt AT SUAT ST Sigadl T R Suard I ST iseedr @it
HIVIATET ATE SATHIS [E FHAT 0T SR 3T &, AR, FHlBSgeh ST STE e ST faf=m 3¢
e faffete FRUATd STeler It ST TR, foamTd Joard a5 :

T 3T I, SR G [Setedn Sigael Taret Toel diedel! e sl Sel ST a¥ arst FHEdr sh-ret drst
AT TSRS TedeT Seiet Yigaelt T, Sicdsiigdeh SH-eT 3TH e, 3T fafem 3¢ 7ed 7= i
T/ HFTAT Aieael Tarme! fEHee FHuad STeredl Il ST TG S ue, [aeRTd suard J=d.

3.y AT U fohar RaMTER® fhaT THUAUCTE fohal Tehed, S8 3Tt a9, AT Heb ShIHTeA AT arat!
qieaetl TaTeAT AT M TEER HITRN & ACATAT KAHIETAT QIR TReder SeRd Tedel
qiedell T ARG FHlBsHgeh DA 3Te TEA (TR Sodre At

RN IR, T HreTEEder Yeieh SR, T SIS W [etedT Ut Hiedett WereAr 0% I
AT T TRRY, STENTH 3TETY HIdT ATATEAT FETST Sheled (ohall (aisT = sheledl Jigael GaiehRdl, Ho
FE ITh.

R3.& IV TIHIS! HITER Wehed el AT AT AT STSacAhUTe YeFehH T T8Teh AT Aol
T TR STHeTedT AR TSl oTHIe! SN Fo[ shofodl THHSAT o0 THRRe fhal STEmThg
ST AT S SUATd STeiedT 3T 31T HARUET ST STUTR e :

Yehed STEATeT TACIAT FSTHIhRAT R0 TS fohall ST STRYTEAT AT g Seied 317 HATSUsT ST
qTSTARIOTEAT HIAT 335 ITehe.

I SR AN TRE FRR AT 31k AT IRET IR Jigaell TeeRict RS aRAs HIuA S
3T TR TTERTd =g qigael! T 379 HAQUeT SR STHUIR el
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R3¢ fatEm ¥R we fafiee e aR aifofsae TR ST G& STl AR $6 Gemdel ST
SHoTedl R fosTea fashiqa MHesTerel Fedet Wigae eard GHRTd AT Jgel.

R3] EICATCT FHHTT HATRT ST 3THH A, Siiom Fedrean [Srishoiaean ¥a7 & AL Garen amarid
Hieaetighd AT 3Teied] EaTdrea YT qTen Yigael Tard THae 31 e -—

(T) FISTAER MR/ FeTTEesR Faferd i s D ¥.0%
() Iy 2z /e A i hx D %.0%
() yrg ISR Te ferge Tt sharafea stot forge fffe s D %%
() uRwoT Az 3IfoT T 2o —
(TeH) REOT STt ST ferewon Attt D 0%
() TR 3T~k MO FIeRoT 30-3hs; (B30T &) D %.0%
() TREOT 39-F% (T fhee) D 8.0%
(TR) TIOST THAHERTE STV ST TI= ST 3T-h% D %.0%
(UTeT) 77 TGl SU-H% D W%
(W) Hes =0T D3P

R3.%0 T ST foha TRATERERT=AT SISt e A6 &I 796 o) Aol oA TeaT IROTH TRar
é‘”’ﬂﬁﬁéﬁ:

T 3T W, SN YAHCARATIRGAS ShivTdre! oy, At So-ear aredia e/ STeRid areviidel emt

3.2 ST R AT Sl SEU TR HUGTER, STeAT ARl ST SYFehieRReT fohaT @i SHe
ATV ST HIVTATET T, ST FTH Shaw= fehdlT TREHTERER T AN ST T, 3T S5elt sheledT A e Jod
feifEe oA, foaRTa g J8eT TfoT el UReToT WIeleTs Moy Hvard a9 —

Net Value of Replaced Assets = OCRA — AD
-
OCRA : SE&t shotodl HaieRiel Hes Hieaett @ ;
AD : SRl heted Tel e e ShRT -
T 3T I, TR holedl A=Al Hob Tiedel! e HIUER! HRUMHS et T, Al SRS Jehvl-
e TR foar Svard 35 ¢

T ST 3T Y, SRRV AreaT THAMIes 3Tl Hel aacil shuare] Savdehddd [T TR I
el TR, AN, M THRH UUH Fogel {¥oeish fohell UHIOTSRIER hofid GHIENNTT shoard Aget, MfoT f¥reeish
THRRY, Tfeelt oA, df dist RIeAfdRe 3~ U foaRTd =ard I8,

TR, —AT TAEHTeaT SATSHIETR!, “Ta=iehor STUT SRR Ior” AT Tegian 3% STaehy STffam, 2]&2
T He ¢o 3T T TelieT 3TAAR TRIer.
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¥ AfaRad Wigaeitheo—

R¥.% A TTATER HIHHTT GHATT AR ST 3T qRetean AishTid, Tl Jeb S i
WTefeT HRUTHTS! T Shetell ohall YR Sh0aTd Telell diedet! @, SRR, FHlAsigdd SHATT 3Tei=
e, AT 0T IgeT -—

(Th) T 37 e U T Ureelelt Jiae ;
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foha STAITISRgA dide 3T JUATd 36T 3TN 3T IVl Hod Ul Fed, [aamTd Soard JEa ;

() Tt oA, i HRR FHAA T6 THEdr ST YT Tards Juhd T 37 iauieR heiedr
AT ST STl Gl ST Aig Savard Aget 3MfoT off SURIekT STeTHYgA aevaTd I5ed, 3T Hlzsiyesh
BT, Y STes! HI=dT SUaTd I5at.

¥\9.]  FAM hEeRm (—

(T) SMOTSoeh HTHRISTEAT UleedT TEHRAT T o SEH @9 § oo Wehed Garear (qHag 31T
IS HHERIA @ ) R % S Mivad Han o ;

() qEIeT T NIRRTl TIe d @I T, oR Hi¥ed shelell STHRYd Tard, IoF-amern 92, TR
R MG HoANTR AT HRATTAHR T35 fohHd et Heer AFiiet auid eaed {6 o {65 9e-a1e &o
TFh IRIHAH ST IRT TR ST TR STh FIFRIGE! (Fd IR Riel a5 Jeel Teeh
Torma TewIieh wo Zorh RIS, foaRIa 8 T TR T HTETHAT BEHIITST { TR HHT e, Se(duard
A3, 0T FeTaeidier Tedish SuTehidT STRIT FaTel d SR T hiedT Ao :

T 3T H, SR TSI AT HIILTHAT Tk S Il ITe -

T ST 3T i, =0T ShTeTaEdiet STerTesal INTehiRdl HaTe o SEHI Gare 3T TS HIdHT,
To-aTGal T2eh, YR THREAT 3TMIh oA ATl FIACRAMER J%e fhad Heeis T@iey Fatad aud
wegeT fog o fog ToM-ame &o ok RIRAN ST YR WHRAT 90 GHER 3ieifis HeRe (Fe
TRATICT) el Suid TedeT Teeh fhAd FSeieh wo ok YR o HR T HIRTHT Hehda! § 2ot
Tohal STRITTIRE deBleic! ST JUATT JSl 3TRM 37 HIUCATE! Fod Al &, forarTd 5udmd deet.

¥e¢. form fafidt Feiwiar aifts R @R 21T FoIt TR it GRETUET &0 o T WO &I0i—
. oY fRR HR—

¥¢.2 A1 faframid fafice FRoar efelear fHeagiear STaR UshoT aifve ReR SR IRIToHET Rvard
FEeT 30T AT SeA W1 Aala vt Jged ©

¥¢e.3  fafFEm ¥y I ¥y} T e Folear STCeET AedihaR T S R STRR
TG @A STITOT ST AEATHTEAT UTcles [UedT FHHt Teslak ot e ReR SRR aget FATIH Twale]
FUATT IEeT

T 3T S, IUCTHAT I ST, IV ANk STHAT STHR 3T SR AEI.
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¥¢.3  deh R SRR URITUMT ST STehTa ThROT, auidic! et Ae-amadd, HRiad eHaer
THTOTE 3TITOT SUARIAT ARITHTEAT GeeTd ATed Shelodl Gl ST SR, TNl 3T Sher Tl GHE ST
3T I, WG qwaTer FHIUATd L.

. el SHER—

¥¢.¥ el SMHRIHES T S8 o T2 SHATeA FMIHa! Sharadd qiaraol shuareT e THresT 318
T &1 T M HRI TR Tefaeiedn Tah-a9 el awaie. Tieliel GAaR Heuard J86 i—

ol 3MHR (FTF) = FHofl SRR T Ul JFAe” Heliet X x Teed el ey Fafad wfewmdior
AeHTeeT A qrSTaeiel TRy S ot

¥C.l  TUF T g T FeN SR s (SEISTR) TR0 T SR TR 0 J5at 7T
1 R T 9 faste ueh ge arefavaranst (fefereest) emmom=ar SHIvTHER T 3 32 S8 UROTHER e T
TSI 3THA 3T T TRIUAT WA 0T JgeT - —

[P, x(Q), + P.x (Q),]
ECR = (Rs/kWh)
[1-(AUX )]

W9 P = WG G RS Hiesdl fohell ferree fohe amg fehe s gu amiivr SwEl, o e, A
T /foheary fohar $Ud/amHieR fohan $ud/fofex, ST 3T¥eT oW, Helfe M shamodd wer=on
FIoATET T,

(Q)), = Tehoiti fefel fofed fefe ereiex Hed, SR 31t 4, e efireraed wh e fosteat st
IS YA (TN Pl /TeTgesr uRa Ml SRl 32 g9 qa =T et
IUTAT) Tcel WifehT dter fohal sHHTeT uo Tohetl SherRl/feheiiii, sl s U Seiedl  shiddl/
forTee. foham g STIYT 5o eMTe! UHUT hoRiTtheh Hod, JTea 3ER FHevdrd Aeat.

P = 3= ge-qomen $ud/ el fleX weier Saravpshien @

Q) = fafam .22 ST ¥y .33 Wel TR HoToToT, T2 Se-cletrel et fofed /gfe Helflet JHoTehrar
TRATOT, ST

AUX = fafad ¥x¥.23 & ¥¥.3¢ 78 T8 FHeamsm ol Tehor firean o He FHIERER Seraehr
Tl AR,

AT A Afeiciier TafHes ST §29 el Tedel WRIfhd TR @arer SMERia. 319e, 31T Ariel o
Aig=aien @ THea™, foerm HETEeE! Sa7 A aa! dist 33 (e weare e @ Hemai=n griier geear
Alg=aTier TToT Feli fATHdT hETear STedid TRTierTeaT Iriel i Aie—Tdier, T S5 ST 3290 e SFaT
AT BRAT fohd e duard aget

T STUTET 3T Y, SeTeAT T heTIEid ol SRuATe e, Wiy, T 3o Y o IO,
Frafed FeHTE ST/ ToTET/FeRithe Hod, Yo /I%/TH-Urey alfe fShal 31=1 ShivTeT! AFTH SIoT=aT argdsh =t
TE A IR AT U FRAdTaT FHTET 3T ST SHell SRR IRt S, o ¥y 2]
e faffeee SHoammIT @ Ale= ST 399 RaST HUAH Tefaeiedn 8- URHAIEAT TahaRid, THIURHER
DA o BTABUN Tl ForaRT Suard Fefiet :

W 3THE! I, T RWASRRIHST STl THBTATT HIVTET THATE HIVAET T o Yeshral T, T6-
T GHIEANST 0T ST TE -
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TR TRl I, 3Th TR FIO/THA SR STHRUNAT FASHIIR! ol SRR TRIT0MET, Tedeh Sarea
ToeT dist FHiEdeR smenia 9Rifehd TRIERT S s -/ Ta-em, FRoamd 3.

¥¢.& Fudren faudt fhar SHie Jeae B SEdide 3 W AR 9 (3uH AfUMR |HEie)
THEST :—

gt et hgret fHfadr o TS et wiedr/fermree/ae fohar o fohar 5 Semren g
TR THOT ShoRifhes Jod (STRiter) ST shicsdn/ fermree /et fohan oy foha 5 e @&l swevaramat (e
oot qo-d, Tedel HISavfnidret a1, 2uo fhett ot/ FRetim HHTet BI-ear HamRd, aeT e SaRav[ehIA]
faenTott Ut Sheteat i/ fermTee /det fohar arg fohar sa ST fhud o TRt heriftheh Yoot ATdieT dwmad
TR T1igeh TaTe] HRoard Aot
TeRHTIHR SoTl SRR &Y ST S SR ATTaTesT R et ©

T STV 378 h, FTHA ot e SheTe ATTeReRT UhoT Shorithe Jeard (ST Amgs 1o
1Y, STRTATS, oS4 3. =1 qUiA, ST fafeed shetoa =y 38 «

T TR I, ST HeleaT HIBIMERIGR. YT HISATAT FHHUT TUNRR,, 3- STERT i3 JHT0T ST
T STCIodT SHTEAT UHUT ShoRiTtheh HodTel YRiTehd AR, FTET STTeT qURiict, Teifid Afe-rea Saehried
0T A

T THET o, T oo Hond-TIBeR @Il Saehrea Ul TIUT TehoT shordittheh Jodredl ATageiar
JURMET o SeTe fohrd TeUTSTd, ST hicdT, ST Hetell HicsHl, 3-3TH hiesd, fermree, JafTes 3y,
ARUCATAST, T T6H 3. o {ohAd, TR holed HIBERISR VM hlce THLUME TR, -3
ISV THIT T. =1 qUICT AIGHh qaleR TSI hvard Jgct, 3T =il Uohd-TISeR 9 Afg=ien
HTCTTLITR! 2T TUMT IUTH e 0T SEAYTF eIl

. iR aTE
¥¢.\o AT R UTH AR ST U -Tq HoreAl HIHcdeT SR Seied Tedel SHefl M 4.0
T Ui g A1 U S MR- 31fEEH 37 .

¥¢.¢  TICHTE- SR T GO 37T Sgehld 3TehROT, auidicl Gard Ae-amddd el g
FUESE ST e, AGh TaleR Huard Aet.

¥R, Wo-fag@ fAfadt FEiaEt amar STER, S AHR AT e aTE A g @Rt @ e
WU HIO—

¥R.%  SToA-fage AT e ot R R uReoEr, o fatadia fafes weer Heten
3MMYR, M TATER FHITATT Aget VT el TGl &THAT SRR (Feare- I THI STheiedr) ST 3
STMHRTETEA, HITAF TR FIVAT Agel 9 § THR oNTIRERSA, FHd HuTen dqramee &iear garad
fevvamean ymmIE, 37 et

¥R.]  EIHAT SR ST Sl SRRTAT HIEAHIGH Tl FGATAT FNeh R STHRIIE, AITeREAHS,
TATHCT ShsTeaT ST =T fEvvaT=aT SR fofstal 9Ie o STot Tfacae J@iel Hiideh e, 39 @
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¥%.3  STo-for[a MTHe HaTem T Hoted e 38 FHelel &l HR (T SgHTes)
FTACTIHTO 3T :—

AFC x 0.5 x NDM / NDY x (PAFM / NAPAF) (in Rupees)

S

AFC = defaa auieiar [affetse Roar sieten anfdes fer o, suame

NAPAF = YHUSFER d16e G ST 82k, SoRpaRme

NDM = #fe=mdier fqeeret de

NDY = auidier fgeret de

PAFM = G&fud Aie=amd 9 sholell 937 SUATsdl 52k, Tahariied
%R.¥ PAFM =t URIUMT WIefel GATHTor hivard Jget :—

N

PAFM =100 x = DC,/{ NXICx(1-AUX)} %
i=1

=,
AUX = YHUEHMER TERFHRT el O, TFnarme
DC = 9 it [Koameidr g HHITHH O Traae R Iehel 3 (TRa-a9 Jae Teier)
I &7, ST HERTSE 5T IR Y01 ShgH af fqas Huedm=al THIOT hotl 3.
IC = HYul i Sharel (FTee Teier) T &7
N = THiede feadret der.
¥R.4 TS CAIYREIHEH, UNITUMT SRUATd STTeiedl Ssil SThRTAT S, T holed Hig=Td eTTeRehTel

THI-TG TTEER ST FROA ST THUT FodI3!, Soll SR 3T 3T, TehT Hig=ardrar FHidr ot 3
3TYUTR THUT FoTT SR WATATHTIT ST - —

(Energy Charge Rate in Rs. / kWh) X {Energy (ex-bus)} for the month in kWh.

¥R.&  STor-forge el TR, TrR-a qeeR Sl SR % (FASAR) Ui gHe THame di e
T TEd Getie? GAER Hfead Hvand Jget -—

ECR = AFCx05 /{DEx(1-AUX)}
=,
DE = Soi-fagd fffd semeikar gienes faffse sxvam seict aifter feemes s, S @i
fafem ¥R.\9 = 31T A 3.

¥R.\9  SToA-Taepd M et UshT asTd Weded 0T Seiell THoT 3, SR e shuerean et
FHROTGS, TeemeT Foruen wHl e R, Ml HU-Ihe IR HUIM SeiedT Afesher Fd! (ferT) dwemeR
GIATATHTO! SHTAaTe! HIvATT F5et - —

(Teh) Tt s afoTiode TaTay & SIeaTeAT [SAIhagT 581 asiea 371 e M qe 3 ag, s
T ST (AT T2 STl 31T T ST Ygiel auTeal Soil SRRl S (SHISTR) TRTomT fafem ¥ & med
faffese Shotear TETeaT SR FUATT J56T. 3T FIAHT BIEsel Hed T Tl [SemeT Ho7l &l g STeiedn audier
ToIET STl AT Seeh!, ATTeT aoTdiet Soil SMRRIAE de 9o HETad, faarTd Soard aget, ST &G Jgdren
FH SRR T (SR AR TRl
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T 3T I, SToA-Toge Fiadr gt Toget et Mt fegmsa Serdel Safas= gehmes (Fagart haex)
¥ oY WA A g Tfeet el o), FiHdr ot Felia STlfasie iediag hareAr fSHme Setd guRon
FIUITATS! 3 1T T TereRoTen Hueh dTeet ;

() Tfret ShsTe anfoTfoaerReaT shTHeRTsT & Seare AR Fel ai-aR 3t (e g2 3Tel a3, 2
T WIAATHT SHTHaTEl HIuaT FEed ;

THIUT, — IS, FEE A ST STeiel S Teemsd TSt @ DE MWh, 318 31T gafaa
UfeedT ST AHATeAT T=4T auid Seged FRioT Setelt 3ot 3FFH Al and A2 MWh Sde! 31, 31T A1E DE
TeTT FH SR, TR, =T TuTeRReT SooTl SR ST TR FHRUATIE!, a1 fafamier ot ¥R .& qefier
A feramTe =AreaTe fegmés TS &1 (A1 + A2 — DE) MWh Saehi, %HeT DE MWh 37707 {659 A1 MWh. =1
3T A, TAMT oA I8

(T FEA TR TBIUA AT HeXeR Ageted! 7o el 1/ (1 — AUX) 3 TUF, Jeaet oo
Fretelt o1 (e.g., Al, A2) FlEUA I5el.

¥R.¢ A i ¥ .& He URAUMT hetedT, STeA-fege Ffe Shgam St SR 1 (FHIeTR), uia gfe
ToaIg, UTTOETT ST 3T, 37T Uehl asiciier Seae] feorsht-a1ma o1t { DE x (1 — AUX ) } kWh, 9t ST 3/ @,
SR U1l ST STeedl HoTd1a! ST e Uid I Toag U Sotl TR v I8 -

W 3 I, P shuerer fHEoERRict SRS S ol Ukl ol i & fegmé Hetdet et gl
3TET T YEIel s, HWIeT It Soll STRRIA e T8 heedHaY, Sl HR & Uid JHe To0% (R0) TF
T FH FOAT T

¥R.%  UHUHUCTSI CTERER PN foraRIaiToe e, SUCTe T Sl el ¥ Srotedl Sy aTaiaral,
STA-Ter A e ST 3ifqd WEY S5cf, STl STREvl §e TTEReRHT H0ard Teied fo=ld et
AT Weled Jreqiear THIO FHROAT AT

wo. UNE WIS we-fag fafiet e —

Yo% e TrE WIS STol-ToR]d hsTHIe! 39 TaR HuaTl UGl SERTH aTget JI=Id Seioar aist @ear
FIRTTAR 3T 3707 ot A1 faFaiTar T8,

wo. 2 TMHE, R0%& TR AMUISHS TRaTar HIHHST & HIVM-AT TUg WRISRST STol-fod el e g
RO anfSeR deemer 4t faframicania fafiese sevar steiean fHeruiar TR hioard Agc, 0T ATt &HdT 3R
U W1 TeareR Seell HivaTd Al

wo.3 TATEAT ShaTeaT fashiame eTadHeeT e Weifed STeuieaT SRS ATRehihe &THaT 3R 33 & -
MU TTETER FHITRST & AT [ AT A ST 3F 7T SRR R wuT=aT FasT=aa!,
ATt hs quT SHUATHIST STeTea TETeAT TR Teiichelet SISl MUK J1fveh (R T HTevard Jga.

bo.¥  TTE TSRS STl M ShaTel TehT SholUet Hig=Iaa! oF STHeIc! Sl TR eIt STt -
(AFC x NDM / NDY) (¥9amqe), SR UehT A=t YogeT aeT (Hiaet & Fiadr shem @ Afeamaed
FTRATIT TIHAT FHorgell ST fohell Wb, TorIigaeh! 3T, ST

HIET IR-h-Lo—C
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{(AFC x NDM / NDY) x (a1 Hlg=amed Taiea Ao ardi s Seed Fidl / o A= s
ATt hT= aToRereaT T Sotea Y 2okh) (FURMEE)), SR Ush! Hie-araeitet Tearel dist Hradr & Fiadr e 1
Aleame STciedn TR ool WY SHRITuer el 3TE.

G%?})

AFC = o1 auraat [afies g et anfves [eR @, T ;

NDM = &1 Afe=aimeliet Gagn e ;

NDY = &1 aueier adi= e

T 3T Y, T TG T AT ST SheT SToRetetl Tl Ui Ssit e SR auiea S
THES HI0ITd I,

Loy  TITYREM [SMeT JreTuetl SR [aaT FRISATEAT UHUT A SroiieTem QT UTdesiak o STATSTaTa
I USRIt STRIETHES TH 0T WeUgTHIE! aTiieied] Soieal b Zah Sl TS, Tedleh AT eRehTel -9
TR id JHe R0 T8 IIH, I GG SoTT SMHRT ST THTE I (Fefe IIH), TioTl 3TMHR TR e ANTAIA.

wo.& AT hueietr TRt Ale=araat STET SHUEAT Tl SThR WIATTTHT ST - —

= 0.20 x {Energy generated (ex-bus) for the month in kWh — (Design Energy for the
month (DE ) + 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from the lower elevation
reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir for the month)},

ﬁ'a’
DE_ = Soi-ferep it shampitar @ wis=arame! fafHiase shevar smerett giemeier feams st :
T 3T T, TRt Afe=araedt (e shotelt Sell, T Tie-Tdiet Teee SHeirrar WIeTeT UdeieRIel STeerRITdT

3T IS AR ol WevaTde! ol Hie-aTd aiiieied] Sotedl 94 Zaeh SHotuell el (AT Heany,
AR TS AFTUMR Ss11 STHR I ST,

Wo.o  THTHAT SHUAT, SCEAT UTdcs e el STeTSAT e Tigeiel {HiiTeh arof ST S YT ekiel STeATerare qrogret

wo.¢ BT I wvaTEAT ST YaRE SUGTe STeed UUg Heatd AU araTd SRS qRaat
FOATE STETFHT TEA :

T 378 i, FTHAT O, IV dE HRONIEE &-IRER Shal 7T, Tated AUl THeiea oAl ad=
WIeTeAT USRI STATIIETA a0 o=l Ui iekic! STARTe] T @ed T8card {ohdl AT Hagaeh! aiel
ATt s TEeare foha ITogTn <9 TaTg Jrm Hieted 3T Heard g el ¥, <1 fSadman &7HaT MR AT eRehH
3 TR ATTe

T AU 318 T AT FASHIIET, FfsTa 31for T Soad st/ S@uTetiara! e/3hs Tehl T 24, ZHeaiad
&g JaugTer el (outages) &, Tated HFON Tl HIATHRIIN QAT UdeieRel STARETA Sl
AR AR STARTAEE Jo Mo 7 TEvardiee fohdl o Teeied quare fohal qrogrean Saies Jarere Sl
AEA, FisT HE T PR 9Y HROT ST FHSUITT I8

T 3T i, TeRT TSI THUT ATk a5 (ST3EH) LY, THRRAIT ST AT WIeAe] Tgal- TEHRId el shotel
TFHUT AT TTHR FATTHIOT TR FHRINNT 0T Acfer < —

(ACC),, = (ACC) ,, x (1- ATO)/85

=,

(ACC), 4, = AT hefel ATt STl 3K ;

(ACC) , = =g hefel Tt &FFaT T ;

ATO = Farirear ST FEifeTa 3TsEsTee 1 auiciel THUT STSHesis] FRaRme




HERTZ IMHA U TRV 9T IR-%F, fE@aR ¢, 094/ULTATT R0, Ik ]3O uR

T 3T I, M o, T e died ST atgA et Fiet 3 URHTT "9 (SegfotT) TSt gate]
o= Ga HIeTEIEe! -318€ draler el el TS SXST Hiiod shivare favdeh Talel.

ue. HifNa AT g FEA SrEfan—

U} UHUEUASH SeeT faaRon shiiet deel faega fAfadt shumien @i i St mfvd emar fog wea
Tl AN

W} SR A S i ST (g % IRl AT, O M ool 9F el a1feh ReR SR, 38
U T FROATT It

w23 feaETET TR HTCTAHr /TR R Ufewal et HINvIeh Rl Seret TR 3 feaarer Rer
MhRITAD! TR

Uy ZHAT AT HNUNE! §€ IR fawiear e seRiTae! TR auidel YeieT JehieAT Srviare €€ &
it S amed TR,

uRly  foRIE T et ST AREel (FAh) IS SHAEE! SUcisy TEeT ST a7 FRaerde
AT HTRATIAT o @A 718 ST gt

W  3T% TR FIU AT SFHRET HROT—

afifooTe Toege MY Shiehfar afde f@R SRR, et STHR, T STIAR FHTIIST 3707 TiedTe- 3TugT
it Sareh 3MfoT SToT-fareget FTHe ShaieriidT &7 SRR ST SosTl SR JTH ST J =T TROM HIdeh el
FIOATT FE.

YAT-SAT : qR¥oT
w3,  ATE—

43.8  TREUT FEUN STANTHEERIER HIUAN Aeledl 3 dfs TR0 TR fohal 37 aeiea 3o,
TR TRET A0 FORMRNT ST STORTERRAT &2 Fved FRuamame! a1 vYrTd gHifas 8ol fafem @n]
Treeited

T STV 3T T, A TREU AR SR 0T e 3 [aeme Ga0iwes 76 qRevT d50rEr )
IR TS THUT Heged! TReT (e FRUATIIE! IRt Shetetl ekl faarTd 3, .

u3.R  StfuFTEET wer 38(2) =T Wi, Teel (2R feET) TREUT G STRuERE! TREoT TR
TS Holedl AR ST, T, 3RR, 3Tl ST It faHiese HAHT a1 ST Siqed seiedr 21t o vt
STRINT TR EEet.

Wy, I g HRT—
LY.} TR AR T T TRE0T G0 JaRErat o G0 a0 shoaTaTa <ar TRyl kR
WTeACTIeh! HIVTCITE! T fohal et ST (SiftaerT) THresT 38 (—
(T) YRYOT F=0T YT 3THK ;
() =TS TRIT SR ;
(t) IRYOT Heted HeE! ufd e SR ;
(I Reifde® St 3R,
LY. ISR TREOT FA0THE TATT THeauaTaTat 3757 ShUaTehiRdl U STICIea SHivTeel e qRevT e

TR AR SRRt TR fafemiaR 7T Jaer fesiauara g elet STvT a1 fafawid 31 waer festauararat

fafafese sheoama Sfeiear ATRRIT YRoT HaTg df SaEgR TRid.
T IR -h—Co—<CH
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TR, — AT fafaei=an vaisHe, 91 SFedi- aREuT Jod YS! U STHeATeS YRWUT &THT garhie

W¥.3 ST TS URWUT AU SUFITRCAT ISTHT JRE0T FAUHEC JeRael Tuiud STeear qREoT
e fohall TAR TRWOT HIGTHT SHRUAT 1T 16 AT ST X, TRY0T AR, 3720 Te5eh qRE0T JaA07
SUTIRTEHCATT FaT AR hotod! Tel ShHiER STelel arstal @, TRE0T I FoleT SHRIGT agel F0arT -k
TR,

WY.¥ ST SEgeh YRS AU SUATehea TeAT FaeHos, XTSATdTd UREvT 0TS Tt ol fafae Wy .3 et
T JUIRT 3TRM 3T HTH IV AYTF ST eg] RHUT AR 379N FHHIER Seten @, o= wy.20 TR,
Tef=T0T SHTeTariidier e asTd afeh TRY0T SRR aget et

LY.L SR YA HSauaraSte hivTdler e e TRYUT AT SURTheA Shotl STleT X, TREUT TRaHTEREAR
3TYT ST HE HUATAIR! Ao SHIHTRIER IS TETeAT 4% X TIaeT0T SR aget HIvaTal g3 Tarel 37T 37em
HTHTHTTT TREUT TRATTEREBTCAT 3T VAT T ST FHROATT g TR A&l :

T 3T i, 3T TISLIUT SRR Helled TRET RAHTIRGTAT SIS SRTATARERT Scd=ITa Ueh T ITeciiet ST of
THH IRV AU ST hotoll TAloH 9 @l @9 WUH AFUATT Idlel 9 Hefdd asfiel Hers=an

WY.& TSI TREOT AU FoRTRIE! ShefedT ShTHTel SEHIe, TR0 TREHTRE 37T TRE0T J50T 3Tehal

WY¥.\o  TSAI YRYOT GV TS SheledT TS Gerel ToRhH SR qRE0T =0T SUFTshea - 3787
Al T 31k AlST IRYT FIRTAT FHAHR TREUT 0T SYARTheATel e T hetedl 319 Il QR asT
TR & TR
HTH el ST TR 3 ST TREUT FRRTAT FHTCAT 3TN HTH WS ST ST JRE0T 207 ITFThTet
THH TR

LY. 3 ET IRET FRRACT STETHR, TR 0T Y97 TR WICICTish! ShivTedTal TehT Ui el shall
A Iohel 1 —
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TU TET I TohalT SIS doaidiest ST JUAT ATl ST9M 37 THHST G HiSael! TaTea ehedier THeeT 38t
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T THUHUCTS RS THIIT Shivard et
L. TR WRATTERER, SUCTSHAT TedThTIelT ST J1Teh SUCTSIT |Ied hodHa, el @ielt T98 hotedn
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82.%  TTSATCHI UREOT =0T T “TShoT IR e T (ZIEUE)” 8 qe IR RAHTEReE e aifh
THUT Hegel! RS e, St FRI0T shretrardtean Feife auia qruor @50 SudiheitheT (SUEy) @iediel GTER
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8RR T et Yedeh | aidler {3 HigwAreAT el eI AR 0N SueheareAr (Swy)
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Base Transmission Capacity

Rights (Base TCR) for the =" [(CPD(t) + NCPD(t))/2]

yearly period (t) B
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CPD, = Ucdeh URWT 0 SUAMhATAIG! (=0T Hretrereiieier | Sk rerereshiar Ak SAemiste
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Base Transmission Tariff

(long-term/medium-term) = TTSC,, / Base TCR,
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ATC(u)
ﬁ?},
ATC(u), = itk ICAHHRT, TREOT ZA0N STATHATHE FramToft ! S TRET bR

@~

Base TCR (u) = [CPD(u),.. + NCPD(uw) . ] /2

(t) (t)

=TTSC, X ([Base TCR(w], /*% -4 [Base TCR(u),)

(t) )
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Tuaf Taai « Tuak = The non-avalability hours (excluding the time peried for Tayul, Tyact,
Tuamm, outages oot attributable to transmission Licensee taken as Ty,
deemed availability as per Para 5 of the procedure) for i"AC
line, . j* HVDC pole, £ ICT. 1" SVC (Induetive Operation), 1"
SWVC (Capacitive Operation}, m" Switched Bus Reactor and
n" HVDC back-to-back block.
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MAHARASHTRA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION
(MULTI YEAR TARIFF) REGULATIONS, 2015
ELEcTRICITY ACT, 2003.

No.MERC/Legal/2015/1084.—In exercise of the powers conferred by clause (h), (i), (), (1), (m),
(0), (y), (zd), (ze), (zf), (zg), (zh) and (zp) of sub-section (2) of Section 181 read with the proviso to
sub-section (1) of Section 36, sub-clause (ii) of clause (d) of sub-section (2) of Section 39, second
proviso to sub-clause (ii) of clause (d) of sub-section (2) of Section 39, sub-clause (i7) of clause (¢) of
Section 40, second proviso to sub-clause (ii) of clause (c) of Section 40, first proviso to Section 41,
first proviso to Section 51, Section 61, sub-sections (2) and (5) of Section 62, sub-sections (1) and
(3) of Section 64, Section 65 and clause (b) of sub-section (1) of Section 86 of the Electricity Act, 2003
(36 of 2003) and all other powers enabling it in that behalf, the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission hereby makes the following Regulations. These Regulations supersede the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011.

1. Short title, extent, applicability and commencement—

1.1 These Regulations may be called the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015.

1.2 These Regulations shall extend to the whole of the State of Maharashtra.

1.3 These Regulations shall be applicable to existing and future Generation Companies,
Transmission Licensees, Distribution Licensees, Maharashtra State Load Despatch Centre
(MSLDC), and their successors for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, Tariff,
and Fees and Charges of MSLDC in all matters covered under these Regulations from April 1st
2016 upto March 31st 2020.

1.4 These Regulations shall come into force from the date of their publication in the Official
Gazette :

Provided that for all purposes, including review matters pertaining to the period till March
31st, 2016, the issues relating to determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff
shall be governed by the provisions of the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms
and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2005 or Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011, including amendments thereto, as may be applicable.

2. Definitions—
2.1 In these Regulations, unless the context otherwise requires—
(1) “Accounting Statement” means for each Year, the following statements, namely :—

(i) balance sheet, prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the
Commission from time to time, with reference to each licensed or regulated business
separately, duly certified by the statutory auditors ;

(it) profit and loss account, prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by
the Commission from time to time, with reference to each licensed or regulated business
separately, duly certified by the statutory auditors ;

(iii) cash flow statement, prepared in accordance with the format prescribed by the
Commission from time to time, with reference to each licensed or regulated business
separately, duly certified by the statutory auditors ;

(iv) balance sheet, prepared in accordance with the form contained in the Companies
Act, 1956 or Companies Act, 2013, as applicable ;

(v) profit and loss account, complying with the requirements contained in the
Companies Act, 1956 or Companies Act, 2013, as applicable ;

(vi) cash flow statement, prepared in accordance with the applicable Accounting
Standards of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ;

(vii) report of the statutory auditors ;
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(viit) reconciliation statement, duly certified by the statutory auditors, showing
the reconciliation between the total expenses, revenue, assets and liabilities, of the entity
as a Company and the expenses, revenue, assets and liabilities, separately for each
business regulated by the Commission and unregulated business operations ;

(ix) cost records prescribed by the Central Government under the Companies Act,
1956 or Companies Act, 2013, as applicable ;

together with notes thereto, and such other supporting statements and information as
the Commission may direct :

Provided that separate Accounting Statements shall be prepared and submitted to the
Commission for each licensed Business in accordance with the Licence conditions, and for
each regulated Business :

Provided further that, in case separate Accounting Statements are not submitted for
each licensed Business in accordance with the Licence conditions and for each regulated
Business for the Financial Year (FY) 2016-17 onwards, the Petitions filed by the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC, may be rejected by the Commission after giving the
Petitioner a reasonable opportunity of being heard :

Provided also that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall submit the
Statutory Auditor’s comments, observations and notes to Accounts, alongwith the Accounting
Statements, and a summary of the key issues highlighted by the Statutory Auditor and the
steps taken to address them :

Provided also that, in respect of a Local Authority engaged in the business of distribution
of electricity, the Accounting Statement shall mean the items mentioned above as prepared
and maintained in accordance with the relevant statutes applicable to such Local Authority :

Provided also that till the MSLDC remains a part of it, separate books of accounts for
MSLDC shall be maintained by the Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company
Limited and shall be audited and certified by the statutory auditor.

(2) “Act” means the Electricity Act, 2003 (36 of 2003), as amended from time to time.

(3) “Aggregate Revenue Requirement” means the revenue requirement comprising
allowable expenses and return on capital pertaining to the Generating Company,
Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee or MSLDC, to be recovered through Tariff
or Fees and Charges in accordance with these Regulations.

(4) “Allocation Statement” means, for each Year, a statement in respect of each of
the Other Businesses of the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or Distribution
Licensee undertaken for optimum utilisation of its assets, showing the amounts of any
revenue, cost, asset, liability, reserve or provision, etc., which has been charged from or to
each such Other Business together with a description of the basis of that charge ; or
determined by apportionment or allocation between different Businesses of the Generating
Company or Licensee, together with a description of the basis of the apportionment or
allocation :

Provided that, for the purposes of these Regulations, the licensed Business of a
Distribution Licensee for its area of supply would be bifurcated into Distribution Wires
Business and Retail Supply Business :

Provided further that such allocation statement in respect of a Generating Station
owned and/or maintained and/or operated by a Distribution Licensee shall be prepared
such as to enable Tariff determination, stage-wise, Unit-wise and/or for the entire
Generating Station.

(5) “Allotted Capacity” shall have the same meaning as in the Regulations of the
Commission governing Transmission Open Access or Distribution Open Access, as may be
applicable.

(6) “Auditor” means an auditor appointed by the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC qualified for such appointment in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act.
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(7) “Auxiliary Energy Consumption” in relation to a period, in case of a generating
Station or Unit, means the quantum of energy consumed by its auxiliary equipment, such
as equipment used for operating plant and machinery, including switchyard of the
generating Station and the transformer losses within the generating Station, and shall be
expressed as a percentage of the sum of gross energy generated at the generator terminals
of all the Units of the Generating Station :

Provided that it shall not include energy consumed for supply of power by the
generating Station to its housing colony and other facilities, and for construction works at
the generating Station ;

(8) (a) “Availability” in relation to a thermal Generating Station/Unit for any period
means the average of the daily average declared capacities as certified by MSLDC for all
the days during that period, expressed as a percentage of the installed capacity of the
Generating Station/Unit minus the normative auxiliary consumption in Megawatts (MW),
as specified in these Regulations, and shall be computed in accordance with the following
formula :—

Availability =100 ZDE: N w10 » (1—am) 1o

where - N = number of time blocks in the given period.
DC = Average Declared Capacity in MW for the i** time block in such period.
IC = Installed Capacity of the Generating Station/Unit in MW.

AUX = Normative Auxiliary Consumption in MW, expressed as a percentage of gross
generation ;

(b) “Availability” in relation to a transmission system for a given period means the
time in hours during that period for which the transmission system is capable of
transmitting electricity at its rated voltage, expressed in percentage of total hours in the
given period, and shall be computed as provided in Annexure-II to these Regulations ;

(9) “Balancing and Settlement Code” means such Code as may be stipulated by
the Commission, or by the MSLDC with the approval of the Commission, for the balancing
of energy accounts and settlement of differences among the users of the grid in the State of
Maharashtra ;

(10) “Base Rate” shall mean the Base Rate of the State Bank of India as declared
from time to time ;

(11) “Beneficiary” shall mean—

(a) in relation to a Generating Station, the purchaser of electricity generated at
such Station whose Tariff is determined under these Regulations ;

(b) in relation to a Transmission Licensee, the Transmission System Users ;

(c) in relation to the Distribution Wires Business, the Generating Companies
connected to the distribution system and consumers ;

(d) in relation to the Retail Supply Business, the consumers ;

(e) in relation to the MSLDC, the Distribution Licensees and Open Access consumers
who utilise the Intra-State Transmission system for transmission of electricity and / or
utilise the distribution system of a Licensee in the State for wheeling of electricity and
/ or avail the services of the MSLDC relating to scheduling and real-time grid operations,
State energy accounting, operation of pool account, etc.

(12) “Block” in relation to a combined cycle thermal Generating Station includes
combustion turbine — generators, associated waste heat recovery boilers, connected steam
turbine — generators and auxiliaries.

(13) “Bulk Power Transmission Agreement” means an executed Agreement that
contains the terms and conditions under which a Transmission System User is entitled to
access to an intra-State transmission system of a Transmission Licensee.



HERTE IS TS0 STHTEIRUT 91T 9R-&, fEUew ¢, 0%4/UEEUT 9, Tk 2’39 ’Y

(14) “Change in Law” means occurrence of any of the following events :—
(a)enactment, bringing into effect or promulgation of any new Indian law ; or

(b)adoption, amendment, modification, repeal or re-enactment of any existing Indian
law ; or

(c) change in interpretation or application of any Indian law by a competent court,
Tribunal or Indian Governmental Instrumentality, which is the final authority under
law for such interpretation or application ; or

(d)change of any condition or covenant by any competent statutory authority in
relation to any consent or clearances or approval or Licence available or obtained for the
Project ; or

(e) coming into force or change in any bilateral or multilateral agreement or treaty
between the Government of India and any other Sovereign Government having
implications for the generating Station or the transmission system regulated under these
Regulations ; or

(f )any change in taxes or duties, or introduction of any taxes or duties levied by the
Central or any State Government.

(15) “Charges” means payments to be collected by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC for the services rendered by it.

(16) “Coincident Peak Demand” means the demand as measured at G-T interface
for the Distribution Licensee occurring at the time of system peak demand for the State.

(17) “Commission” means the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission.

(18) “Conduct of Business Regulations” means the Regulations of the Commission
governing its Conduct of Business.

(19) “Contracted Capacity” means the capacity in MW contracted by a long-term
Transmission System User as part of its long-term power procurement plan through a
power purchase agreement or arrangement, and shall be equivalent to the deemed
Transmission Capacity Right of a Transmission System User as specified under the
Regulations of the Commission governing Transmission Open Access.

(20) “Control Period” means the period comprising four Years from April 1st, 2016 to
March 31st, 2020, and as may be extended by the Commission.

(21) “Cut-off Date” means the 31st March of the Year ending after two Years of the
Year of start of commercial operation of a Project and, in case a Project is declared to be
under commercial operation in the last quarter of a year, shall mean the 31st March of the
Year ending after three Years of the Year of start of such commercial operation.

(22) “Day” means the 24 hour period starting at 0000 hour.
(23) “Date of Commercial Operation” or “COD” means :—

(a) in case of a generating Unit or block of a thermal generating Station, the date
declared by the Generating Company after demonstrating the maximum continuous rating
(MCR) or the installed capacity (IC) through a successful trial run after notice to the
Beneficiaries, if any ; and, in case of the generating Station as a whole, the date of
commercial operation of the last generating Unit or block of the generating Station :

Provided that, where arrangements have been entered into with Beneficiaries for
purchasing power from the generating Station, the trial run shall commence after seven
days notice by the Generating Company to the Beneficiaries, and scheduling shall
commence from 0000 hour after completion of the trial run :

Provided further that the Generating Company shall certify that the generating
Station meets the technical standards specified by the Central Electricity Authority
and the State Grid Code ;

(b) in case of a generating Unit of a hydel generating Station, including pumped
storage hydel generating Station, the date declared by the Generating Company from
0000 hour, and in relation to the generating Station as a whole, the date declared by the
Generating Company after demonstrating peaking capability corresponding to the
installed capacity of the generating Station through a successful trial run :



R&

HERTE JTHA W05 FHTEIRUT UTT IR-&, fS@av ¢, Q0% /IEMEuT RV, Tid 2’39

Provided that, where arrangements have been entered into with Beneficiaries for
purchasing power from a generating Station, the scheduling process for a Unit of the
generating Station or demonstration of peaking capability corresponding to installed
capacity of the generating Station through a successful trial run shall commence after
seven days notice by the Generating Company to the Beneficiaries and scheduling shall
commence from 0000 hour after completion of the trial run :

Provided further that the Generating Company shall certify that the generating
Station meets the technical standards specified by the Central Electricity Authority
and the State Grid Code :

Provided also that, in case a hydel generating Station with pondage or storage is
not able to demonstrate peaking capability corresponding to the installed capacity for
the reason of insufficient reservoir or pond level, the date of commercial operation of
the last Unit of the generating Station shall be considered as the date of commercial
operation of the generating Station as a whole, and it will be mandatory for such hydel
generating Station to demonstrate peaking capability equivalent to installed capacity of
the generating Unit or the generating Station as and when such reservoir or pond level
is achieved :

Provided also that, if a run-of-river hydel generating Station or a generating Unit
thereof is declared under commercial operation during lean inflows period when the
water inflow is insufficient for such demonstration of peaking capability, such hydel
generating Station or generating Unit shall demonstrate peaking capability equivalent
to installed capacity as and when sufficient water inflow is available ;

(c) in case of a transmission system, the date declared by the Transmission Licensee
from 0000 hour of which an element of the transmission system is in regular service
after successful trial operation for transmitting electricity and communication signal :

Provided that, in case a transmission system or an element thereof is prevented
from regular service for reasons not attributable to the Transmission Licensee or its
suppliers or contractors but on account of the delay in commissioning of the concerned
generating Station or the upstream or downstream transmission system or distribution
system, the Transmission Licensee may seek approval of the Commission of the date of
commercial operation of such transmission system or an element thereof :

Provided further that, in case of an existing Transmission Licensee, such request
may be included as part of its Multi Year Tariff (MYT) Petition or Mid-Term Review
Petition or True-up Petition to be filed under these Regulations.

(24) “De-capitalisation” means the reduction in Gross Fixed Assets corresponding
to the removal of assets as approved by the Commission.

(25) “Declared Capacity” means, in relation to a generating Station, the capability
to deliver ex-bus electricity in MW declared by such generating Station in respect of any
time-block of the day as defined in the State Grid Code or whole of the day, taking into
account the availability of fuel or water, and subject to further qualification in the relevant
Regulation.

(26) “Deemed Distribution Licensee” means a person deemed to be a Distribution
Licensee under Section 14 of the Act.

(27) “Design Energy” in relation to a hydel power Generating Station means the
quantum of energy, which could be generated in a 90 per cent dependable year with 95 per
cent installed capacity of the Generating Station.

(28) “Distribution Business” means the Business of operating and maintaining a
distribution system for supplying electricity in the area of supply of a Distribution Licensee.

(29) “Distribution Licensee” means a Licensee authorised to operate and maintain
a distribution system for supplying electricity to consumers in its area of supply.

(30) “Distribution Wires Business” means the Business of operating and maintaining
a distribution system for wheeling of electricity in the area of supply of a Distribution
Licensee.
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(31) “Detailed Project Report Scheme” (or “DPR Scheme”) means a capital
expenditure Scheme with projected capital cost exceeding the limits specified in these
Regulations, for which the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC is required to
obtain prior in-principle approval by submitting a Detailed Project Report (DPR) in
accordance with the Guidelines of the Commission for In-Principle Clearance of proposed
Investment Schemes.

(32) “Expected Revenue from Tariff and Charges” means the revenue estimated
to accrue to the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee
from the Regulated Business at the prevailing level of Tariff and Charges.

(33) “Existing Generating Unit/Station” means a Generating Unit or Station
declared as under commercial operation prior to April 1, 2016.

(34) “Event” means an unscheduled or unplanned occurrence in the intra-State
transmission system, including faults, incidents and breakdowns.

(35) “Extended Life” means the life of a generating Station or Unit thereof or of a
transmission system or element thereof beyond the period of Useful Life, as may be
approved by the Commission on a case to case basis.

(36) “Fees” means the payments to be collected by the MSLDC for services rendered
on account of registration, membership or any other account as determined by the
Commission.

(37) “Force Majeure Event” means, with respect to any party, any event or
circumstance, or combination of events or circumstances, which is not within the reasonable
control of, and is not due to an act of omission or commission of that party and which, by
the exercise of reasonable care and diligence, could not have been prevented ; and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, shall include the following events or circumstances :—

(a) acts of God, including but not limited to lightning, storm, action of the elements,
earthquakes, flood, torrential rains, drought and natural disaster ;

(b) strikes and industrial disturbances having a State-wide or extensive impact in
the area of supply of a Licensee, but excluding strikes and industrial disturbances in the
Licensee’s own organisation ;

(c) acts of war, invasion, armed conflict or act of foreign enemy, insurrections, riots,
revolution, terrorist or military action ;

(d) unavoidable accident, including but not limited to fire, explosion, radioactive
contamination and toxic chemical contamination ;

(e) any shutdown or interruption of the grid, which is required or directed by the
concerned Load Despatch Centre.

(38) “Generation Business” means the Business of production of electricity from a
Generating Station for the purpose of (i) giving supply to any premises or enabling supply
to be so given, or (i) for the purpose of supply of electricity to any Distribution Licensee in
accordance with the Act and the rules and regulations made thereunder, or (iii) subject to
the Regulations made under sub-section (2) of Section 42 of the Act, supply of electricity to
any consumer.

(39) “Generating Company” means any company or body corporate or association
or body of individuals, whether incorporated or not, or artificial juridical person, which
owns or operates or maintains a generating Station.

(40) “Generating Station” (or “Station”) means a Station or a Unit thereof for
generating electricity, including any building and plant with step-up transformer, switch-
gear, switch yard, cables or other appurtenant equipment used for that purpose and the
site thereof ; a site intended to be used for a generating Station, and any building used for
housing the operating staff of a generating Station, and where electricity is generated by
water-power, includes penstocks, head and tail works, main and regulating reservoirs,
dams and other hydraulic works, but does not include any sub-Station.

HAT IR h-Lo0-23
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(41) “Gross Calorific Value” (or “GCV”) in relation to a thermal Generating Station
means the heat produced in kilocalories (kcal) by complete combustion of one kilogram
(kg) of solid fuel or one litre of liquid fuel or one standard cubic metre of gaseous fuel, as
the case may be.

(42) “Gross Station Heat Rate” means the heat energy input in kcal required to
generate one kilo Watt hour (kWh) of electrical energy at generator terminals.

(43) “High Tension” (or “HT”) means all voltages defined as “high” or “extra high”
voltage under the applicable Rules and Regulations as specified by the Central Electricity
Authority.

(44) “Thermal Generating Station” means a generating Station or a Unit thereof
that generates electricity using fossil fuels such as coal, lignite, gas, liquid fuel or combination
of these as its primary source of energy.

(45) “Indian Governmental Instrumentality” means the Government of India, State
Government and any Ministry or Department or Board or Agency or regulatory or quasi-
judicial authority controlled by Government of India or the Government of the State where
the Project is located.

(46) “Infirm power” means electricity injected into the grid prior to the commercial
operation of a Unit or Block of the Generating Station.

(47) “Installed Capacity” means the summation of the name plate capacities of all
the Units of the Generating Station or the capacity of the Generating Station (reckoned at
the generator terminals).

(48) “Intra-State Transmission System” (or “InSTS”) means any system for
conveyance of electricity by transmission lines within the area of the State of Maharashtra,
and includes all transmission lines, sub-stations and associated equipment of Transmission
Licensees in the State :

Provided that the definition of point of separation between a transmission system and
distribution system and between a Generating Station and transmission system shall be guided
by the Regulations notified by the Central Electricity Authority under clause (b) of Section
73 of the Act.

(49) “Licensee” for the purpose of these Regulations shall mean a Transmission
Licensee or Distribution Licensee, as the case may be, duly authorised by the Commission.

(50) “Market operation function” means the functions of scheduling, despatch, data
acquisition, energy accounting and deviation settlement, transmission loss calculation and
apportionment, operation of pool account and congestion charge account, administering
ancillary services, information dissemination and any other functions assigned to the
MSLDC by the Act or Regulations or Orders.

(51) “Maximum Continuous Rating” (or “MCR”) in relation to a Unit of a thermal
Generating Station means the maximum continuous output at the generator terminals,
guaranteed by the manufacturer at rated parameters ; and, in relation to a Block of a
combined cycle thermal Generating Station, means the maximum continuous output at the
generator terminals, guaranteed by the manufacturer with water or steam injection (if
applicable) and corrected to 50 Hz grid frequency and specified site conditions.

(52) “New Generating Unit/Station” means a Generating Unit or Station declared
under commercial operation on or after April 1st, 2016.

(53) “Ninety (90) % Dependable Year” shall mean the year in which the annual
energy generation has the probability of being equal to or in excess of 90% of the expected
period of operation of the Plant.

(54) “Non-Coincident Peak demand” means the peak demand as measured at G-T
interface for a Distribution Licensee during a period, which may or may not occur at the
time of system peak demand in the State as a whole.
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(55) “Non-DPR Scheme” means a capital expenditure Scheme with projected capital
cost within the limits specified in these Regulations, for which the Generating Company
or Licensee or MSLDC is not required to obtain prior in-principle approval of the
Commission.

(56) “Non-Tariff Income” means the income relating to the regulated Business other
than from Tariff, excluding any income from Other Business and, in case of the Retail
Supply Business of a Distribution Licensee, excluding income from receipts on account of
cross-subsidy surcharge and additional surcharge and Other Business.

(57) “Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor” (or “NAPAF”), in relation to a
hydel Generating Station, means the Availability Factor specified in Regulation 46 for
hydel Generating Stations.

(58) “Officer” means an officer of the Commission.

(59) “Operation and Maintenance expenses” (or “O and M expenses”) in respect
of a Generating Company means the expenditure incurred on operation and maintenance
of the Generating Station or Unit of a Generating Company, or part thereof, and includes
the expenditure on manpower, repairs, spares, consumables, insurance and overheads,
but excludes fuel expenses ; and, in respect of a Licensee, means the expenditure incurred
on operation and maintenance by a Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee, or
part thereof, and includes the expenditure on manpower, repairs, spares, consumables,
insurance and overheads.

(60) “Original Project Cost” means the capital expenditure incurred by a Generating
Company or Transmission Licensee within the original scope of the Project, up to the cut-
off date as admitted by the Commission .

(61) “Petitioner” means a Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensee or MSLDC, who has filed a Petition for determination of Tariff or
Fees and Charges or for True up or for Mid-term Review in accordance with the Act and
these Regulations, and includes a Generating Company or Transmission Licensee or
Distribution Licensee or MSLDC whose Tariff or Fees and Charges is the subject of a
review by the Commission on a suo-motu basis or as part of a Truing-up exercise or Mid-
term Review.

(62) “Plant Availability Factor” (or “PAF”), in relation to a hydel Generating Station
for any period, means the average of the daily declared capacities (DCs) for all the days as
certified by the MSLDC during that period, expressed as a percentage of the installed
capacity in MW, reduced by the normative auxiliary energy consumption.

(63) “Plant Load Factor” (or “PLF”), in relation to a thermal Generating Station for
a given period, means the total sent-out energy corresponding to actual generation during
such period, expressed as a percentage of sent-out energy corresponding to installed
capacity in that period, and shall be computed in accordance with the following formula :—

N
Plant Load Factor (%) =100x > AG, /{Nx ICx (1- AUX,)}%
i=1
where - N = number of time blocks in the given period
AG = Actual Generation in MW for the i** time block in such period
IC = Installed Capacity of the Generating Station in MW

AUX = Normative Auxiliary Consumption in MW, expressed as a percentage of
gross generation.

(64) “Pool Account” means the accounts for payments relating to Unscheduled
Interchanges (‘UI Account’) applicable under the Inter-State Availability Based Tariff (ABT)
mechanism or Intra-State ABT Settlement Charges as identified under the Intra-State
ABT mechanism operating in the State, or Reactive Energy Exchanges (Reactive Energy
Account) or any other such Accounts, which may be operated by the MSLDC in accordance
with the Regulations or directions of the Commission.
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(65) “Project” means a Generating Station or the transmission system, as the case
may be and, in case of a hydel Generating Station, includes all components of the generating
facility such as penstocks, head and tail works, main and regulating reservoirs dams and
other hydraulic works, intake water conductor system, power Generating Station and
generating units, as apportioned to power generation.

(66) “Prudence Check” means the scrutiny of reasonableness of expenditure incurred
or proposed to be incurred, financing plan, use of efficient technology, cost and time over-
run and such other factors as may be considered appropriate by the Commission for
determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff or Fees and Charges.

(67) “Pumped Storage Hydel Generating Station” means a hydel station which
generates power through energy stored in the form of water energy, pumped from a lower
elevation reservoir to a higher elevation reservoir.

(68) “Rated Voltage” means the voltage at which the transmission system is designed
to operate or such lower voltage at which the line is charged, for the time being, in
consultation with Transmission System Users.

(69) “Retail Supply Business” means the Business of sale of electricity by a
Distribution Licensee to its consumers in accordance with the terms of its Licence.

(70) “Run-of-river Generating Station” means a hydel Generating Station, which
does not have upstream pondage.

(71) “Run-of-river Generating Station with pondage” means a hydel Generating
Station with sufficient pondage for meeting the diurnal variation of power demand.

(72) “Small Gas Turbine Generating Station” means and includes open cycle gas
turbine or combined cycle Generating Stations with gas turbines in the capacity range of
50 MW. or below.

(73) “Storage-type Power Station” means a hydel power Generating Station
associated with large storage capacity to enable variation in generation of electricity
according to demand.

(74) “State Grid Code” means the Code specified by the Commission under clause (h)
of sub-section (1) of section 86 of the Act.

(75) “Transmission System” means a line or a group of lines with or without
associated sub-Station, and includes equipment associated with transmission lines and
sub-stations.

(76) “Transmission Capacity Rights” means the right of a Transmission System
User to transfer power in MW, under normal circumstances, between such points of
injection and drawal as may be set out in the Bulk Power Transmission Agreement.

(77) “Transmission Licensee” means a Licensee authorised by the Commission to
establish or operate transmission lines under section 14 of the Act.

(78) “Transmission System User” for the purpose of these Regulations means the
Distribution Licensees and long-term Open Access Users, but excludes partial Open Access
Users.

(79) “Unit” in relation to a thermal Generating Station (other than combined cycle
thermal Generating Station) means steam generator, turbine-generator and auxiliaries
or, in relation to a combined cycle thermal Generating Station, means turbine-generator
and auxiliaries ; and, in relation to a hydel Generating Station, means turbine-generator
and its auxiliaries.

(80) “Useful Life” in relation to a Unit of a Generating Station, transmission system
and distribution system from the date of commercial operation shall mean the following,
namely :—

() Coal/Lignite based thermal generating Station : .. 25 years ;
(i1) Gas/Liquid fuel based thermal Generating Station: .. 25 years ;
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(iiz) Hydel Generating Station including Pumped Storage

Hydel Generating Station : .. 35 years ;

(iv) AC and DC Sub-station : .. 25 years ;
(v) Gas Insulated Sub-station : .. 25 years ;
(vi) Transmission line (including HVAC and HVDC) : .. 35 years ;
(vit) Distribution line : .. 35 years ;
(viii) Communication System : 15 years :

Provided that the useful life for AC and DC Sub-stations and Gas Insulated Sub-station
for which notice inviting tender is floated on or after 1st April 2016 shall be considered as 35
years :

Provided further that the extension of life of the projects beyond the completion of their
useful life shall be decided by the Commission.

(81) “Year” means a financial year (‘FY’).

(82) ¢“Z-factor Charge” is the charge allowed to a Generation Company, Transmission
Licensee and Distribution Licensee on account of uncontrollable factors, viz., fuel surcharge
adjustment and cost pertaining to identified uncontrollable factors as specified in these
Regulations.

2.2 Words or expressions used in these Regulations but not defined herein shall have
the meanings assigned to them in the Act or Rules or Regulations framed thereunder.

3. Scope of Regulations—

3.1 The Commission shall determine the Aggregate Revenue Requirement, Tariff and
Fees and Charges, including terms and conditions thereof, in accordance with these
Regulations for all matters for which the Commission has jurisdiction under the Act, including
the following :—

(i) For supply of electricity by a Generating Company, except from Renewable

Sources of energy, to a Distribution Licensee ;

(it) For Intra-State transmission of electricity ;

(iii) For use of intervening transmission facilities ;

(iv) For Wheeling of electricity ;

(v) For Retail supply of electricity ;

(vi) For MSLDC, in terms of Fees and Charges ;

(vii) For Surcharge in addition to the charges for wheeling under the first proviso to
sub-section (2) of section 42 of the Act, in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission
governing Distribution Open Access and Orders issued by the Commission ;

(viii) For Additional surcharge on the charges for wheeling under sub-section (4) of
Section 42 of the Act, in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission governing
Distribution Open Access and Orders of the Commission :

Provided that the Commission shall determine such Tariff and Fees and Charges, having
regard to the terms and conditions contained in Parts E, F, G, H and I of these Regulations,
as may be applicable.

3.2 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Regulations, the Commission shall
adopt the Tariff if such Tariff has been determined through a transparent process of bidding
in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Central Government under section 63 of the
Act :

Provided that the Petitioner shall provide such information as the Commission may

require to satisfy itself that the guidelines issued by the Central Government have been duly
followed.
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PART A : GENERAL PRINCIPLES
4. Multi-Year Tariff Framework—

4.1 The Commission shall determine the Tariff and Fees and Charges for matters covered
under clauses (i), (ii), (ii1), (iv), (v), (vi), (vii), and (viii) of Regulation 3.1, under a Multi-Year
Tariff framework with effect from April 1, 2016.

4.2 The Multi-Year Tariff framework shall be based on the following elements, for
computation of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected revenue from Tariff and
Charges for Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires Business,
Retail Supply Business, and Fees and Charges of MSLDC:—

(i) A Multi-Year Tariff Petition comprising the forecast of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement, expected revenue from existing Tariff or Fees and Charges in case of MSLDC,
expected revenue gap, and proposed Tariff or Fees and Charges for each year of the Control
Period, shall be submitted by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall propose the category-wise Tariffs for each
year of the Control Period :

Provided further that the performance parameters whose trajectories have been specified
in these Regulations shall form the basis of projection for the Aggregate Revenue Requirement
for the entire Control Period ;

(it) Determination of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff or Fees and
Charges for Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires Business,
Retail Supply Business, and MSLDC by the Commission for each year of the Control Period,
at the start of the Control Period :

Provided that the Commission shall also approve the sharing proportion amongst the
Transmission System Users of the MSLDC Fees and Charges for the Control Period ;

(i1i) Petition for Mid-term Review of operational and financial performance vis-a-vis
the approved forecast for the first two years of the Control Period ; and revised forecast of
Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expected revenue from existing Tariff, expected revenue
gap, and proposed category-wise Tariffs for the third and fourth year of the Control Period,
shall be submitted by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC ;

(iv) True-up for the first year of the Control Period based on audited accounts and
provisional true-up for the second year of the Control Period of operational and financial
performance vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the respective years shall be submitted by
the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC along with its Petition for Mid-term Review ;

(v) Determination of the revised Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff or Fees
and Charges for Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires
Business, Retail Supply Business, and MSLDC by the Commission for the third and fourth
year of the Control Period based on the Mid-term Review ;

(vi) True-up for the first year of the Control Period, provisional true-up for the second
year of the Control Period of operational and financial performance vis-a-vis the approved
forecast for the respective years, and categorization of variation in performance as those
caused by factors within the control of the Petitioner (controllable factors) and by factors
beyond its control (uncontrollable factors) by the Commission, along with the Mid-term
Review ;

(vii) The mechanism for pass-through of approved gains or losses on account of
uncontrollable factors as specified by the Commission in these Regulations ;

(viii) The mechanism for sharing of approved gains or losses arising out of controllable
factors as specified by the Commission in these Regulations.

5. Petitions to be filed in the Control Period—
5.1 The Petitions to be filed in the Control Period under these Regulations are as under :—
(a) Multi-Year Tariff Petition shall be filed by January 15, 2016, comprising :(—

(Z) Truing-up for FY 2014-15 to be carried out under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011 :
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Provided that the Commission may, if it considers appropriate, carry out the Truing-up
for years prior to FY 2014-15 under the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011, along with the Truing-up for FY 2014-15, in case such
Truing-up is yet to be completed ;

(it) Provisional Truing-up for FY 2015-16 to be carried out under the Maharashtra

Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011 ;

(iti) Aggregate Revenue Requirement for each year of the Control Period under
these Regulations ;

(iv) Revenue from the sale of power at existing Tariffs and charges and projected
revenue gap for each year of the Control Period under these Regulations ;

(v) Proposed category-wise Tariff or Fees and Charges for each year of the Control
Period under these Regulations.

(b) Mid-Term Review Petition shall be filed by November 30, 2017, comprising:—

(i) Truing-up for FY 2015-16 to be carried out under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2011 ;

(i1) Truing-up for FY 2016-17 to be carried out under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015 ;

(iii) Provisional Truing-up for FY 2017-18 to be carried out under the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015 ;

(iv) Revised forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expected revenue from
existing Tariff and charges, expected revenue gap and proposed category-wise Tariff for
the third and fourth year of the Control Period ;

(¢) True-up Petition for the second and third year of the Control Period shall be filed
by November 30th, 2019, comprising :(—

(Z) Truing-up for FY 2017-18 to be carried out under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015 ;

(i1) Truing-up for FY 2018-19 to be carried out under the Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015 ;

(iti) Provisional Truing-up for FY 2019-20 to be carried out under the Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2015:

Provided that, in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be
determined by the Commission till March 31, 2016, the Commission may relax the timelines
for submission of the Multi-Year Tariff Petition, Mid-term Review Petition and Truing-up
Petitions, in case such specific relaxation is sought by such Distribution Licensee:

Provided further that such Deemed Distribution Licensee may be permitted to first file
a Petition for approval of a ceiling or other provisional tariff in its area of supply, followed by
a Petition for approval of Power Purchase Agreement or arrangement, after which the Multi-
Year Tariff Petition may be filed :

Provided also that a Petition may be filed at any time during the Control Period in case
of variation in uncontrollable factors that may result in sudden, steep, and sustained increase
in tariff.

5.2 The Petitioner shall submit separate audited Accounting Statements along with
the Petition for determination of Tariff or Fees and Charges and Truing-up under these
Regulations :

Provided that, in case complete accounting segregation has not been done between the
Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business of a Distribution Licensee, its
Aggregate Revenue Requirement shall be apportioned between the Distribution Wires
Business and Retail Supply Business in accordance with the Allocation Matrix specified in
Part G of these Regulations.
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5.3 Incumbent Distribution Licensees shall have the option of filing separate Petitions
under these Regulations for an area in respect of which the Commission has issued multiple
Distribution Licences :

Provided that each such separate Petition shall contain all necessary details of expenses,
revenue, assets, liabilities, capitalisation, and category-wise tariff to enable the Commission
to determine the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff for each separate area for which
it has been filed ;

Provided further that such expenses, revenue, assets, liabilities, and capitalisation
considered for each such area shall be excluded while submitting the Petition for the remaining
area of supply ;

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the reconciliation statement
for expenses, revenue, assets, liabilities, and capitalisation between the entity as a whole
and each such separate area of supply for which the Distribution Licensee has filed a separate
Petition.

6. Multi-Year Tariff Petition

6.1 The Multi-Year Tariff Petition shall include a forecast of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement and expected revenue from Tariff for each year of the Control Period in the
manner specified in these Regulations, and be accompanied by applicable fees.

6.2 The forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement may be based on assumptions
relating to the behaviour of individual variables during the Control Period, including category-
wise sales and demand projections, power procurement plan, capital investment plan,
financing plan and physical targets, in accordance with guidelines and formats as may be
prescribed by the Commission.

6.3 The capital investment plan shall show, separately, on-going projects that will spill
over into the Control Period, and new projects (with justification) that will commence in the
Control Period but may be completed within or beyond it, for which relevant technical and
commercial details shall be provided.

6.4 The Distribution Licensee shall project the realistic power purchase requirement
from all Generating Stations considered for power purchase based on the Merit Order
Despatch principles, the Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) specified by the Commission
under the relevant Regulations, and the target set, if any, for Energy Efficiency (EE) and
Demand Side Management (DSM) schemes :

Provided that Merit Order Despatch principles shall not apply to purchase of power
from Renewable Energy sources up to the RPO specified by the Commission.

6.5 The forecast of expected revenue from Tariff and charges shall be based on the
following :—

(a) In the case of a Generating Company, estimates of quantum of electricity to be
generated by each Unit/Station for each year of the Control Period ;

(b) Inthe case of a Transmission Licensee, estimate of Aggregate Revenue Requirement
or estimates of transmission capacity allocated to Transmission System Users, as
appropriate, for each year of the Control Period ;

(¢) In the case of a Distribution Licensee, estimates of quantum of electricity to be
supplied to consumers and wheeled on behalf of Distribution System Users for each year
of the Control Period:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit relevant details of category-
wise sales separately for each Distribution Franchisee area, including the Input Energy
and the Input Rate ;

(d) Prevailing Tariff as on the date of filing of the Petition.

6.6 Based on the forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected revenue
from Tariff and charges, the Generating Company or Distribution Licensee or MSLDC shall
submit the proposed Tariff or Fees and Charges, category-wise if applicable, for each year of
the Control Period, that would meet the gap, if any, in the Aggregate Revenue Requirement,
including unrecovered revenue gaps of previous years to the extent proposed to be recovered.
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6.7 Full details supporting the forecast shall be provided, including but not limited to
details of past performance, proposed initiatives for achieving efficiency or productivity gains,
technical studies, contractual arrangements and secondary research, to enable the
Commission to assess the reasonableness of the forecast.

6.8 On receipt of the Petition, the Commission shall either—
(a) issue an Order approving the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff for the
Control Period, subject to such modifications and conditions as it may stipulate ; or
reject the Petition for reasons to be recorded in writing, after giving the Petitioner a
reasonable opportunity of being heard.

7. Specific trajectory for certain variables—

The Commission, while approving the Multi-Year Tariff Petition, may stipulate a trajectory
for certain variables, including but not limited to transmission losses, distribution losses, collection
efficiency, and payment efficiency.

8. Mid-term Review—

8.1 The Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall file a Petition for Mid-term
Review and Truing-up of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Revenue for the Years
2015-16 and 2016-17, and provisional Truing-up for the Year 2017-18, by November 30, 2017:

Provided that the Petition shall include information in such form as may be stipulated
by the Commission, together with the Accounting Statements, extracts of books of account
and such other details, including Cost Accounting Reports or extracts thereof, as it may
require to assess the reasons for and extent of any difference in operational and financial
performance from the approved forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and expected
revenue from Tariff and charges.

8.2 The scope of the Mid-term Performance Review shall be a comparison of the actual
operational and financial performance vis-a-vis the approved forecast for the first two years
of the Control Period ; and revised forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement, expected
revenue from existing Tariff, expected revenue gap, and proposed category-wise Tariffs for
the third and fourth year of the Control Period.

8.3 Upon completion of the Review under Regulation 8.2, the Commission shall attribute
any variations or expected variations in performance, for variables specified under
Regulation 9, to factors within the control of the Petitioner (controllable factors) or to factors
beyond its control (uncontrollable factors) :

Provided that any variations or expected variations in performance, for variables other
than those specified under Regulation 9.1, shall not ordinarily be reviewed by the Commission
during the Control Period and shall be attributed entirely to controllable factors :

Provided further that, where the Petitioner believes, for any variable not specified under
Regulation 9.1, that there is a material variation or expected variation in performance for
any year on account of uncontrollable factors, it may apply to the Commission for inclusion of
such variable.

8.4 Upon completion of the Mid-term Review, the Commission shall pass an order
recording :—

(a) the approved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC on account of controllable factors for the Years 2015-16 and 2016-17 and provisional
Truing-up for the Year 2017-18, and the amount of such gains or such losses that may be
shared in accordance with Regulation 11 ;

(b) the approved aggregate gain or loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC on account of uncontrollable factors for the Years 2015-16 and 2016-17, and
provisional Truing-up for the Year 2017-18, and the amount of such gains or such losses
that were not recovered during the respective years and which may be shared in accordance
with Regulation 10 ;

(c) the approved modifications to the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariffs or

Fees and Charges for the remainder of the Control Period.
AT AR F-Co-2¥
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9. Controllable and uncontrollable factors—

9.1 The “uncontrollable factors” shall comprise the following factors, which were beyond
the control of, and could not be mitigated by the Petitioner, as determined by the Commission :

(a) Force Majeure events ;
(b) Change in law ;

(c) Variation in fuel cost on account of variation in price of primary and/or secondary
fuel prices ;

(d) Variation in sales ;

(e) Variation in the cost of power purchase due to variation in the rate of power purchase
from approved sources, subject to clauses in the power purchase agreement or arrangement
approved by the Commission ;

(f) Variation in market interest rates for long-term loan ; and
(g) Variation in freight rates.

9.2 Variations or expected variations in the performance of the Petitioner, which may
be attributed by the Commission to controllable factors include, but are not limited to the
following :—

(a) Variations in capitalisation on account of time or cost overruns or inefficiencies in
the implementation of a capital expenditure Scheme not attributable to an approved change
in its scope, change in statutory levies or force majeure events ;

(b) Variation in Interest and Finance Charges, Return on Equity, and Depreciation on
account of variation in capitalisation as specified in clause (a) above ;

(c) Variation in technical and commercial losses ;

(d) Variation in performance parameters ;

(e) Variation in amount of interest on working capital ;

(f) Variation in operation and maintenance expenses ;

(g) Variation in Coal transit losses.

10. Mechanism for pass-through of gains or losses on account of uncontrollable
factors—

10.1 The aggregate gain or loss to a Generating Company on account of variation in
cost of fuel from the sources considered in the Tariff Order, including blending ratio of coal
procured from different sources, shall be passed through as an adjustment in its Energy
Charges on a monthly basis, as specified in Regulation 48.6.

10.2 The aggregate gain or loss to a Distribution Licensee on account of variation in
cost of fuel and power purchase, covered under Regulation 9.1, shall be passed through under
the Fuel Adjustment Charge (FAC) component of the Z-factor Charge (Z,, ), as an adjustment
in its Tariff on a monthly basis, as specified in these Regulations and as may be determined
in orders of the Commission passed under these Regulations, and shall be subject to ex-post
facto approval by the Commission on a quarterly basis :

Provided that the Z_,  for the first month of the first year of the Control Period shall
require the prior approval of the Commission, based on prudence check ;

Provided further that the Distribution Licensee shall submit, in the stipulated formats,
details of the variation between expenses incurred and those approved by the Commission,
and the detailed computations and supporting documents as may be required for verification
by the Commission for the first month of the first year of the Control Period, for prior approval
of Z

FAC :

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the details of variation in fuel
costs relating to power generated from own generation Stations and cost of power procured
for the first month of the first year of the Control Period, after completion of the first month.
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10.3 The Z,,, component shall be applicable to the entire sales of a Distribution Licensee
without any exemption to any consumer.

10.4 The Z,, . component shall be computed and charged on the basis of actual variation
in cost of fuel and power purchase relating to power procured during any month subsequent
to such costs being incurred, in accordance with these Regulations, and shall not be computed
on the basis of estimated or expected variations in fuel costs.

10.5 After approval by the Commission of the Z_, , for the first month of the first year of
the Control Period, the Distribution Licensee shall submit such details, in the stipulated
formats, of the variation between expenses incurred and the figures approved, and the detailed
computations and supporting documents as may be required for verification by the
Commission for the subsequent months of the Control Period for post-facto approval of Z,, :

Provided that the first quarter of the first year of the Control Period shall include the
first month of the first year of the Control Period, for which prior approval of Z,, . is required :

Provided further that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the details of variation in
fuel costs relating to power generated from its own generation stations and cost of power
procured for the subsequent months of the Control Period on a quarterly basis within 60 days
of the close of each quarter, for-post facto approval :

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the Z_, , levied to all consumers
for the preceding quarter vis-a-vis the Z,, . recoverable, along with the detailed computations
and supporting documents as may be required, for verification by the Commission :

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall provide details of the Commission’s

approval of levy of Z, . on its internet website.

10.6 The formula for computation of the FAC component of Z-factor Charge is as follows:--

Z,,.(Rs crore) = F+C+B,
Where,
Z,,. = Z-factor Charge component for FAC ;

F = Change in fuel cost of own generation and cost of power purchase as covered
under Regulation 9.1 ;

C = Carrying Cost for any under recovery/over recovery, computed at the Base
Rate prevailing at the beginning of the month, plus 150 basis points ;

B = Adjustment factor for over-recovery/under-recovery.
10.7 The calculation for FAC to be charged for the month “n” is as follows :(—

Zyy , Rscrore)=F ,+C ,+B_ ,
Where,
F_, = Change in fuel cost of own generation and cost of power purchase for the

month “n-2”, and shall be computed as
F (Rs. Crore) = Ay .. + Apcpp,
Where,

AFC,Gen = Change in fuel cost of own generation, to be computed based on the
directives and norms approved by the Commission, including heat
rate, auxiliary consumption, etc. ;

AFC’PP = Change in variable and/or fixed cost of power procured from other
sources, which would be allowed to the extent it satisfies the criteria
prescribed in these Regulations and the prevailing Tariff Order, and
subject to applicable norms ;

C.. = Carrying cost for any under recovery/over recovery for the month “n-2”;
B , (Rs. Crore) = Z,,..,-R_,

Where :

B_, = Adjustment factor for over-recovery / under-recovery for the month “n-2” ;
Zions = Ly for the month “n-47;

R, = Z,,for the month “n-4” actually recovered in the month “n-2” :

T TR h-C0—¥ 3
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10.8 The total Z,, recoverable as per the formula specified above shall be recovered
from the actual sales in terms of “Rupees per kilowatt-hour” :

Provided that, in case of unmetered consumers, the Z,, . shall be recoverable based on
estimated sales to such consumers, computed in accordance with such methodology as may
be stipulated by the Commission :

Provided further that, where the actual distribution losses of the Distribution Licensee
exceed the level approved by the Commission, the amount of Z,, , corresponding to the excess
distribution losses (in kWh terms) shall be deducted from the total Z,, recoverable.

10.9 The Z,,, per kWh for a particular Tariff category/sub-category/consumption slab
shall be computed as per the following formula :—

Z (Rs/kWh) = [Z.,, . / (Metered sales + Unmetered consumption estimates + Excess

FAC Cat FAC
distribution losses)] * k * 10,
Where :
Zirc car = Ly component for a particular Tariff category/sub-category/consumption slab

in ‘Rupees per kWh’ terms ;
k = Average Billing Rate / ACOS ;

Average Billing Rate = Average Billing Rate for a particular Tariff category/sub-category/
consumption slab under consideration in ‘Rupees per kWh’ as approved by the Commission
in the Tariff Order :

Provided that the Average Billing Rate for the unmetered consumers shall be based on
the estimated sales to such consumers, computed in accordance with such methodology as
may be stipulated by the Commission :

ACOS = Average Cost of Supply in ‘Rupees per kWh’ as approved for recovery by the
Commission in the Tariff Order :

Provided that the monthly ZFAC shall not exceed 20% of the variable component of
Tariff or such other ceiling as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time :

Provided further that any under-recovery in the Z , , on account of such ceiling shall be
carried forward and shall be recovered by the Distribution Licensee over such future period
as may be directed by the Commission.

10.10 The consequential impact of decisions of higher Courts or Tribunals or Review
Orders passed by the Commission on the Generating Company or Licensee shall be passed
through under the ‘Other Uncontrollable Cost’ component of the Z-factor Charge (Z ) as an
adjustment in the Tariff on a yearly basis for the second and fourth Years of the Control
Period, as may be determined in the Order of the Commission passed under these Regulations.

10.11 The impact of change in the inter-State and intra-State transmission charges
payable by the Distribution Licensee for the second and fourth Years of the Control Period
shall be passed through under the Z, , as an adjustment in the Tariff of the Distribution
Licensee on a yearly basis, as may be determined in the Order of the Commission passed
under these Regulations.

10.12 The Z,, shall be determined based on a Petition filed by the concerned Generating
Company or Licensee.

10.13 The consequential impact of decisions of higher Courts or Tribunals or Review
Orders passed by the Commission on the Generating Company or Licensee, and the impact
of change in the inter-State and intra-State transmission charges payable by the Distribution
Licensee, for the first and third Years of the Control Period shall be addressed in the Multi-
Year Tariff Order and Mid-term Review Order, respectively.
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11. Mechanism for sharing of gains or losses on account of controllable factors—

11.1 The approved aggregate gain to the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
on account of controllable factors shall be dealt with in the following manner :(—

(a) Two-third of the amount of such gain shall be passed on as a rebate in Tariff over
such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission under Regulation 8.4 ;

(b) The balance amount of such gain shall be retained by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC.

11.2 The approved aggregate loss to the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
on account of controllable factors shall be dealt with in the following manner :—

(a) One-third of the amount of such loss may be passed on as an additional charge in
Tariff over such period as may be stipulated in the Order of the Commission under
Regulation 8.4 ;

(b) The balance amount of such loss shall be absorbed by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC.

PART- B : PROCEDURE FOR DETERMINATION OF TARIFF
12. Filing of Petition for determination of Tariff—

12.1 A Petition for determination of Tariff shall be filed in such form and in such manner
as specified in these Regulations, and be accompanied by applicable fees.

12.2 The proceedings for determination of Tariff shall be undertaken by the Commission
in accordance with the Regulations governing its Conduct of Business.

12.3 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Regulations, the Commission shall
have the authority, either suo motu or on a Petition filed by the Generating Company or
Licensee or MSLDC, to determine its Tariff or Fees and Charges, including terms and
conditions thereof.

13. Determination of Generation Tariff—
13.1 Existing Generating Station

13.1.1 Where the Commission has, at any time prior to April 1, 2016, approved a power
purchase agreement or arrangement between a Generating Company and a Distribution
Licensee or has adopted the Tariff contained therein for supply of electricity from an existing
generating Unit/Station, then the Tariff for supply of electricity by such Generating Company
to the Distribution Licensee shall be in accordance with the Tariff mentioned in such power
purchase agreement or arrangement for such period as so approved or adopted by the
Commission.

13.1.2 Where, as on April 1, 2016, the power purchase agreement or arrangement between
a Generating Company and a Distribution Licensee for supply of electricity from an existing
generating Unit/Station or the Tariff therein has not been approved by the Commission, or
where there is no power purchase agreement or arrangement, the supply of electricity by
such Generating Company to the Distribution Licensee after April 1, 2016 shall be in
accordance with a power purchase agreement approved by the Commission in accordance
with Part C of these Regulations :

Provided that the Petition for approval of such power purchase agreement or
arrangement shall be filed by the Distribution Licensee with the Commission within three
months from the date of notification of these Regulations :

Provided further that the supply of electricity shall be allowed to continue under the
present agreement or arrangement until such time as the Commission approves such power
purchase agreement, and shall be discontinued forthwith if the Commission rejects it, for
reasons to be recorded in writing.

13.2 New Generating Stations

The Tariff for the supply of electricity by a Generating Company to a Distribution Licensee
from a new generating Unit/Station shall be in accordance with the Tariff determined in
accordance with Part E of these Regulations.
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13.3 Own Generating Stations

13.3.1 Where a Distribution Licensee also undertakes the Business of generation of
electricity, the transfer price at which electricity is supplied by its Generation Business to
its Retail Supply Business shall be determined by the Commission:

Provided that the Commission shall have regard to the terms and conditions specified
in Part E of these Regulations in determining the transfer price for such supply.

13.3.2 The Distribution Licensee shall maintain a separate record for its Generation
Business and an Allocation Statement so as to enable the Commission to identify the direct
and indirect costs relating to such Business and return on equity capital accruing to it.

13.4 The Distribution Licensee shall submit, along with the separate Petition for
determination of Tariff for retail supply of electricity, the information required under Part
E of these Regulations relating to the Generation Business.

14. Determination of Tariff and Fees and Charges for Transmission, Distribution
Wires Business, Retail Supply Business, and MSLDC—

14.1 The Commission shall determine the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff
for Transmission Licensees, Distribution Wires Business, Retail Supply Business, and Fees
and Charges for MSLDC, upon consideration of a Petition filed by the Licensee or MSLDC,
as the case may be, in accordance with the procedure contained in this Regulation.

14.2 The Commission shall determine the Tariff for the Licensee or Fees and Charges
for the MSLDC for —

(a) Transmission of electricity, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained
in Part F of these Regulations ;

(b) Distribution Wires Business, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained
in Part G of these Regulations ;

(c) Retail Supply Business, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in
Part H of these Regulations ; and

(d) MSLDC, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in Part I of these
Regulations.

14.3 The Petitioner shall provide, as part of its Petition and in such form as may be
stipulated by the Commission, details of computation of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement
and expected revenue from Tariff and charges, and thereafter shall furnish such further
information or particulars or documents as the Commission or its Secretary or any Officer
designated for the purpose by the Commission may reasonably require to assess such
calculation :

Provided that the Petition shall be accompanied, where relevant, by a detailed Tariff
revision proposal showing category-wise Tariffs and how such revision would meet the gap,
if any, in Aggregate Revenue Requirement for each year of the Control Period :

Provided further that the Commission may stipulate different formats for details to be
submitted by the Petitioner as it may reasonably require for assessing the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement and for determining the Tariff :

Provided also that the Commission may conduct a Technical Validation Session prior to
admission of the Petition.

14.4 The Petitioner shall submit a duly completed draft Public Notice for the
Commission’s approval as per the stipulated template, for publication as and when intimated
by the Commission.

14.5 Upon receipt of a complete Petition accompanied by the requisite information,
particulars and documents in compliance with the requirements specified in this Regulation,
the Petition shall be admitted, and the Commission or its Secretary or designated Officer
shall intimate to the Petitioner that it is ready for publication.
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14.6 The Petitioner shall, within three days of an intimation given to it in accordance
with Regulation 14.5, publish a Public Notice in at least two English and two Marathi language
daily newspapers widely circulated in the area to which the Petition pertains, outlining the
proposed Tariff, and such other matters as may be stipulated by the Commission, and inviting
suggestions and objections from the public :

Provided that the Petitioner shall make available a hard copy of the complete Petition
to any person, at such locations and at such rates as may be stipulated by the Commission :

Provided further that the Petitioner shall also provide on its internet website, in text-
searchable format or in downloadable spreadsheet format and showing detailed computations,
the Petition filed before the Commission along with all regulatory filings, information,
particulars and documents in the manner stipulated by the Commission :

Provided also that the web link to the information mentioned in the second proviso to
this Regulation shall be easily accessible, archived for downloading and be prominently
displayed on the Petitioner’s internet website :

Provided also that the Petitioner may be exempted by the Commission from providing
any such information, particulars or documents as are confidential in nature.

Explanation.— For the purpose of this Regulation, the term “downloadable spreadsheet
format” shall mean one (or multiple, linked) spreadsheet software files containing all
assumptions, formulae, calculations, software macros and outputs forming the basis of the
Petition.

14.7 The Petitioner shall furnish to the Commission all such books and records (or
certified true copies thereof), including the Accounting Statements, operational and cost
data, as may be required by it for determination of Tariff.

14.8 The Commission may, if it considers necessary, make or cause to be made available
to any person such information as has been provided by the Petitioner to it, including abstracts
of books and records (or certified true copies thereof) on such terms and conditions as may be
specified in Regulations of the Commission governing its Conduct of Business.

14.9 The Commission may direct the Generating Company or Licensee to submit such
performance-related data as it may stipulate, with the Petitions to be filed under these
Regulations.

14.10 The procedural aspects pertaining to the Petition contained in this
Regulation shall apply only to such an extent as may be required by the Commission having
regard to the circumstances of an individual case, to,—

(a) a Petition filed by a Transmission Licensee under Section 36 of the Act ;
(b) a Petition filed by a Generating Company or Licensee under Section 64 of the Act ;
(c) a Petition filed by the MSLDC under section 32 of the Act.

15. Tariff Order—

15.1 The Commission shall, within one hundred and twenty days from receipt of a
complete Petition, and after considering all suggestions and objections received from the
public :(—

(a) issue a Tariff Order accepting the Petition with such modifications or conditions
as may be stipulated in that Order ;

(b) reject the Petition for reasons to be recorded in writing if such Petition is not in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder
or any other provisions of law, after giving the Petitioner a reasonable opportunity of
being heard.

15.2 The Petitioner shall publish the Tariff approved by the Commission in at least
two English and two Marathi language daily newspapers having wide circulation in its Licence
area, provide the approved Tariff schedule on its internet website, and make available for
sale a booklet containing such Tariff to any person upon payment of reasonable reproduction
charges :
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Provided that, where the Petitioner is a Generating Company, such publication shall be
made in newspapers widely circulated in the area of supply of the Distribution Licensee to
whom the electricity is proposed to be supplied in terms of the Tariff Order, and shall also be
provided on the internet website of that Distribution Licensee.

15.3 The Tariff so published shall be in force from the date stipulated in the Order and
shall, unless amended or revised, continue to be in force for such period as may be stipulated
therein.

16. Adherence to Tariff Order

16.1 No Tariff or part of any Tariff may ordinarily be amended more frequently than
once in a year, except in respect of any changes expressly permitted under Z-factor Charge
as specified in Regulation 10.

16.2 If any Generating Company or Licensee recovers a price or charge exceeding the
Tariff determined under Section 62 of the Act and in accordance with these Regulations, the
excess amount shall be payable to the person who has paid such price or charge, along with
interest equivalent to the Bank Rate declared by the Reserve Bank of India prevailing during
the relevant period, without prejudice to any other liability to which such Generating Company
or Licensee may be subject :

Provided that such interest payable to any party shall not be allowed to be recovered
through the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Generating Company or Licensee :

Provided also that the Generating Company or Licensee shall maintain separate details
of such interest paid or payable by it, and shall submit them to the Commission along with its
Petition.

16.3 The Generating Company or Licensee shall submit periodic returns as may be
required by the Commission, containing operational and cost data to enable it to monitor the
implementation of its Order.

PART C : POWER PROCUREMENT
17. Applicability—
The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to power procurement by a Distribution

Licensee from a Generating Company or Trading Licensee or Distribution Licensee or from any
other source through agreement or arrangement for purchase of power for distribution and supply
within the State.

18. Power procurement guidelines—

18.1 The Distribution Licensee shall undertake its power procurement during the year
in accordance with the power procurement plan for the Control Period, which may include
long-term, medium-term and short-term power procurement, approved by the Commission
in accordance with these Regulations.

18.2 A Distribution Licensee shall follow the guidelines contained in this Part with
respect to—

(a) Procurement of power under any arrangement or agreement with a term or
duration exceeding seven years but not exceeding twenty five years (i.e., long-term power
procurement) ;

(b) Procurement of power under any arrangement or agreement with a term or
duration exceeding one year but not exceeding seven years (i.e., medium-term power
procurement) ; and

(¢) Procurement of power under any arrangement or agreement with a term or
duration less than or equal to one year (i.e., short-term power procurement).

19. Power procurement plan—

19.1 The Distribution Licensee shall prepare a plan for procurement of power to serve
the demand for electricity in its area of supply and submit such plan to the Commission for
approval :

Provided that such power procurement plan shall be submitted for the Control Period

commencing on April 1, 2016, along with the Petition for determination of Tariff for the Control
Period from April 1st, 2016 to March 31st, 2020, in accordance with Part A of these Regulations :
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Provided further that such power procurement plan may include long-term, medium-
term and short-term sources of power procurement, in accordance with these Regulations.

19.2 The power procurement plan of the Distribution Licensee shall comprise the
following :—

(a) A quantitative forecast of the unrestricted base load and peak load for electricity
within its area of supply ;

(b) An estimate of the quantities of electricity supply from the identified sources of
power purchase, including own generation if any ;

(c) An estimate of availability of power to meet the base load and peak load
requirement :

Provided that such estimate of demand and supply shall be on month-wise basis in
Mega-Watt (MW) as well as expressed in Million Units (MU) ;

(d) Standards to be maintained with regard to quality and reliability of supply, in
accordance with the relevant Regulations of the Commission ;

(e) Measures proposed for energy conservation, energy efficiency, and Demand Side
Management ;

(f) The requirement for new sources of power procurement, including augmentation
of own generation capacity, if any, and identified new sources of supply, based on (a) to (e)
above ;

(g) The sources of power, quantities and cost estimates for such procurement :

Provided that the forecast or estimates contained in the long-term procurement plan
shall be separately stated for peak and off-peak periods, in terms of quantities of power to be
procured (in MU) and maximum demand (in MW) :

Provided further that the forecast or estimates for the Control Period from FY 2016-17
to FY 2019-20 shall be prepared for each month over the Control Period :

Provided also that the long-term procurement plan shall be a cost-effective plan based
on available information regarding costs of various sources of supply.

Explanation.—For the purpose of this Regulation, the term “peak period” shall mean
such block of three or more continuous hours during a twenty-four hour period representing
maximum power demand for the Distribution Licensee.

19.3 The forecast or estimate shall be prepared using forecasting techniques based on
past data and reasonable assumptions regarding the future :

Provided that the forecast or estimate shall take into account factors such as overall
economic growth, consumption growth of electricity-intensive sectors, advent of competition
in the electricity sector, trends in captive power, impact of loss reduction initiatives,
improvement in Generating Station Plant Load Factors and other relevant factors.

19.4 Where the Commission has specified a percentage of the total consumption of
electricity in the area of a Distribution Licensee to be purchased from co-generation or
renewable sources of energy, the power procurement plan shall include the plan for
procurement from such sources upto the specified level.

19.5 The Distribution Licensee shall forward a copy of its power procurement plan to
the State Transmission Utility for verification of its consistency with the transmission system
plan for the intra-State Transmission System, prepared in accordance with the Regulations
of the Commission Governing Transmission Open Access :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall also consult the State Transmission Utility
at the time of preparation of the power procurement plan, to ensure consistency of such plan
with the transmission system plan.

19.6 The Commission shall approve the power procurement plan for the Control Period
as part of its Order on the MYT Petition.
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19.7 The Distribution Licensee may, as a result of additional information not previously
known or available to it at the time of submission of the procurement plan under Regulation
19.1, apply for modification in the power procurement plan for the remainder of the Control
Period, as part of its Petition for Mid-term Performance Review under Regulation 8.

19.8 The Commission may, as a result of additional information not previously known
or available to the Commission at the time of approval of the procurement plan under
Regulation 19.6, if it deems appropriate, suo motu or on a Petition filed by the Distribution
Licensee, modify the procurement plan of the Distribution Licensee for the remainder of the
Control Period, as part of the Mid-term Review.

19.9 The Distribution Licensee shall also submit the demand-supply position on an
indicative basis and broad power procurement plan for the ten-year period commencing from
April 1, 2016, indicating the various sources of power purchase and mix of long/medium/
short term power purchase, and steps proposed to optimise the power purchase cost over
that period, along with its Petition for determination of Tariff for the Control Period from
April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2020, in accordance with Part A of these Regulations.

Approval of long-term/medium-term power purchase agreement/arrangement—

20.1 Every long-term/medium-term agreement or arrangement for power procurement,
including on a Standby basis, by a Distribution Licensee from a Generating Company or
Licensee or from another source of supply, and any change to an existing agreement or
arrangement shall come into effect only with the prior approval of the Commission :

Provided that the prior approval of the Commission shall not be required for purchase
of power from Renewable Energy sources at the generic/preferential tariff determined by
the Commission for meeting its Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO).

20.2 The Petition for approval of Power Purchase Agreement or arrangement shall
include the power procurement plan for its duration.

20.3 The Petitioner shall submit a duly completed draft Public Notice for the
Commission’s approval as per the stipulated template, for publication as and when intimated
by the Commission.

20.4 Upon receipt of a complete Petition accompanied by the requisite information,
particulars and documents in compliance with the requirements specified in this Regulation,
the Petition shall be admitted and the Commission or its Secretary or designated Officer
shall intimate to the Petitioner that the Petition is ready for publication.

20.5 The Petitioner shall, within three days of an intimation given to it in accordance
with Regulation 20.4, publish a Public Notice, in at least two English and two Marathi language
daily newspapers widely circulated in the area to which the Petition pertains, outlining the
salient features of the proposed agreement or arrangement for power procurement and the
impact on the power procurement cost and Tariff, and such other matters as may be stipulated
by the Commission, and inviting suggestions and objections from the public :

Provided that the Petitioner shall make available a hard copy of the complete Petition
to any person at such locations and at such rates as may be stipulated by the Commission ;

Provided further that the Petitioner shall also provide the Petition filed before the
Commission along with all regulatory filings, information, particulars and documents in the
manner stipulated by the Commission on its internet website :

Provided also that the web-link to the information mentioned in the second proviso to
this Regulation shall be easily accessible, archived for downloading and shall be prominently
displayed on the Petitioner’s internet website :

Provided also that the Petitioner may be exempted by the Commission from providing
any such information, particulars or documents as are confidential in nature.
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20.6 The Commission shall consider a Petition for approval of power procurement
agreement or arrangement having regard to the approved power procurement plan of the
Distribution Licensee and the following factors :—

(a) Requirement of power procurement under the approved power procurement plan ;

(b) Adherence to a transparent process of bidding, either in accordance with guidelines
issued by the Central Government under Section 63 of the Act or otherwise ;

(c) Adherence to the terms and conditions for determination of Tariff specified under
Part E of these Regulations ;

(d) Competitiveness of the Tariff vis-a-vis the Tariff prevalent in the market and/or
Tariff discovered through competitive bidding under Section 63 of the Act or otherwise :
Provided that the Distribution Licensee may seek prior approval of the bidding

documents for competitive bidding, if proposed to be undertaken other than under section
63 of the Act :

Provided further that the Commission may prescribe guidelines for such bidding
process ;

(e) Availability (or expected availability) of capacity in the intra-State transmission
system for evacuation and supply of power procured under the agreement or arrangement ;

(f) Need to promote co-generation and generation of electricity from renewable sources
of energy.

20.7 Upon completion of its consideration of the power procurement agreement or
arrangement, the Commission shall—
(a) issue an Order approving the power procurement agreement or arrangement,
subject to such modifications and conditions as it may stipulate ; or
(b) reject the Petition for reasons to be recorded in writing, after giving the Petitioner
an opportunity to be heard.

21. Additional power procurement—

21.1 The Distribution Licensee may undertake additional power procurement during
the year, over and above the power procurement plan for the Control Period approved by the
Commission, in accordance with this Regulation.

21.2 Where there has been an unanticipated increase in the demand for electricity or a
shortfall or failure in the supply of electricity from any approved source of supply during the
Year, the Distribution Licensee may enter into additional agreement or arrangement for
procurement of power.

21.3 Any variation, during the first or second block of six months of a Year, in the quantum
or cost of power procured, including from a source other than a previously approved source,
that is expected to be in excess of five per cent of that approved by the Commission, shall
require its prior approval :

Provided that the five per cent limit shall not apply to variation in the cost of power
procured on account of changes in the price of fuel for own generation or the fixed or variable
cost of power purchase that is allowed to be recovered in accordance with Regulation 10.

21.4 Where the Distribution Licensee has identified a new short-term source of supply
from which power can be procured at a Tariff that reduces its approved total power
procurement cost, it may enter into a short-term power procurement agreement or
arrangement with such supplier without the prior approval of the Commission.

21.5 The Distribution Licensee may enter into a short-term arrangement or agreement
for procurement of power without the prior approval of the Commission when faced with
emergency conditions that threaten the stability of the distribution system, or when directed
to do so by the MSLDC to prevent grid failure.

21.6 Within fifteen days from the date of entering into an agreement or arrangement
for short-term power procurement for which prior approval is not required, the Distribution
Licensee shall submit to the Commission its details, including the quantum, Tariff
computations, duration, supplier particulars, method of supplier selection and such other
details as the Commission may require so to assess that the conditions specified in this
Regulation have been complied with.
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21.7 Where the Commission has reasonable grounds to believe that the agreement or
arrangement entered into by the Distribution Licensee does not meet the criteria specified
in Regulations 21.2 to 21.5, it may disallow any increase in the total cost of power procurement
over the approved level arising therefrom or any loss incurred by the Distribution Licensee
as a result, from being passed through to consumers.

PART D : FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES
22. Financial Prudence—

22.1 The Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall manage its finances in an
optimum and prudent manner.

22.2 In determining the Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff of the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC, the Commission shall assess the financial prudence
exercised with regard to the following factors :—

(a) revenue ;
(b) revenue expenditure ;
(c) capital expenditure :

Provided that the Commission may disallow a part of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement,
as an efficiency measure, if it finds the exercise of such prudence to have been deficient.

22.3 The financial prudence with respect to revenue shall be assessed in terms of the
following parameters :—

(a) whether categorywise sales projections are based on realistic estimates, and
adequate justification has been provided for any anomalous increase in sales projected by
the Distribution Licensee ;

(b) billing efficiency measured as a percentage of the units billed by the Generating
Company or Licensee to the total units injected into the transmission or distribution system,
as the case may be ;

(c) collection efficiency measured as a percentage of the amount collected by the
Generating Company or Licensee to the total amount billed ;

(d) reduction in arrears receivable from Beneficiaries/Consumers ;

(e) percentage of metered consumers and metered consumption out of the total, in
the case of Distribution Licensee ;

() percentage of bills raised on the basis of assessed consumption out of the total
number of bills raised by the Distribution Licensee ;

(g) whether revenue collected is in line with the projections made in the Petition and
approved by the Commission.

22.4 The financial prudence with respect to revenue expenditure shall be assessed in
terms of the following parameters :—

(a) monitoring of the revenue expenditure as against the revenue earned, such that
the expenses and payment obligations of the Generating Company or Licensee to other
entities are met in a timely manner ;

(b) mechanism put in place for monitoring adherence to the approved revenue
expenditure, including schedule of interest payments for long-term loans and working
capital ;

(c) transparent method of power procurement, with the objective of optimising the
power purchase expenses, as specified in Regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 ;

(d) optimum purchase of power considering factors such as requirement of power,
Merit Order Despatch, potential for earning additional net revenue based on the differential
between the rate for purchase of power from different sources and the market rate for sale
of surplus power, if any :
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Provided that, in case the excess of revenue expenditure over the revenue earned exceeds
5%, the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit detailed justification for the mismatch
along with its Petition for True-up, including a comparison of the revenue expenditure and
revenue estimated in the Petition with the amounts approved by the Commission and with
the actual amount of revenue expenditure and revenue, under key heads :

Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit a detailed cash
flow statement for the respective Business showing the various sources of revenue, the actual
amount of cash collected against the amount billed to different consumer categories for sale
of electricity, the comparison of the actual revenue expenditure and capital expenditure
with the projected and approved revenue expenditure and capital expenditure :

Provided also that, in case its payment obligations to other entities are not regularly
met, the Generating Company or Licensee shall provide justification for such shortfall with
reference to its cash flow statement.

22.5 The financial prudence with respect to capital expenditure shall be assessed in
terms of the following parameters :—

(a) mechanism put in place for monitoring the physical progress of projects with respect
to their original schedule ;

(b) optimum drawal of loans in accordance with the physical progress of the capital
expenditure schemes, and efficient utilisation of such loans ;

(c) in case the actual capital expenditure or capitalisation exceeds 10% of that approved
by the Commission, the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit detailed justification
for such excess along with its Petition for True-up ;

(d) in case any scheme has not been commenced during the year despite the
Commission’s approval, detailed justification shall be submitted along with the Petition
for True-up.

23. Capital Cost and capital structure—
23.1 Capital cost for a capital investment Project shall include :(—

(a) the expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred, including interest during
construction and financing charges, as admitted by the Commission after prudence check ;

(b) capitalised initial spares subject to the ceiling rates specified in this Regulation ;

(c) expenses incurred by the Licensee on obtaining right of way, as admitted by the
Commission after prudence check ;

(d) additional capitalisation determined under Regulation 24 ;

(e) any gain or loss on account of foreign exchange rate variation pertaining to the loan
amount availed up to the date of commercial operation, as admitted by the Commission
after prudence check :

Provided that any gain or loss on account of foreign exchange rate variation pertaining
to the loan amount availed up to the date of commercial operation shall be adjusted only
against the debt component of the capital cost :

Provided further that the capital cost of the assets forming part of the Project but not
put to use or not in use, shall be excluded from the capital cost :

Provided also that the Generating Company or Transmission Licensee shall submit
documentary evidence in support of its claim of assets being put to use :

Provided also that any capital expenditure incurred based on the specific requirement
of a Generating Company or Licensee shall be substantiated with necessary documentary
evidence of such request and undertaking received.

23.2 The capital cost admitted by the Commission after prudence check shall form the
basis for determination of Tariff :

Provided that prudence check may include scrutiny of the reasonableness of the capital
expenditure, financing plan including the choice and manner of funding, interest during
construction, use of efficient technology, cost over-run and time over-run, and such other
matters as may be considered appropriate by the Commission for determination of Tariff.
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23.3 The approved capital cost shall be considered for determination of Tariff, and any
escalation in the capital cost for which sufficient justification is provided may be considered
by the Commission subject to prudence check and in accordance with the conditions and
methodology specified in Regulation 38 :

Provided that, in case the actual capital cost is lower than the approved capital cost, the
actual capital cost, subject to prudence check and in accordance with the conditions and
methodology specified in Regulation 38 for the capital cost of new generating Unit/Station,
shall be considered for determination of Tariff of the Generating Company.

23.4 The actual capital expenditure on a scheme as on COD for the original scope of
work based on audited accounts of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC or Project,
as the case may be, shall be considered subject to prudence check by the Commission.

23.5 The Commission may approve, for each year of the Control Period, an additional
amount equivalent to 20% of the total capital expenditure approved for that year, towards
planned or unplanned capital expenditure that is yet to be approved by the Commission.

23.6 The amount of capitalisation against non-DPR schemes for any Year shall not
exceed 20% or such other limit as may be stipulated by the Commission through an Order, of
the amount of capitalisation approved against DPR schemes for that Year :

Provided that the Commission may allow capitalisation against non-DPR schemes for
any Year in excess of 20% or such other limit as may have been stipulated by the Commission
through Order, on a request made by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC.

23.7 Where the power purchase agreement or bulk power transmission agreement
provides for a ceiling on capital cost, the capital cost to be considered shall not exceed such
ceiling.

23.8 The revenue earned from sale of infirm power prior to the COD in excess of fuel
cost as specified under Regulation 42, shall be adjusted against the Capital Cost.

23.9 The capital cost may include initial spares capitalised as a percentage of the Plant
and Machinery cost up to the cut-off date, subject to the following ceiling norms :—

(a) Coal based/lignite fired Generating Stations .. .. 4.0% ;
(b) Gas turbine/combined cycle Generating Stations .. .. 4.0% ;
(c) Hydel Generating Stations, including pumped storage .. .. 4.0% ;

hydel generating Stations
(d) Transmission System and Distribution System,—

(1) Transmission Line and Distribution Line .. .. 1.0% ;
(i1) Transmission Sub-Station and Distribution Sub-Station .. .. 4.0% ;
(green-field)
(ii1) Transmission Sub-Station (brown-field) .. .. 6.0% ;
(iv) Series compensation devices and HVDC Sub-Station .. .. 4.0% ;
(v) Gas Insulated Sub-Station (GIS) .. .. 5.0%;
(vi) Communication System . 3.5%.

23.10 The impact of revaluation of assets shall be permitted prov1ded it does not result
in increase in Tariff of the Generating Company or Licensee :

Provided that any benefit from such revaluation shall be passed on to persons sharing
the capacity charge in case of a Generating Company, to long-term intra-State open access
customers of the Transmission Licensee or Distribution Licensee or retail supply consumers
of Distribution Licensees, at the time of MYT Tariff determination or Mid-term Review or
final Truing-up for the Control Period, as the case may be.

23.11 Any expenditure on replacement, renovation and modernisation or extension of
life of old fixed assets, as applicable to Generating Companies or Licensees, shall be considered
after writing off the net value of such replaced assets from the original capital cost, and shall
be computed as follows :—
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Net Value of Replaced Assets = OCRA — AD ;

Where ;
OCRA : Original Capital Cost of Replaced Assets ;
AD : Accumulated depreciation pertaining to the Replaced Assets :

Provided that, in case the original capital cost of the replaced asset is not available for
any reason, it shall be considered by the Commission on a case to case basis :

Provided further that the amount of insurance proceeds received, if any, towards damage
to any asset requiring its replacement shall be first adjusted towards outstanding actual or
normative loan ; and the balance amount, if any, shall be utilised to reduce the capital cost of
such replaced asset, and any further balance amount shall be considered as Non-Tariff Income.

Explanation.— For the purpose of this Regulation, the term ‘renovation and
modernisation’ shall have the same meaning as in section 80 IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

24. Additional capitalisation—
24.1 The capital expenditure, actually incurred or projected to be incurred, on the

following counts within the original scope of work, after the date of commercial operation
and up to the cut-off date, may be admitted by the Commission subject to prudence check :—

() Undischarged liabilities recognized to be payable at a future date ;
(i) Works deferred for execution ;

(iti) Procurement of initial capital spares within the original scope of work, in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 23 ;

(iv) Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of the order or decree
of a court of law ; and

(v) Change in law or compliance of any existing law :

Provided that the details of works included in the original scope of work along with estimates
of expenditure, liabilities recognized to be payable at a future date and the works deferred for
execution shall be submitted along with the Petition for determination of final Tariff after the
date of commercial operation of the Generating Unit/Station or Transmission system.

24.2 The capital expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred in respect of a new
Project on the following counts within the original scope of work after the cut-off date may be
admitted by the Commission, subject to prudence check :—

() Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of the order or decree
of a court of law ;

(i) Change in law or compliance of any existing law ;

(iii) Deferred works relating to ash pond or ash handling system in the original scope
of work ; and

(iv) Any liability for works executed prior to the cut-off date, after prudence check of
the details of such undischarged liability, total estimated cost of package, reasons for such
withholding of payment and release of such payments, etc.

24.3 The capital expenditure, in respect of existing generating Station or the
transmission system including communication system, incurred or projected to be incurred
on the following counts after the cut-off date, may be admitted by the Commission, subject to
prudence check :—

(i) Liabilities to meet award of arbitration or for compliance of the order or decree of
a court of law ;

(zi) Change in law or compliance of any existing law ;

(ii1) Any expenses to be incurred on account of need for higher security and safety of
the plant as advised or directed by relevant Government Agencies ;

(iv) Deferred works relating to ash pond or ash handling system in the original scope
of work ;
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(v) Any liability for works executed prior to the cut-off date, after prudence check of
the details of such undischarged liability, total estimated cost of package, reasons for such
withholding of payment and release of such payments, etc. ;

(vi) Any liability for works admitted by the Commission after the cut-off date to the
extent of discharge of such liabilities by actual payments ;

(vii) Any additional capital expenditure which has become necessary for efficient
operation :

Provided that the claim shall be substantiated with the technical justification duly
supported by documentary evidence like test results carried out by an independent agency
in case of deterioration of assets, damage caused by natural calamities, obsolescence of
technology, up-gradation of capacity for the technical reason such as increase in fault level ;

(viit) In case of hydel generating stations, any expenditure, which has become necessary
on account of damage caused by natural calamities (but not due to flooding of power house
attributable to the negligence of the Generating Company) and due to geological reasons
after adjusting the proceeds from any insurance scheme, and expenditure incurred due to
any additional work which has become necessary for successful and efficient plant operation ;

(ix) In case of transmission system, any additional expenditure on items such as relays,
control and instrumentation, computer system, power line carrier communication, batteries,
tower strengthening, communication equipment, emergency restoration system, insulators
cleaning infrastructure, which has become necessary for successful and efficient operation
of transmission system ; and

(x) Any capital expenditure found justified after prudence check necessitated on
account of modifications required or done in fuel receiving system arising due to non-
materialisation of coal supply corresponding to full coal linkage in respect of thermal
generating Station as a result of circumstances not within the control of the generating
Station :

Provided that any expenditure, which has been claimed under Renovation and
Modernisation or repairs and maintenance under O and M expenses, shall not be claimed
under this Regulation.

24.4 Impact of additional capitalisation on Tariff, if any, shall be considered during
Mid-term Review or Tariff determination for the next Control Period as the case may be.

25. Consumer Contribution, Deposit Work, Grant and Capital Subsidy—

25.1 The expenses on the following categories of works carried out by the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall be treated as specified in Regulation 25.2 :—

(a) Works undertaken from funds, partly or fully, provided by the users, which are in
the nature of deposit works or consumer contribution works ;

(b) Capital works undertaken with grants or capital subsidy received from the State
and Central Governments ;

(c) Other works undertaken with funding received without any obligation of repayment
and with no interest costs.

25.2 The expenses on such capital works shall be treated as follows :—

(a) normative O and M expenses as specified in these Regulations shall be allowed ;

(b) the debt-equity ratio, shall be considered in accordance with Regulation 26, after
deducting the amount of such financial support received ;

(c) provisions related to depreciation, as specified in Regulation 27, shall not be
applicable to the extent of such financial support received ;

(d) provisions related to return on equity, as specified in Regulation 28 shall not be
applicable to the extent of such financial support received ;

(e) provisions related to interest on loan capital, as specified in Regulation 29 shall
not be applicable to the extent of such financial support received.
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26. Debt-equity ratio—

26.1 For a capital investment Scheme declared under commercial operation on or after
April 1, 2016, debt-equity ratio as on the date of commercial operation shall be 70:30 of the
amount of capital cost approved by the Commission under Regulation 23, after prudence
check for determination of Tariff :

Provided that if the equity actually deployed is more than 30% of the capital cost, equity
in excess of 30% shall be treated as normative loan for the Generating Company or Licensee
or MSLDC for determination of Tariff :

Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall submit
documentary evidence for the actual deployment of equity and explain the source of funds
for the equity :

Provided also that where equity actually deployed is less than 30% of the capital cost of
the capitalised asset, the actual equity shall be considered for determination of Tarif f:

Provided also that the equity invested in foreign currency shall be designated in Indian
rupees on the date of each investment.

Explanation.—The premium, if any, raised by the Generating Company or the Licensee
while issuing share capital and investment of internal resources created out of its free reserves,
for the funding of the Scheme, shall be reckoned as paid up capital for the purpose of computing
return on equity, provided such premium amount and internal resources are actually utilised
for meeting the capital expenditure of the Generating Station or the transmission system or
the distribution system, and are within the ceiling of 30% of capital cost approved by the
Commission.

26.2 In case of the Generating Company or Licensee, if any fixed asset is capitalised on
account of capital expenditure Scheme prior to April 1, 2016, the debt-equity ratio allowed by
the Commission for determination of Tariff for the period ending March 31, 2016 shall be
considered :

Provided that in case of retirement or replacement or de-capitalisation of the assets, the
equity capital approved as mentioned above, shall be reduced to the extent of 30% (or actual
equity component based on documentary evidence, if it is lower than 30%) of the original cost
of such assets :

Provided further that in case of retirement or replacement or de-capitalisation of the
assets, the debt capital approved as mentioned above, shall be reduced to the extent of
outstanding debt component based on documentary evidence, or the normative loan
component, as the case may be, of the original cost of such assets.

26.3 Any expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred on or after April 1, 2016, as
may be admitted by the Commission as additional capital expenditure for determination of
Tariff, and renovation and modernisation expenditure for life extension, shall be serviced in
the manner specified in this Regulation.

27. Depreciation—

27.1 The Generating Company, Licensee, and MSLDC shall be permitted to recover
depreciation on the value of fixed assets used in their respective Businesses, computed in
the following manner :

(a) The approved original cost of the fixed assets shall be the value base for calculation
of depreciation :

Provided that the depreciation shall be allowed on the entire capitalised amount of
the new assets after reducing the approved original cost of the retired or replaced or de-
capitalised assets.

(b) Depreciation shall be computed annually based on the straight line method at the
rates specified in the Annexure I to these Regulations :

Provided that the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall ensure that once
the individual asset is depreciated to the extent of seventy percent, remaining depreciable
value as on 315 March of the year closing shall be spread over the balance Useful Life of the
asset including the Extended Life, as provided in this Regulation :

I IR h-Lo-1%
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Provided further that the Generating Company or Licensee shall submit all such details
or documentary evidence as may be required, to substantiate the above claims.

(c) The salvage value of the asset shall be considered at 10 per cent of the allowable
capital cost and depreciation shall be allowed upto a maximum of 90 per cent of the allowable
capital cost of the asset.

27.2 Land other than the land held under lease and the land for reservoir in case of
hydel Generating Station shall not be a depreciable asset and its cost shall be excluded from
the capital cost while computing depreciable value of the assets.

27.3 In case of existing assets, the balance depreciable value as on April 1, 2016, shall be
worked out by deducting the cumulative depreciation as admitted by the Commission up to
March 31, 2016, from the gross depreciable value of the assets :

Provided that depreciation shall be chargeable from the first year of commercial operation.

27.4 In case of projected commercial operation of the assets for part of the year,
depreciation shall be computed based on the average of opening and closing value of assets.

27.5 Depreciation shall be re-computed for assets capitalised at the time of Truing-up
along with the Mid-term Review or at the end of the Control Period, based on documentary
evidence of assets capitalised by the Petitioner, subject to the prudence check of the
Commission, such that the depreciation is allowed proportionately from the date of
capitalisation.

28. Return on Equity—

28.1 Return on equity for a Generating Company shall be allowed on the equity capital
determined in accordance with Regulation 26 for the assets put to use, at the rate of 15.5 per
cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms.

28.2 Return on equity for the Transmission Licensee, Distribution Wires Business and
MSLDC shall be allowed on the equity capital determined in accordance with Regulation 26
for the assets put to use, at the rate of 15.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms, and
for the Retail Supply Business, Return on equity capital shall be allowed on the amount of
equity capital determined in accordance with Regulation 26 at the rate of 17.5 per cent per
annum in Indian Rupee terms.

28.3 The return on equity shall be computed in the following manner :—

(a) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on the amount of
equity capital at the commencement of the Year ; plus

(b) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on 50 per cent of the
equity capital portion of the allowable capital cost, for the investments put to use in
Generation Business or Transmission Business or Distribution Business or MSLDC, for
such Year.

29. Interest on loan—

29.1 The loans arrived at in the manner indicated in Regulation 26 on the assets put to
use shall be considered as gross normative loan for calculation of interest on loan :

Provided that in case of retirement or replacement or de-capitalisation of assets, the
loan capital approved as mentioned above, shall be reduced to the extent of outstanding loan
component of the original cost of such assets based on documentary evidence.

29.2 The normative loan outstanding as on April 1, 2016, shall be worked out by
deducting the cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission up to March 31, 2016,
from the gross normative loan.

29.3 The repayment during each year of the Control Period from FY 2016-17 to FY
2019-20 shall be deemed to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.

29.4 Notwithstanding any moratorium period availed, the repayment of loan shall be
considered from the first year of commercial operation of the Scheme and shall be equal to
the annual depreciation allowed.
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29.5 The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest computed on
the basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of each year :

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the weighted average rate of interest computed
on the basis of the actual loan portfolio during the concerned year shall be considered as the
rate of interest :

Provided further that if there is no actual loan for a particular year but normative loan
is still outstanding, the last available weighted average rate of interest for actual loan shall
be considered :

Provided also that if the Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the
case may be, does not have actual loan even in the past, the weighted average rate of interest
of its other Businesses regulated by the Commission shall be considered :

Provided also that if the Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the
case may be, does not have actual loan, and its other Businesses regulated by the Commission
also do not have actual loan even in the past, then the weighted average rate of interest of
the entity as a whole shall be considered :

Provided also that if the entity as a whole does not have actual loan, then the Base Rate
at the beginning of the respective year shall be considered as the rate of interest for the
purpose of allowing the interest on the normative loan.

29.6 The interest on loan shall be computed on the normative average loan of the year
by applying the weighted average rate of interest :

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the normative average loan of the concerned
year shall be considered on the basis of the actual asset capitalisation approved by the
Commission for the year.

29.7 The above interest computation shall exclude interest on loan amount, normative
or otherwise, to the extent of capital cost funded by Consumer Contribution, Deposit Works,
Grants or Capital Subsidy.

29.8 The finance charges incurred for obtaining loans from financial institutions for
any Year shall be allowed by the Commission at the time of Truing-up, subject to prudence
check.

29.9 The excess interest during construction on account of time and/or cost overrun as
compared to the approved completion schedule and capital cost or on account of excess drawal
of the debt funds disproportionate to the actual requirement based on Scheme completion
status, shall be allowed or disallowed partly or fully on a case to case basis, after prudence
check by the Commission :

Provided that where the excess interest during construction is on account of delay
attributable to an agency or contractor or supplier engaged by the Generating Entity or the
Transmission Licensee, any liquidated damages recovered from such agency or contractor or
supplier shall be taken into account for computation of capital cost :

Provided further that the extent of liquidated damages to be considered shall depend on
the amount of excess interest during construction that has been allowed by the Commission.

29.10 The Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the case may be,
shall make every effort to re-finance the loan as long as it results in net savings on interest
and in that event, the costs associated with such re-financing shall be borne by the Beneficiaries
and the net savings shall be shared between the Beneficiaries and them in the ratio of 2:1,
subject to prudence check by the Commission :

Provided that the Generating Company or the Licensee or the MSLDC, as the case may
be, shall submit documentary evidence of the costs associated with such re-financing :

Provided further that the net savings in interest shall be calculated as an annuity for the
term of the loan, and the annual net savings shall be shared between the entity and
Beneficiaries in the specified ratio.

97T AR F-C0-283T
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29.11 Interest shall be allowed only on the amount held in cash as security deposit
from Transmission System Users, Distribution System Users and Retail consumers at the
Base Rate as on 1st April of the Year for which the interest is payable, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the interest on the amount of security deposit for the
year shall be considered on the basis of the actual interest paid by the Licensee during the year,
subject to prudence check by the Commission.

30. Foreign Exchange Rate Variation—

30.1 The Generating Company or Licensee may hedge foreign exchange exposure in
respect of the interest on foreign currency loan and repayment of foreign loan acquired for
the generating Station or the transmission system or distribution system, in part or in full at
its discretion.

30.2 The Generating Company or Licensee shall be permitted to recover the cost of
hedging of foreign exchange rate variation corresponding to the foreign debt, in the relevant
year as expense, subject to prudence check by the Commission, and extra rupee liability
corresponding to such variation shall not be allowed against the hedged foreign debt.

30.3 To the extent that the foreign exchange exposure is not hedged, any extra rupee
liability towards interest payment and loan repayment corresponding to the foreign currency
loan in the relevant year shall be allowed subject to prudence check by the Commission,
provided it is not attributable to such Generating Company or the Licensee or its suppliers
or contractors.

31. Interest on Working Capital—

31.1 Generation

(a) In case of coal based/lignite-fired Generating Stations, working capital shall cover :—
(i) Cost of coal or lignite and limestone towards stock, if applicable, for fifteen days
for pit-head Generating Stations and thirty days for non-pit-head Generating Stations,
for generation corresponding to target availability, or the maximum coal/lignite stock
storage capacity, whichever is lower ;
(i1) Cost of coal or lignite and limestone for thirty days for generation corresponding
to target availability ;

(zit) Cost of secondary fuel oil for two months corresponding to target availability ;
(iv) Operation and Maintenance expenses for one month ;

(v) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(vi) Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the sum of
annual fixed charges and energy charges computed at target availability :

minus

(vii) Payables for fuel (including oil and secondary fuel oil) to the extent of thirty
days of the cost of fuel computed at target availability, depending on the modalities of
payment :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be computed based
on the actual generation or target availability of the generating Station, whichever is lower:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(b) In case of oil-fired Generating Stations, working capital shall cover—

(i) Cost of oil for thirty days towards stock, if applicable, for generation
corresponding to target availability, or the maximum oil stock storage capacity, whichever
is lower ;

(7)) Cost of oil for thirty days for generation corresponding to target availability ;

(iii) Operation and Maintenance expenses for one month ;

(iv) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(v) Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the sum of
annual fixed charges and energy charges computed on target availability :
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minus

(vi) Payables for fuel to the extent of thirty days of the cost of fuel computed at
target availability, depending on the modalities of payment :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be computed based
on the actual generation or target availability of the generating Station, whichever is lower :

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(c¢) In case of Open Cycle Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating Stations, working
capital shall cover :—
(i) Fuel cost for thirty days corresponding to target availability duly taking into
account the mode of operation of the Generating Station on gas fuel and liquid fuel ;

(z1) Liquid fuel stock for fifteen days corresponding to target availability ;
(i1i) Operation and maintenance expenses for one month ;

(iv) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(v) Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the sum of
annual fixed charges and energy charges computed on target availability :

minus

(vi) Payables for fuel (including liquid fuel stock) to the extent of thirty days of the
cost of fuel computed at target availability, depending on the modalities of payment :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up, the working capital shall be computed based
on the actual generation or target availability of the generating Station, whichever is lower :

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(d) In case of Hydro power Generating Stations including pumped storage hydel
electric generating Station, working capital shall cover :—

() Operation and maintenance expenses for one month ;

(ii) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(iit) Receivables for sale of electricity equivalent to forty-five days of the annual
fixed charges computed on normative capacity index :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital requirement
shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital approved by
the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(e) In case of own Generating Stations of the Retail Supply Business, no amount shall
be allowed towards receivables, to the extent of supply of power by the Generation Business
to the Retail Supply Business, in the computation of working capital in accordance with
this Regulation.

(/) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal
to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Tariff is filed,
plus 150 basis points :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during the
concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

31.2 Transmission :—
(a) The working capital requirement of the Transmission Licensee shall cover :—
(i) Operation and maintenance expenses for one month ;
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(ii) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(i1i) One and a half month equivalent of the expected revenue from transmission
charges at the prevailing Tariff ;

minus

(iv) Amount held as security deposits in cash, if any, from Transmission System
Users :

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal
to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Tariff is filed,
plus 150 basis points :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during the
concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

31.3 Distribution Wires Business :(—
(a) The working capital requirement of the Distribution Wires Business shall cover—

() Operation and maintenance expenses for one month ;

(ii) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(i1i) One and half months equivalent of the expected revenue from charges for use
of Distribution Wires at the prevailing Tariff ;

minus

(iv) Amount held as security deposits in cash from Distribution System Users :

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital

requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal
to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Tariff is filed,
plus 150 basis points :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during the
concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

31.4 Retail Supply of Electricity :—
(a) The working capital requirement of the Retail Supply Business shall cover—
(i) Operation and maintenance expenses for one month ;

(ii) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets for the
Year ; and

(i1i) One and half months equivalent of the expected revenue from sale of electricity
at the prevailing Tariff, and including revenue from cross-subsidy surcharge and
additional surcharge, if any ;

minus
(iv) Amount held as security deposits in cash from retail supply consumers ;

(v) One month equivalent of cost of power purchased, including the Transmission
Charges and SLDC Charges, based on the annual power procurement plan :

Provided that in case of power procurement from own Generating Stations of the Retail
Supply Business, no amount shall be reduced from working capital requirement towards
payables, to the extent of supply of power by the Generation Business to the Retail Supply
Business, in the computation of working capital in accordance with these Regulations :
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Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal
to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Tariff is filed,
plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during the
concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

31.5 MSLDC :—
(a) The working capital requirement of the MSLDC shall cover—
(i) Operation and maintenance expenses for one month ;

(it) One and a half month equivalent of the expected revenue from levy of Annual
Fixed Charges:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the working capital
requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the values of components of working capital
approved by the Commission in the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses ;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be equal to
the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for determination of Fees and Charges is
filed, plus 150 basis points :

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on working capital
shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during the
concerned Year plus 150 basis points.

31.6 For the purpose of Truing-up for each year, the variation between the normative
interest on working capital computed at the time of Truing-up and the actual interest on
working capital incurred by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, substantiated
by documentary evidence, shall be considered as an efficiency gain or efficiency loss, as the
case may be, on account of controllable factors, and shared between it and the respective
Beneficiary or consumer as the case may be, in accordance with Regulation 11 :

Provided that the contribution of delay in receipt of payment to the actual interest on
working capital shall be deducted from the actual interest on working capital, before sharing
of the efficiency gain or efficiency loss, as the case may be.

32. Carrying Cost or Holding Cost—

The Commission shall allow Carrying Cost or Holding Cost, as the case may be, on the
admissible amounts, with simple interest, at the weighted average Base Rate prevailing during
the concerned Year, plus 150 basis points.

33. Income Tax—

33.1 The Commission, in its MYT Order, shall provisionally approve Income Tax payable
for each year of the Control Period based on the actual Income Tax paid by the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC, in case the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
has not engaged in any other regulated or unregulated Business or Other Business, as allowed
by the Commission relating to the electricity Business regulated by the Commission, as per
latest available Audited Accounts, subject to prudence check :

Provided that in case the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC has engaged in
any other regulated or unregulated Business or Other Business, and the actual Income Tax
paid by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC has to be allocated to the different
Businesses, then the Income Tax shall be provisionally allowed based on the Income Tax on
the regulatory Profit Before Tax, as allowed by the Commission relating to the electricity
Business regulated by the Commission, subject to prudence check :

Provided further that no Income Tax shall be considered on the amount of income from
Delayed Payment Charges or Interest on Delayed Payment or Income from Other Business,
as well as on the income from any source that has not been considered for computing the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement :
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Provided also that no Income Tax shall be considered on the amount of efficiency gains
and incentive approved by the Commission, irrespective of whether or not the amount of
such efficiency gains and incentive are billed separately :

Provided also that the Income Tax shall be computed for the Generating Company as a
whole, and not Unit-wise/Station-wise.

33.2 The benefits of any Income Tax holiday and any other Income Tax benefits allowed
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, credit for unabsorbed losses or unabsorbed depreciation, or
amount of Minimum Alternate Tax paid in previous Years and available for set off against
Corporate Tax liability, shall be taken into account for computation of the Income Tax liability
of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, as the case may be, irrespective of whether
or not such Income Tax benefits and allowances have actually been claimed :

Provided that in case such claim for Income Tax holiday or any other Income Tax benefits
allowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961 is rejected by the Income Tax Department, the
Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC may approach the Commission for necessary
relief at the appropriate time.

33.3 Variation between the Income Tax actually paid or Income Tax on regulatory Profit
Before Tax of the regulated Business of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, as
applicable, and the Income Tax approved by the Commission for the respective Year after
truing up, shall be allowed for recovery as part of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement at the
time of Mid-term Review or Truing-up, subject to prudence check.

33.4 Income Tax on any income stream from sources other than the Business regulated
by the Commission shall not constitute a pass-through component in Tariff, and Income Tax
on such other income shall be borne by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC, as
the case may be.

34. Contribution to Contingency Reserves—

34.1 Where the Licensee has made a contribution to the Contingency Reserve, a sum
not less than 0.25 per cent and not more than 0.5 per cent of the original cost of fixed assets
shall be allowed annually towards such contribution in the calculation of Aggregate Revenue
Requirement :

Provided that where the amount of such Contingency Reserves exceeds five (5) per cent
of the original cost of fixed assets, no further contribution shall be allowed :

Provided further that such contribution shall be invested in securities authorised under
the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 within a period of six months of the close of the Year.

34.2 The Contingency Reserve shall not be drawn upon during the term of the Licence
except to meet such charges as may be approved by the Commission as being :—

(a) Expenses or loss of profits arising out of accidents, strikes or circumstances which
the management could not have prevented ;

(b) Expenses on replacement or removal of plant or works other than expenses requisite
for normal maintenance or renewal ;

(¢) Compensation payable under any law for the time being in force and for which no
other provision is made.

34.3 No diminution in the value of Contingency Reserve as mentioned above shall be
allowed to be adjusted as a part of Tariff.

35. Rebate, Incentive, and Penalties—

35.1 For payment of bills of generation Tariff or transmission charges or MSLDC Fees
and Charges within 7 days of presentation of bills, through Letter of Credit or otherwise or
through NEFT/RTGS, a rebate of 1% on billed amount, excluding the taxes, cess, duties, etc.,
shall be allowed.

35.2 For payment of bills of retail Tariff by the consumers within 7 days of issue of
bills, a rebate of 1% on the billed amount, excluding the taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be
allowed.
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35.3 All rebates or incentives earned by the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
shall be considered under its Non-Tariff Income, while all rebates or incentives given by the
Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC shall be allowed as an expense for the Generating
Company or Licensee or MSLDC.

35.4 Penalties paid, if any, by the Generating Company or Licensee shall not be allowed
as an expense for the Generating Company or Licensee.

36. Delayed Payment Charge and Interest on Delayed Payment—

36.1 In case the payment of bills of generation Tariff or transmission charges or MSLDC
Fees and Charges by the Beneficiary is delayed beyond a period of 30 days from the date of
billing, Delayed Payment Charge at the rate of 1.25% per month on the billed amount shall be
levied for the period of delay by the Generating Company or the Transmission Licensee or
MSLDC, as the case may be, notwithstanding anything to the contrary as may have been
stipulated in the Agreement or Arrangement with the Beneficiaries.

36.2 In case the payment of bills of retail Tariff by the consumers is delayed beyond a
period of 15 days for High Tension consumers and 21 days for Low Tension consumers from
the date of billing, Delayed Payment Charge on the billed amount, including the taxes, cess,
duties, etc., shall be levied at the rate of 1.25% on the billed amount for the first month of
delay :

Provided that for delay in payment of bills of retail Tariff beyond 60 days and up to 90
days from the date of billing, Interest on Delayed Payment on the billed amount, including
the Delayed Payment Charges, taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be levied at the rate of 12% per
annum :

Provided that for delay in payment of bills of retail Tariff beyond 90 days and up to 180
days from the date of billing, Interest on Delayed Payment on the billed amount, including
the Delayed Payment Charges, taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be levied at the rate of 15% per
annum :

Provided that for delay in payment of bills of retail Tariff beyond 180 days from the date
of billing, Interest on Delayed Payment on the billed amount, including the Delayed Payment
Charges, taxes, cess, duties, etc., shall be levied at the rate of 18% per annum.

36.3 Such Delayed Payment Charge and Interest on Delayed Payment earned by the
Generating Company or the Licensee shall not be considered under its Non-Tariff Income.

36.4 Such Delayed Payment Charge paid or payable by the Distribution Licensee to
the Generating Company or the Transmission Licensee shall not be allowed as an expense
for such Distribution Licensee.

PART E : GENERATION
37. Applicability—
37.1 The Regulations specified in this Part shall apply to the determination of Tariff
for supply of electricity to a Distribution Licensee from conventional sources of generation
and hydel generating stations of capacity exceeding 25 MW :

Provided that determination of Tariff for supply of electricity to a Distribution Licensee
from Renewable Energy sources of generation shall be in accordance with terms and conditions
specified in the relevant Regulations of the Commission.

37.2 The Commission shall be guided by the terms and conditions contained in this
Part in determining the Tariff for supply of electricity by a Generating Company to a
Distribution Licensee, in the following cases :—

(a) where such Tariff is pursuant to a power purchase agreement or arrangement
entered into subsequent to the date of coming into effect of these Regulations ; or

() where such Tariff is pursuant to a power purchase agreement or arrangement
entered into prior to the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, and the Commission
has approved such agreement or arrangement and the agreement or arrangement envisages

that the Tariff shall be based on the Tariff Regulations prevailing at that time ; or
9T TR FH-Co-2
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(c) where the Distribution Licensee is engaged in the Business of generation of
electricity, in determining the transfer price at which electricity is supplied by the
Generation Business of the Distribution Licensee to its Retail Supply Business.

38. Petition for determination of generation Tariff—

38.1 A Generating Company shall file a Petition for determination of Tariff for supply
of electricity to Distribution Licensees in accordance with the provisions of Part B of these
Regulations.

38.2 Tariff in respect of a Generating Station under these Regulations may be
determined Stage-wise, Unit-wise or for the whole Generating Station :

Provided that the terms and conditions for determination of Tariff for Generating Stations
specified in this Part shall apply in like manner to Stages or Units or the Generating Station,
as the case may be.

38.3 Where the Tariff is being determined for a Stage or Unit of a Generating Station,
the Generating Company shall adopt a reasonable basis for allocation of capital cost relating
to common facilities and allocation of joint and common costs across all Stages or Units, as
the case may be :

Provided that the Generating Company shall maintain an Allocation Statement providing
the basis for allocation of such costs, which shall be duly audited and certified by the statutory
auditors, and submit such audited and certified statement to the Commission along with the
Petition for determination of Tariff.

38.4 In the case of existing generating Stations/Units, the Commission may allow the
Generating Company ; the Tariff based on the approved capital cost as on April 1, 2016 and
projected additional capital expenditure for the ensuing Years :

Provided that the Generating Company shall continue to bill the Beneficiaries at the
Tariff approved by the Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2016 for the period starting
from April 1, 2016 till approval of Tariff by the Commission in accordance with these
Regulations.

38.5 The Generating Company shall file the Petition for determination of provisional
Tariff for new Generating Station, at least six months prior to the anticipated date of
commercial operation of Generating Unit or Stage or Generating Station as a whole, as the
case may be.

38.6 The Generating Company shall file a Petition for determination of provisional
Tariff for new Generating Station based on capital expenditure incurred and projected to be
incurred up to the date of commercial operation and additional capital expenditure incurred,
duly certified by the statutory auditors :

Provided that the Petition shall contain details of underlying assumptions for the
projected capital cost and additional capital cost, wherever applicable.

38.7 In the case of new projects, the Generating Company may be allowed provisional
Tariff by the Commission from the anticipated date of commercial operation, based on the
projected capital expenditure, subject to prudence check.

38.8 If the date of commercial operation is likely to be delayed beyond six months from
the date of issue of the order approving the provisional Tariff, the Generating Company may
submit a Petition for seeking extension of the validity of the applicability of the provisional
Tariff, giving details of the present status of completion and justification for the delay in
project completion, which may be considered by the Commission after necessary prudence
check.

38.9 The Generating Company shall file the Petition for determination of final Tariff
for new Generating Station within six months from the date of commercial operation of
Generating Unit or Stage or Generating Station as a whole, as the case may be, based on the
audited capital expenditure and capitalisation as on the date of commercial operation :
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Provided that in case of more than one Unit in the Generating Station, such Petition
shall be filed for each Unit as and when such Unit achieves COD and without waiting for the
COD of the entire Station.

38.10 The final Tariff determination for the new Generating Station shall be done by
the Commission based on prudence check of the audited capital expenditure and capitalisation
as on the date of commercial operation.

38.11 Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is less than the
Capital Cost approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five
percent or more, the Generating Company shall refund to the Beneficiaries the excess Tariff
realised corresponding to excess Capital Cost, along with interest at the Base Rate, as
prevalent on the first day of April of the respective Year, plus 150 basis points.

38.12 Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is more than the
Capital Cost approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five
percent or more, the Generating Company shall, subject to the approval of the Commission,
recover from the Beneficiaries the shortfall in Tariff corresponding to such decrease in Capital
Cost, along with interest at the Base Rate, as prevalent on the first day of April of the respective
Year, plus 150 basis points.

38.13 In relation to multi-purpose hydroelectric Projects, with irrigation, flood control
and power components, the capital cost chargeable to the power component of the Project
only shall be considered for determination of Tariff.

39. Components of Tariff—

39.1 The Tariff for sale of electricity from a thermal power Generating Station shall
comprise two parts, namely, Annual Fixed Charge and Energy Charge.

39.2 The Tariff for sale of electricity from a hydel Generating Station shall comprise
two parts, namely, Capacity Charge and Energy Charge.

40. Annual Fixed Charges—

The Annual Fixed Charges shall comprise the following components :(—
(a) Operation and Maintenance Expenses ;
(b) Depreciation ;
(c) Interest on Loan Capital ;
(d) Interest on Working Capital ;
(e) Return on Equity Capital ;
() Income Tax ;
Less
(g) Non Tariff Income :

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on Working Capital,

Return on Equity, and Income tax for Thermal and Hydro Generating Stations shall be allowed,
in accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations :

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission
at the time of Truing-up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, subject to prudence
check :

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Generating Company
to any party for failure to comply with any directions or for damages, as a consequence of the
orders of the Commission, Courts, etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement :

Provided also that the Generating Company shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Generating Company, if any, and shall
submit them to the Commission along with its Petition.

HIT IR h-Co—-R93Ad
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41. Renovation and Modernisation—

41.1 For undertaking Renovation and Modernisation for the purpose of extension of
life beyond the useful life of the Generating Station or a Unit thereof, the Generating Company
shall file a Petition for approval with a Detailed Project Report giving complete scope,
justification, cost-benefit analysis, estimated life extension from a reference date, financial
package, phasing of expenditure, schedule of completion, reference price level, estimated
completion cost, record of consultation with Beneficiaries and any other relevant information.

41.2 Approval of such proposal for Renovation and Modernisation shall be granted
after consideration of reasonableness of the cost estimates, schedule of completion, use of
efficient technology, cost-benefit analysis, and such other factors as may be considered relevant
by the Commission.

41.3 In case of gas/ liquid fuel based open/combined cycle thermal generating Unit, any
expenditure, which has become necessary for renovation of gas turbines/steam turbine and
any expenditure necessitated due to obsolescence or non-availability of spares for efficient
operation of the stations shall be allowed :

Provided that any expenditure included in the Renovation and Modernisation on
consumables and cost of components and spares, which is generally covered in the O and M
expenses during the major overhaul of gas turbine, shall be suitably deducted after prudence
check, from the Renovation and Modernisation expenditure to be allowed.

41.4 The expenditure approved by the Commission after prudence check based on the
estimates of Renovation and Modernisation expenditure and life extension, and after
deducting the accumulated depreciation already recovered from the original Project cost,
shall form the basis for determination of Tariff.

42, Sale of Infirm Power—
The Tariff for sale of infirm power from the thermal Generating Station to the Distribution

Licensee shall be equivalent to the actual fuel cost, including the secondary fuel cost, incurred
during that period, subject to prudence check :

Provided that any revenue other than the recovery of fuel cost earned by the Generating

Company from sale of infirm power shall be used for reduction in Capital Cost and shall not be
treated as revenue.

43. Non-Tariff Incomes—

43.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income of the Generating Company as approved by the
Commission shall be deducted while determining its Annual Fixed Charge :

Provided that the Generating Company shall submit full details of its forecast of Non-
Tariff Income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

43.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include —
(a) Income from rent of land or buildings ;
(b) Income from sale of scrap ;
(¢) Income from investments ;
(d) Income from sale of ash/rejected coal ;
(e) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors ;

(f) Net Income from supply of electricity by the Generating Company to the housing
colonies of its operating staff and supply of electricity by the Generating Company for
construction works at the generating Station, after adjusting the expenses incurred for
supply of such electricity ;

(g) Income from rental from staff quarters ;

(h) Income from rental from contractors ;

() Income from hire charges from contactors and others ;
(J )Income from advertisements ;

(k) Income from sale of tender documents ;

() Any other Non-Tariff Income :
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Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Generating Company shall not be included in
Non-Tariff Income :

Provided further that all supply of electricity by the Generating Company to the housing
colonies of its operating staff and for construction works at the generating Station, shall be
metered and billed separately :

Provided also that the tariff for supply of electricity by the Generating Company to the
housing colonies of its operating staff and supply of electricity by the Generating Company
for construction works at the generating Station, shall be the same as the Tariff approved by
the Commission for the supply of electricity to the respective consumer category by the
Distribution Licensee for that area of supply.

44, Norms of operation for Thermal Generating Stations—

44.1 Target Availability for full recovery of Annual Fixed Charges shall be 85 per cent
for all thermal Generating Stations, except those covered under Regulation 44.2.

44.2 Target Availability for full recovery of Annual Fixed Charges for the following
Generating Stations of Maharashtra State Power Generation Company Ltd. (MSPGCL) shall be :

Particulars Target Availability (%)
Koradi TPS 72.00
Khaperkheda TPS 85.00
Chandrapur TPS 80.00
Nashik TPS 80.00
Bhusawal TPS excluding Unit No. 4 and 5 80.00
Parli TPS excluding Unit No. 6 and 7 80.00

Provided that the Commission may revise the Availability norms for these Generating Stations
in case any Renovation and Modernisation is undertaken.

44.3 Target Plant Load Factor for incentive for thermal Generating Stations/Units shall be
85 per cent.

44.4 Gross Station Heat Rate for existing coal-based thermal Generating Stations, other
than those covered under Regulation 44.5 and 44.6 shall be :

200/210/250 MW sets 300 MW sets 500 MW sets (sub-critical
boilers)
2450 kcal/lkWh 2400 kcal/kWh 2375 kcal/kWh

Note 1.—In respect of 500 MW Units, where the boiler feed pumps are electrically operated,
the Gross Station Heat Rate shall be 40 kcal/’kWh lower than the gross Station Heat Rate specified
above.

Note 2.—For Generating Stations having combination of 200/210/250 MW sets and 300 MW
and 500 MW sets, the normative gross Station Heat Rate shall be the weighted average Station
Heat Rate.

44.5 Gross Station Heat Rate for existing coal-based thermal Generating Stations of
Maharashtra State Power Generation Company Ltd. (MSPGCL) shall be :

(kcal/kWh)
Year Koradi Khaperkheda Chandrapur Nashik Bhusawal Parli
excluding Unit excluding
No.4and 5  Unit No.6 and 7
FY 2016-17 2864 2606 2688 2764 2761 2859
FY 2017-18 2874 2614 2697 2773 2770 2868
FY 2018-19 2884 2622 2706 2783 2779 2878

FY 2019-20 2893 2630 2715 2792 2787 2887
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Provided that the Commission may revise the Gross Station Heat Rate norms for these
Generating Stations in case any Renovation and Modernisation is undertaken.

44.6 Gross Station Heat Rate for existing thermal Generating Stations of The Tata
Power Company Ltd.-Generation Business (TPC-G) shall be :—

(kcal/kWh)
Year Unit-5 Unit-6
With 100% With 100% With Oil and Gas mix in
Gas firing Oil firing proportion of 50:50*
FY 2016-17 2525 2666 2421 2544
FY 2017-18 2533 2671 2426 2549
FY 2018-19 2541 2676 2431 2554
FY 2019-20 2549 2681 2436 2559

* In case variation in Oil and Gas mix is more than +/- 5%, the Gross Station Heat Rate
for Unit 6 shall be approved considering the actual Oil and Gas Mix.

44.7 Gross Station Heat Rate for existing Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating
Station/Unit shall be :—

(kcal/kWh)
Year Uran GTPS of Unit-7 of TPC-G
MSPGCL
FY 2016-17 2023 2023
FY 2017-18 2027 2027
FY 2018-19 2031 2031
FY 2019-20 2035 2035

44.8 Gross Station Heat Rate for New Coal and Lignite based thermal power Generating
Stations /Units achieving COD after April 1, 2016 shall be equal to 1.045 times the Design
Heat Rate (kcal/kWh) ;

Where the Design Heat Rate of a Unit means the Unit Heat Rate guaranteed by the
supplier at conditions of 100% MCR, zero percent make up, design coal and design cooling
water temperature/back pressure :

Provided that the Design Heat Rate shall not exceed the following maximum design
Unit Heat Rates depending upon the pressure and temperature ratings of the Units :

Pressure Rating (kg/cm2) 150 170 170 247
SHT/RHT (°C) 535/535 537/537 537/565 565/593
Type of Boiler Feed Pump Electrical Turbine Turbine Turbine
Driven driven driven driven
Maximum Turbine Cycle Heat 1955 1950 1935 1850

Rate (kcal/kWh)

Minimum Boiler Efficiency

Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86
Bituminous Imported Coal 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Maximum Design Unit Heat

Rate (kcal/kWh)

Sub-Bituminous Indian Coal 2273 2267 2250 2151
Bituminous Imported Coal 2197 2191 2174 2078

Provided further that in case pressure and temperature parameters of a Unit are different
from above ratings, the maximum design Unit Heat Rate of the nearest class shall be taken :
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Provided also that where Unit Heat Rate has not been guaranteed but turbine cycle
Heat Rate and boiler efficiency are guaranteed separately by the same supplier or different
suppliers, the Unit Design Heat Rate shall be arrived at by using guaranteed turbine cycle
Heat Rate and boiler efficiency :

Provided also that where the boiler efficiency is below 86% for sub-bituminous Indian
coal and 89% for bituminous imported coal, the same shall be considered as 86% and 89%,
respectively, for sub-bituminous Indian coal and bituminous imported coal for computation
of Gross Station Heat Rate :

Provided also that maximum turbine cycle Heat Rate shall be adjusted for type of dry
cooling system :

Provided also that if one or more Units are declared under commercial operation prior
to the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, the Heat Rate norms for those Units as
well as Units declared under commercial operation on or after the effectiveness of these
Regulations shall be lower of the Heat Rate norms arrived at by the above methodology and
the norms specified in Regulation 44.4 :

Provided also that in case of lignite-fired Generating Stations [including stations based
on Circulating Fluidised Bed Combustion (CFBC) technology], maximum design Heat Rates
shall be increased using the following factors for moisture content : —

(a) For lignite having 50% moisture : 1.10
(b) For lignite having 40% moisture : 1.07
(c) For lignite having 30% moisture : 1.04

For other values of moisture content, multiplying factor shall be pro-rated for moisture
content between 30-40% and 40-50% depending upon the rated values of multiplying factor
for the respective range given under sub-clauses (a) to (c) above.

Note.—In respect of Units where the boiler feed pumps are electrically operated, the
maximum design Unit Heat Rate shall be 40 kcal/lkWh lower than the maximum design Unit
Heat Rate specified above with turbine driven boiler feed pumps.

449  Gross Station Heat Rate for New Gas-based/Liquid-based Thermal Generating
Unit(s) achieving COD after April 1, 2016 shall be —
=1.05 x Design Heat Rate of the Unit/Block for Natural Gas and Regassified Liquefied
Natural Gas (RLNG) (in kcal/kWh)

= 1.071 x Design Heat Rate of the Unit/Block for Liquid Fuel (kcal/kWh).

Where the Design Heat Rate of a Unit shall mean the guaranteed Heat Rate for a Unit at
100% MCR and at site ambient conditions ; and the Design Heat Rate of a Block shall mean
the guaranteed Heat Rate for a Block at 100% MCR, site ambient conditions, zero percent
make up, design cooling water temperature/back pressure.

44.10 In case a Generating Station or Unit is directed by MSLDC to operate below
normative loading but at or above technical minimum schedule on account of grid security or
due to the lower schedule given by the Beneficiaries, increase in Gross Station Heat Rate
may be considered by the Commission on case to case basis at time of truing up, subject to
prudence check.

44.11 Secondary fuel oil consumption norm for all thermal Generating Stations, except
those covered under Regulation 44.12 shall be :—

(a) Coal-based Generating Stations: 0.50 ml/kWh.

(b) Lignite-fired Generating Stations except stations based on CFBC technology: 2.0
ml/kWh.

(¢) Lignite-fired Generating Stations based on CFBC technology : 1.0 mI/kWh
44.12 Secondary fuel oil consumption norm for the following MSPGCL Stations shall be :—
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Stations Secondary Fuel Oil
Consumption (mI/kWh)
Koradi TPS 2.81
Khaperkheda TPS 2.00
Chandrapur TPS 2.00
Nashik TPS 1.50
Bhusawal TPS excluding Unit No. 6 and 7 2.00
Parli TPS excluding Unit No. 6 and 7 2.00

Provided that the Commission may revise the secondary fuel oil consumption norms for
these Generating Stations in case any Renovation and Modernisation is undertaken.

44.13 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for new coal-based thermal Generating Stations
shall be as given in the Table below :

Particulars With Natural Draft cooling tower
or without cooling tower
(@) 200/250 MW series 8.50%
(@7) 300/330/350/500 MW and above
Steam driven boiler feed pumps 5.25%
Electrically driven boiler feed pumps 7.75%

Provided that for thermal Generating Stations with induced draft cooling towers, the norms
shall be higher by 0.5%, as compared to above norms :

Provided further that additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption as follows may be allowed
for plants with Dry Cooling systems.

Type of Dry Cooling system (% of gross generation)
Direct cooling air cooled condensers with mechanical draft fans 1.0%
Indirect Cooling system employing jet condensers with pressure 0.5%

recovery turbine and natural draft tower

Provided also that for thermal Generating Stations with Flue Gas De-sulphuriser (FGD),
additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall be allowed on case to case basis after prudence
check :

Provided also that for thermal Generating Stations with any additional equipment that has
been mandated by Statutory Authorities, additional Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall be allowed
on case to case basis after prudence check.

44.14 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for the following coal-based thermal Generating
Stations of MSPGCL shall be as given in the Table below :

Stations FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
Koradi TPS 10.81% 10.81% 10.81% 10.81%
Khaperkheda TPS 9.70% 9.70% 9.70% 9.70%
Chandrapur TPS 8.67% 8.67% 8.67% 8.67%
Nashik TPS 11.00% 11.00% 11.00% 11.00%
Bhusawal TPS excluding 10.96% 10.96% 10.96% 10.96%
Unit No. 6 and 7

Parli TPS excluding 12.65% 12.65% 12.65% 12.65%
Unit No. 6 and 7

Provided that the Commission may revise the auxiliary energy consumption norms for
these Generating Stations in case any Renovation and Modernisation is undertaken.

44.15 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for other existing coal-based thermal Generating
Stations shall be as given in the Table below:
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Particulars With Natural Draft cooling tower
or without cooling tower
(i) 200/250 MW series 8.50%
(I1) 300/500 MW and above
Steam driven boiler feed pumps 6.00%
Electrically driven boiler feed pumps 8.50%

44.16 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for Unit 6 of TPC-G shall be 3.5%.

44.17 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating
Stations/Units shall be :—

(a) Combined cycle : 3.0%
() Open cycle : 1.0%

44.18 Auxiliary Energy Consumption for Lignite-fired thermal Generating Stations/
Units shall be 0.5 percentage points higher than the auxiliary energy consumption norms of
coal based Generating Stations specified in Regulation 44.13 :

Provided that for the lignite fired stations using CFBC technology, the auxiliary energy
consumption norms shall be 1.5 percentage points higher than the auxiliary energy
consumption norms of coal based Generating Stations specified in Regulation 44.13.

44.19 Transit and handling Losses—

Normative transit and handling losses for coal/lignite based Generating Stations, as a
percentage of quantity of coal or lignite dispatched by the coal/lignite supply company during
the month shall be —

(a) Pit head Generating Stations : 0.2%
(b) Non-pit head Generating Stations : 0.8%:

Provided that in case of pit head stations if coal or lignite is procured from sources other
than the pit head mines, which is transported to the Station through rail, normative transit
loss of 0.8% shall be applicable :

Provided further that the above norms shall be applicable for domestic coal and
washed coal :

Provided also that in case of imported coal, the normative transit and handling losses
shall be 0.2% :

Provided also that for procurement of coal on delivery basis, no transit and handling
loss shall be allowed.

45. Operation and maintenance expenses—
45.1 Generating Stations/Units that achieved COD before August 26, 2005 :—

(a) The Operation and Maintenance expenses for Generating Stations that achieved
COD before the date of coming into effect of the MERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff)
Regulations, 2005, shall be computed in accordance with this Regulation.

(b) The Operation and Maintenance expenses excluding water charges and including
insurance shall be derived on the basis of the average of the Trued-up Operation and
Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the share of efficiency gains/losses, for the
three Years ending March 31, 2015, excluding abnormal Operation and Maintenance
expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the Commission.

(c) The average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be considered as
Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31, 2014, and shall be
escalated at the escalation rate of 5.72% to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance
expenses for the base year commencing April 1, 2015.

(d) The O and M expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined by escalating
the base expenses determined above for FY 2015-16, at the inflation factor considering
60% weightage for the actual point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers
AT IR F-¢o-3¢
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as per Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India in the previous year and 40%
weightage for the actual Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per
Labour Bureau, Government of India in the previous year, as reduced by an efficiency
factor of 1%, to arrive at permissible O and M expenses for each year of the Control Period :

Provided that a different efficiency factor may be stipulated by the Commission from
time to time :

Provided further that at the time of Truing-up the Oand M expenses for the different
years during the Control Period, the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for the actual
point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India in the concerned year and 40% weightage for the actual Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau, Government of India in
the concerned year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or any other value as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, shall be considered.

(e) Water Charges shall be allowed separately as per actuals, based on water
consumption depending upon type of plant, type of cooling water system etc., subject to
prudence check :

Provided that in the MYT Order, the Commission shall provisionally approve the Water
Charges for each year of the Control Period based on the actual Water Charges as per latest
Audited Accounts available for the Generating Company, subject to prudence check.

45.2 New Generating Stations and Generating Stations that achieved COD on or after
August 26, 2005 :—

(a) For Coal based Generating Stations :(—

Rs. Lakh/MW
Particulars 200/210/250 300/330/350 MW Sets 500 MW Sets 600 MW Sets
MW Sets and above
FY 2016-17 23.80 19.70 15.59 14.03
FY 2017-18 24.99 20.68 16.37 14.73
FY 2018-19 26.24 21.71 17.19 15.47
FY 2019-20 27.55 22.80 18.05 16.24

Provided that for the Generating Stations having combination of above Sets, the weighted
average value for operation and maintenance expenses shall be allowed :

Provided further that the norms shall be multiplied by the following factors for arriving
at norms of O and M expenses for additional Units in respective Unit sizes for the Units
whose COD occurs on or after 1.4.2016 in the same Station :

200/210/250 MW Additional 5*and 6% Units 0.90
Additional 7**and more Units 0.85
300/330/350 MW Additional 4t*and 5% Units 0.90
Additional 6'*and more Units 0.85
500 MW and above Additional 3"and 4t Units 0.90
Additional 5" and above Units 0.85

(b) For Lignite based Generating Stations :—

Rs. Lakh/MW
Particulars Lignite based Unit/Stations
FY 2016-17 17.84
FY 2017-18 18.73
FY 2018-19 19.66
FY 2019-20 20.65
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(c) Gas Turbine/Combined Cycle Generating Stations :—

Rs. Lakh/MW
Particulars Gas Small Gas Turbine Advance F Class
Turbine/Combined Generating Stations Machines
Cycle Generating (less than 50 MW
Stations Unit size)
FY 2016-17 14.56 17.67 14.04
FY 2017-18 15.29 18.56 14.74
FY 2018-19 16.06 19.48 15.48
FY 2019-20 16.86 20.46 16.25

46. Norms of operation for Hydro Generating Stations—

46.1 The following Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor (NAPAF) shall apply to
hydel Generating Stations :—

S1 Particulars Normative Annual Plant
Availability Factor
(a) Storage and Pondage type plants with 90%

head variation between Full Reservoir
Level (FRL) and Minimum Draw Down
Level (MDDL) of up to 8%, and where

plant availability is not affected by silt.

(b) Storage and Pondage type plants with The month-wise peaking capacity as provided
head variation between FRL and MDDL by the Project authorities in the Detailed
of more than 8%, and where plant availa- Project Report, approved by the relevant
bility is not affected by silt. authority, shall form the basis of fixation of

NAPAF.

(c) Pondage type plants where plant availa- 85%
bility is significantly affected by silt.

(d) Run-of-river type plants. To be determined plant-wise, based on 10-day
design energy data, moderated by past
experience where available/relevant

Provided that a further allowance may be made by the Commission in NAPAF determination
under special circumstances, e.g., abnormal silt problem or other operating conditions, and
known plant limitations.

46.2 In case of Pumped storage hydel generating stations, the quantum of electricity
required for pumping water from down-stream reservoir to up-stream reservoir shall be
arranged by the Beneficiary/ies duly taking into account the transmission losses and
distribution losses up to the bus bar of the generating Station, and in return, Beneficiaries
shall be entitled to energy equivalent to 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water
from the lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir, from the generating
Station during peak hours and the generating Station shall be under obligation to supply
such quantum of electricity during peak hours:

Provided that in the event of the Beneficiaries failing to supply the desired level of
energy during off-peak hours, there will be pro-rata reduction in their energy entitlement
from the Station during peak hours.

46.3 The following Normative Auxiliary Energy Consumption shall apply to hydel
Generating Stations :(—

(a) Surface Hydro Generating Stations :—

() With rotating exciters mounted on the generator shaft : 0.7%

(i1) With static excitation system: 1.0%
(b) Underground hydel Generating Station :—

() With rotating exciters mounted on the generator shaft : 0.9%

(it) With static excitation system : 1.2%

HIT IR h-Co0-3¢3A
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47. Operation and Maintenance Expenses for Hydro Generating Stations—
47.1 For Existing Stations :—

(a) The Operation and Maintenance expenses including insurance shall be derived
on the basis of the average of the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after
adding/deducting the share of efficiency gains/losses, for the three years ending March 31,
2015, excluding abnormal Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence
check by the Commission ;

(b) The average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be considered as
Operation and Maintenance expenses for the year ended March 31, 2014 and shall be
escalated at the escalation rate of 5.72% to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance
expenses for the base year commencing April 1, 2015 ;

(¢) The O and M expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined by escalating
the base expenses determined above for FY 2015-16, at the inflation factor considering
60% weightage for the actual point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers
as per Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India in the previous year and 40%
weightage for the actual Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per
Labour Bureau, Government of India in the previous year, as reduced by an efficiency
factor of 1%, to arrive at permissible O and M expenses for each Year of the Control Period :

Provided that a different efficiency factor may be stipulated by the Commission from
time to time :

Provided further that at the time of Truing-up the O and M expenses for the different
years during the Control Period, the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for the actual
point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India in the concerned year and 40% weightage for the actual Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau, Government of India in
the concerned year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or any other value as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, shall be considered ;

(d) The Operation and Maintenance expenses incurred by the Generating Company
on the housing colonies and related expenses including medical and other facilities, of its
operating staff shall be recorded separately and excluded from the above, and shall be
allowed separately, subject to prudence check.

47.2 For New Stations :(—

(a) O and M expenses shall be fixed at 2% of the original Project cost (excluding cost
of rehabilitation and resettlement works) for the first year of commercial operation ;

(b) The O and M expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined by escalating
the base expenses determined above, at the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for
the actual point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per Office of
Economic Advisor of Government of India in the previous Year and 40% weightage for the
actual Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau,
Government of India in the previous Year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1%, to
arrive at permissible O and M expenses for each Year of the Control Period :

Provided that a different efficiency factor may be stipulated by the Commission from
time to time :

Provided further that at the time of Truing-up the O and M expenses for the different
years during the Control Period, the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for the actual
point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India in the concerned year and 40% weightage for the actual Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau, Government of India in
the concerned year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or any other value as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, shall be considered.
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48. Computation and Payment of Annual Fixed Charges and Energy Charges for
Thermal Generating Stations

A. Annual Fixed Charges

48.1 The total Annual Fixed Charges shall be computed based on the norms specified
under these Regulations and recovered on monthly basis.

48.2 The full Annual Fixed Charges shall be recoverable at target availability specified
in Regulation 44.1 and 44.2, and recovery of Annual Fixed Charges below the level of Target
Availability shall be on pro-rata basis:

Provided that at zero availability, no Annual Fixed Charges shall be payable.

48.3 Computation and billing of Annual Fixed Charges shall be on monthly basis in
proportion to Contracted Capacity and based on the cumulative Availability achieved with
respect to the Target Availability, till the respective month in the Year, subject to adjustment
at the end of the year.

B. Energy Charges
48.4 The Energy Charges shall cover landed fuel cost of primary fuel and secondary

fuel oil and shall be worked out on the basis of ex-bus energy sent out from the Generating
Station as per the following formula :(—

Energy Charges (Rs) = Energy Charge Rate in Rs/kWh x ex-bus energy sent out for the
month in kWh corresponding to actual generation.

48.5 Energy Charge Rate (ECR) in Rs/kWh shall be computed up to three decimal places
and shall be the sum of the cost of normative quantities of primary and secondary fuel for
delivering ex-bus one kWh of electricity, and shall be computed as per the following formula :—

[P,x(@,),+P,x(Q),]
ECR = (Rs/kWh)
[1(AUX )]
Where, Pp = landed cost of primary fuel, namely coal or lignite or gas or liquid fuel

and limestone, if applicable, in Rs/kg or Rs/cum or Rs/litre, as the case
may be ;

Q), Quantity of primary fuel required for generation of one kWh of electricity
at generator terminals in kg or litre or standard cubic metre, as the case
may be, and shall be computed on the basis of normative Gross Station
Heat Rate (less heat contributed by secondary fuel oil for coal/lignite based
Generating Stations) and gross calorific value of coal/lignite or gas or liquid
fuel as received at unloading point less actual stacking loss subject to the

maximum stacking loss of 150 kcal/kg ;
P. = landed cost of Secondary fuel oil in Rs./ml ;

(Q), = Normative Quantity of Secondary fuel oil in ml/kWh as per Regulations
44.11 and 44.12, and

AUX = Normative Auxiliary Energy Consumption as % of gross generation as per
Regulations 44.13 to 44.18 :

Provided that the landed cost of primary fuel and secondary fuel for tariff determination
shall be based on actual weighted average cost of primary fuel and secondary fuel of the
three preceding months, and in the absence of landed costs for the three preceding months,
latest procurement price of primary fuel and secondary fuel for the generating Station,
preceding the first month for which the Tariff is to be determined for existing stations and
immediately preceding three months in case of new generating stations shall be taken into
account :

Provided that the landed cost of fuel shall include price of fuel corresponding to the

grade/quality/calorific value of fuel inclusive of royalty, taxes and duties as applicable,
transportation cost by rail/road/gas pipe line or any other means, and, for the purpose of
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computation of energy charges, shall be arrived at after considering normative transit and
handling losses as percentage of the quantity of fuel dispatched by the fuel supply company
during the month as specified in Regulation 44.19 :

Provided also that any refund of taxes and duties along with any amount received on
account of penalties from fuel supplier shall have to be adjusted in fuel cost :

Provided also that the Energy Charges, for the purpose of billing/Fuel Surcharge shall
be worked out Station-wise/Unit-wise based on weighted average rate based on actual
generation from each Unit.

48.6 Adjustment of ECR [Fuel Surcharge Adjustment] on account of variation in price or
heat value of fuels —

Any variation in Price and Gross Calorific Value of coal/lignite or gas or liquid fuel as
received at unloading point less actual stacking loss subject to the maximum stacking loss of
150 kcal/kg vis-a-vis approved values shall be adjusted on month to month basis on the basis
of average Gross Calorific Value of coal/lignite or gas or liquid fuel in stock received and
weighted average landed cost incurred by the Generating Company for procurement of coal/
lignite, oil, or gas or liquid fuel, as the case may be for a power Station :

Provided that in its bills, the Generating Company shall indicate Energy Charge Rates
at base price of primary and secondary fuel approved by the Commission and the Fuel
Surcharge to it separately :

Provided further that the Generating Company shall provide to the Beneficiaries of the
generating Station, the details of parameters of GCV and price of fuel for each type of fuel,
i.e., domestic coal, imported coal, e-auction coal, lignite, natural gas, RLNG, liquid fuel, etc.,
as per the forms prescribed by the Commission :

Provided also that the details of blending ratio of the imported coal with domestic coal,
proportion of e-auction coal and the weighted average GCV of the fuels as received shall also
be provided separately, along with the bills of the respective month :

Provided also that copies of the bills and details of parameters of GCV and price of fuel,
i.e., domestic coal, imported coal, e-auction coal, lignite, natural gas, RLNG, liquid fuel, etc.,
details of blending ratio of the imported coal with domestic coal, proportion of e-auction coal
shall also be displayed month-wise on the website of the Generating Company, and should be
available on its website for a period of three months.

C. Incentive

48.7 Incentive shall be payable at a flat rate of 25.0 paise/kWh for actual energy
generation in excess of ex-bus energy corresponding to target Plant Load Factor.

48.8 The Incentive amount shall be computed and billed on monthly basis based on the
cumulative Plant Load Factor achieved with respect to the target Plant Load Factor till the
respective month in a Year, subject to adjustment at the end of the Year.

49. Computation and Payment of Capacity Charges, Energy Charges and Lease Rent
for Hydro Generating Stations —

49.1 The Annual Fixed Charges of a Hydro Generating Station shall be computed on
annual basis, based on norms specified under these Regulations, and recovered on monthly
basis under Capacity Charge (inclusive of incentive) and Energy Charge, which shall be payable
by the Beneficiaries in proportion to their respective share in the capacity of the Generating
Station.

49.2 In addition to Annual Fixed Charges to be recovered through Capacity Charge
and Energy Charge, the Lease Rent and Water Royalty shall be payable by the Beneficiaries
in proportion to their respective share in the capacity of the Generating Station on monthly
basis.



HERTE IS TS0 STHTEIRUT 91T 9R-&, fEUew ¢, 0%4/UEEUT 9, Tk 2’39 %3

49.3 The Capacity Charge (inclusive of incentive) payable to a Hydro Generating Station
for a calendar month shall be —

AFC x 0.5 x NDM / NDY x (PAFM / NAPAF) (in Rupees)

Where,

AFC = Annual Fixed Cost specified for the year, in Rupees.

NAPAF = Normative Annual Plant Availability Factor in percentage

NDM =  Number of Days in the Month

NDY =  Number of Days in the Year

PAFM = Plant Availability Factor achieved during the Month, in Percentage

49.4 The PAFM shall be computed in accordance with the following formula :(—
N
PAFM =100 x = DC /{ NXICx(1-AUX)} %
i=1

Where,

AUX = Normative auxiliary energy consumption in percentage.

DC, = Declared Capacity (in ex-bus MW) for the i** day of the month which the
Station can deliver for at least three hours, as certified by the MSLDC
after the day is over.

IC = Installed Capacity (in MW) of the complete Generating Station

N =  Number of days in the month.

49.5 The Energy Charge shall be payable by every Beneficiary for the total energy
supplied to the Beneficiary, during the calendar month, on ex-bus basis, at the computed
Energy Charge Rate. Total Energy Charge payable to the Generating Company for a month
shall be :—

(Energy Charge Rate in Rs. / kWh) x {Energy (ex-bus)} for the month in kWh

49.6 Energy Charge Rate (ECR) in Rupees per kWh on ex-bus basis, for a Hydro
Generating Station, shall be determined up to three decimal places based on the following
formula :—

ECR = AFCx05 /{DEx(1-AUX)}
Where,
DE =  Annual Design Energy specified for the Hydro Generating Station, in

kWh, subject to Regulation 49.7.

49.7 In case actual total energy generated by a Hydro Generating Station during a year
is less than the Design Energy for reasons beyond the control of the Generating Company,
the following treatment shall be applied on a rolling basis on a Petition filed by the Generating
Company :(—

(i) In case the energy shortfall occurs within ten years from the date of commercial
operation of a Generating Station, the ECR for the year following the year of energy shortfall
shall be computed based on the formula specified in Regulation 49.6 with the modification
that the DE for the year shall be considered as equal to the actual energy generated during
the year of the shortfall, till the Energy Charge shortfall of the previous year has been
made up, after which normal ECR shall be applicable :

Provided that in case actual generation from a hydel generating Station is less than
the Design Energy for a continuous period of 4 years on account of hydrology factor, the
generating Station shall approach the Central Electricity Authority with relevant hydrology
data for revision of design energy of the Station.

(i) In case the energy shortfall occurs after ten years from the date of commercial
operation of a Generating Station, the following shall apply : —



¥

HERTE JTHA W05 FHTEIRUT UTT IR-&, fS@av ¢, Q0% /IEMEuT RV, Tid 2’39

Explanation—Suppose the specified annual Design Energy (DE) for the Station is DE
MWh, and the actual energy generated during the concerned (first) and the following (second)
Years is Al and A2 MWh, respectively, Al being less than DE. Then, the design energy to be
considered in the formula in Regulation 49.6 of these Regulations for calculating the ECR for
the third Year shall be moderated as (Al + A2 — DE) MWh, subject to a maximum of DE MWh
and a minimum of A1 MWh.

(ii1) Actual energy generated (e.g., A1, A2) shall be arrived at by multiplying the net
metered energy sent out from the Station by 1/ (1 — AUX).

49.8 In case the Energy Charge Rate (ECR) for a Hydro Generating Station, as computed
in Regulation 49.6, exceeds ninety paise per kWh, and the actual saleable energy in a Year
exceeds { DE x ( 1 — AUX ) } kWh, the Energy Charge for the energy in excess of the above
shall be billed at ninety (90) paise per kWh only :

Provided that in a year following a year in which total energy generated was less than
the Design Energy for reasons beyond the control of the Generating Company, the Energy
Charge Rate shall be reduced to ninety (90) paise per kWh after the energy charge shortfall
of the previous year has been made up.

49.9 The MSLDC shall finalise the schedules for the hydel Generating Stations, in
consultation with the Beneficiaries, for optimal utilization of all the energy declared to be
available, which shall be scheduled for all Beneficiaries in proportion to their respective
allocations in the Generating Station.

50. Pumped Storage Hydro Generating Stations—

50.1 The mechanism for billing for existing pumped storage hydel stations shall be in
accordance with the Power Purchase Agreement already approved by the Commission, and
shall not be in accordance with this Regulation.

50.2 The fixed cost of pumped storage hydel generating stations achieving COD after
April 1, 2016 shall be computed on annual basis, based on norms specified under these
Regulations, and recovered on monthly basis as Capacity Charge.

50.3 The Capacity Charge shall be payable by the Beneficiaries in proportion to their
respective allocation in the saleable capacity of the generating Station :

Provided that during the period between the date of commercial operation of the first
Unit of the generating Station and the date of commercial operation of the generating Station,
the annual fixed cost shall be worked out based on the latest estimate of the completion cost
for the generating Station, for the purpose of determining the Capacity Charge payment
during such period.

50.4 The Capacity Charge payable to a pumped storage hydel generating Station for a
calendar month shall be :

(AFC x NDM / NDY) (in Rupees), if actual Generation during the month is greater
than or equal to 75 % of the Pumping Energy consumed by the Station during the
month, and

{(AFC x NDM / NDY) x (Actual Generation during the month during peak hours/ 75%
of the Pumping Energy consumed by the Station during the month) (in Rupees)}, if
actual Generation during the month is lower than 75 % of the Pumping Energy consumed
by the Station during the month.

Where,

AFC = Annual fixed cost specified for the year, in Rupees ;

NDM = Number of days in the month ;

NDY = Number of days in the year:

Provided that there would be adjustment at the end of the year based on actual generation
and actual pumping energy consumed by the Station during the year.
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50.5 The energy charge shall be payable by every Beneficiary for the total energy scheduled
to be supplied to the Beneficiary in excess of the design energy plus 75% of the energy utilized in
pumping the water from the lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir, at a flat
rate equal to the average Energy Charge Rate of 20 paise per kWh on ex-power plant basis.

50.6 Energy charge payable to the Generating Company for a month shall be :

= 0.20 x {Energy generated (ex-bus) for the month in kWh — (Design Energy for the month
(DE,) + 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from the lower elevation reservoir
to the higher elevation reservoir for the month)},

Where,
DE_ = Design energy for the month specified for the hydel generating Station, in kWh :

Provided that in case the energy generated in a month is less than the Design Energy for
the month plus 75% of the energy utilized in pumping the water from the lower elevation
reservoir to the higher elevation reservoir of the month, then the energy charges payable by
the Beneficiaries shall be zero.

50.7 The Generating Company shall maintain the record of daily inflows of natural
water into the upper elevation reservoir and the reservoir levels of upper elevation reservoir
and lower elevation reservoir on hourly basis.

50.8 The generator shall be required to maximize the peak hour supplies with the
available water including the natural flow of water :

Provided that in case it is established that the Generating Company is deliberately or
otherwise without any valid reason, not pumping water from lower elevation reservoir to
the higher elevation during off-peak period or not generating power to its potential or wasting
natural flow of water, the capacity charges of the day shall not be payable by the Beneficiary :

Provided further that for this purpose, outages of the Unit(s)/Station including planned
outages and the forced outages upto 15% in a year shall be construed as the valid reason for
not pumping water from lower elevation reservoir to the higher elevation during off-peak
period or not generating power using energy of pumped water or natural flow of water :

Provided also that the total capacity charges recovered during the year shall be adjusted
on pro-rata basis in the following manner in the event of total machine outages in a year
exceeds 15% :

(ACC),, = (ACC) , x (1- ATO)/85

Where,

(ACC),,; = Adjusted Annual Capacity Charges

(ACC) , = Annual Capacity Charges recovered

ATO = Total Outages in percentage for the year including forced and planned outages:

Provided also that the generating Station shall be required to declare its machine
availability daily on day ahead basis for all the time blocks of the day in line with the scheduling
procedure laid down under the State Grid Code.

51. Demonstration of declared capacity—

51.1 The Generating Company may be required to demonstrate the declared capacity
of its Generating Station as and when asked by the MSLDC.

51.2 In the event of the Generating Company failing to demonstrate the declared
capacity, the Annual Fixed Charges due to the Generating Company shall be reduced as a
measure of penalty.

51.3 The quantum of penalty for the first mis-declaration for any duration/block in a
day shall be the charges corresponding to two days fixed charges.

51.4 For the second mis-declaration, the penalty shall be equivalent to fixed charges
for four days and for subsequent mis-declarations in the year, the penalty shall be multiplied
in the geometrical progression.

51.5 The operating logbooks of the Generating Station shall be available for scrutiny
by the MSLDC, and these books shall keep record of machine operation and maintenance.
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52. Billing and Payment of Charges—

The Billing and Payment of Annual Fixed Charges, Energy Charges, Fuel Surcharge
Adjustments and Incentive for Thermal Generating Stations, and of Capacity Charges and
Energy Charges for Hydro Generating Stations, shall be done on a monthly basis.

PART F : TRANSMISSION
53. Applicability—
53.1 The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to the determination of Tariff
for access and use of the intra-State transmission system pursuant to a Bulk Power

Transmission Agreement or other arrangement entered into with a Transmission System
User :

Provided that in case a new transmission system set up by a new Transmission Licensee
is added to the existing system during the Control Period, the Commission shall re-determine
the Tariff for the remaining years of the Control Period having regard to the Petition for
determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement submitted by such Transmission Licensee
for the remaining years of the Control Period.

53.2 The Commission shall be guided by the terms and conditions contained in this
Part in specifying the rates, charges, terms and conditions for use of intervening transmission
facilities pursuant to a Petition filed in this regard by a Transmission Licensee under the
proviso to Section 36 (1) of the Act.

54. Components of Tariff—

54.1 The transmission charges for access to and use of the intra-State transmission
system shall comprise any of the following components or a combination of the following
components :(—

(a) transmission system access charges ;

(b) annual transmission charges ;

(c) per unit charges for energy transmitted ;
(d) reactive energy charges.

54.2 Any person who is eligible to apply for access to the intra-State transmission system
shall be entitled to obtain such access in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission
governing Transmission Open Access and shall be liable to pay the charges for obtaining
such access as specified in this Regulation.

Explanation.— For the purpose of this Regulation, such person who, being eligible for
transmission open access, has applied for allocation of transmission capacity rights and has
agreed to the carrying out of works for obtaining such access shall hereinafter be referred to
as the “intending Transmission System User”, and may include an existing Transmission
System User in respect of any increase in allocated transmission capacity rights applied for
by such existing user.

54.3 Where the access of the intending Transmission System User to the intra-State
transmission system entails works of transmission lines or other transmission assets dedicated
to such User, the Transmission Licensee shall be entitled to recover, through the transmission
system access charges, all expenses reasonably incurred on such works for providing access
to such intending Transmission System User.

54.4 Where the access of the intending Transmission System User entails other works,
not covered under Regulation 54.3 relating to the intra-State transmission system, the
Transmission Licensee shall recover the expenses relating to such works through annual
transmission charges for each Year of the Control Period, in accordance with Regulation
54.10.

54.5 Where any works for obtaining access have been carried out by the intending
Transmission System User, the Transmission Licensee shall be entitled to recover supervision
charges at the rate of 15 per cent of the cost of labour employed for carrying out such works
and shall not be entitled to recover any other expenses with regard to such works :
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Provided that such supervision charges shall form part of the Non-Tariff Income of the
respective Transmission Licensee and shall also be treated as O and M expense incurred by
the intending transmission system users, which shall be capitalised in the respective year of
asset capitalisation.

54.6 The works for providing access to the intra-State transmission system shall be
maintained by the Transmission Licensee for the duration of the Bulk Power Transmission
Agreement between the Transmission Licensee and the Transmission System User.

54.7 Where the Transmission System User has paid for the works carried out to provide
it access to the intra-State transmission system, the Transmission System User shall be
entitled to the depreciated value of such works paid for by it upon termination of the Bulk
Power Transmission Agreement :

Provided that where the Transmission System User has carried out the works to provide
it access to the intra-State transmission system of the Transmission Licensee, the Transmission
System User shall be entitled to retain such works upon termination of the Bulk Power
Transmission Agreement.

54.8 The transmission system access charges may be recovered by any one of the following
methods, in accordance with the terms of the Bulk Power Transmission Agreement —
(a) As a one-time payment by the Transmission System User at the time of obtaining
access ; or

(b) As a series of payments over the duration of the Bulk Power Transmission
Agreement ; or

(c) As any combination of (a) and (b) above.

54.9 Any dispute between the Transmission Licensee and the intending Transmission
System User with regard to the works to be carried out to give access to the intending
Transmission System User or with regard to the transmission system access charges shall be
referred to the Commission for adjudication or to such other forum as may be stipulated.

54.10 The Annual Transmission Charges for each Year of the Control Period shall
provide for the recovery of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Transmission Licensee
for the respective Year of the Control Period, as approved by the Commission and comprising
the following components :—

(a) Operation and maintenance expenses ;

(b) Depreciation ;

(c) Interest on Loan Capital ;

(d) Interest on working capital and deposits from Transmission System Users ;
(e) Contribution to contingency reserves ;

(f) Return on Equity Capital ;

(g) Income Tax ;

minus

(h) Income from Open Access charges ;

(i) Non-Tariff income ;

() Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in these Regulations:

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on working capital and
deposits from Transmission System Users, Contribution to Contingency Reserves, Return
on Equity, and Income Tax for Transmission Licensees shall be allowed in accordance with
the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations :

Provided further that the components of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement
corresponding to the transmission lines owned by Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission
Company Limited (MSETCL) and conveying electricity to other States, being recovered
through the Point of Connection (PoC) transmission charges in accordance with the
Regulations and Orders of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission, shall not be
recovered from the Annual Transmission Charges determined under these Regulations :

HIT IR h-C0-3RA
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Provided also that in case any such components have already been recovered through
the intra-State transmission tariff, then such excess recovery shall be deducted from the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of MSETCL for the future years, along with associated
holding cost, as applicable :

Provided also that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission at
the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, subject to prudence
check :

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Licensee to any party
for failure to meet any Standards of Performance or for damages, as a consequence of the
orders of the Commission, Courts, etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement :

Provided also that the Transmission Licensee shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Licensee, if any, and shall submit them to
the Commission along with its Petition.

54.11 The Annual Transmission Charges of the Transmission Licensee shall be
determined by the Commission on the basis of a Petition for determination of Aggregate
Revenue Requirement or Petition for adoption of Annual Transmission Charges in case of
competitively awarded transmission system Project, as the case may be, filed by the
Transmission Licensee in accordance with Part B of these Regulations.

55. Petition for determination of Provisional Tariff—

55.1 A new Transmission Licensee shall file the Petition for determination of provisional
Tariff, six months prior to the anticipated date of commercial operation of the transmission
assets.

55.2 The new Transmission Licensee shall file a Petition for determination of provisional
Tariff based on capital expenditure incurred and projected to be incurred up to the date of
commercial operation and additional capital expenditure incurred, duly certified by the
statutory auditors :

Provided that the Petition shall contain details of underlying assumptions for the
projected capital cost and additional capital cost, wherever applicable.

55.3 The new Transmission Licensee may be allowed provisional Tariff by the
Commission from the anticipated date of commercial operation, based on the projected capital
expenditure, subject to prudence check.

55.4 If the date of commercial operation is likely to be delayed beyond six months from
the date of issue of the order approving the provisional Tariff, the Transmission Licensee
may submit a Petition for seeking extension of the validity of the applicability of the provisional
Tariff, giving details of the present status of completion and justification for the delay in

project completion, which may be considered by the Commission after necessary prudence
check.

55.5 The new Transmission Licensee shall file the Petition for determination of final
Tariff within six months from the date of commercial operation, based on the audited capital
expenditure and capitalisation as on the date of commercial operation.

55.6 The final Tariff determination for the new Transmission Licensee shall be done by
the Commission based on prudence check of the audited capital expenditure and capitalisation
as on the date of commercial operation.

55.7 Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is less than the Capital
Cost approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five percent or
more, the Transmission Licensee shall refund to the Beneficiaries, the excess Tariff realised
corresponding to excess Capital Cost, along with interest at the Base Rate, as prevalent on
the first day of April of the respective Year, plus 150 basis points.

55.8 Where the actual Capital Cost incurred on year to year basis is more than the
Capital Cost approved for determination of provisional Tariff by the Commission, by five
percent or more, the Transmission Licensee shall, subject to the approval of the Commission,
recover from the Beneficiaries the shortfall in Tariff corresponding to such decrease in Capital
Cost along with interest at the Base Rate, as prevalent on the first day of April of the respective
Year, plus 150 basis points.
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56. Capital Investment Plan—

56.1 The Transmission Licensee shall submit a detailed capital investment plan,
financing plan and physical targets for each year of the Control Period for strengthening and
augmentation of the intra-State transmission system of the Transmission Licensee, meeting
the requirement of load growth, improvement in quality of supply, reliability, metering,
reduction in congestion, etc., to the Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-year
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period.

56.2 The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments
and shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. Ten crore or such
other amount as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time, and shall be in such
form as may be stipulated.

56.3 The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars
and documents as may be required including but not limited to the information such as number
of bays, name, configuration and location of grid substations, substation capacity (MVA),
transmission line length (circuit kilometres) showing the need for the proposed investments,
alternatives considered, cost-benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing on
the transmission charges.

56.4 The Capital Investment Plan of the Transmission Licensee shall be consistent
with the transmission system plan for the intra-State transmission system developed by the
State Transmission Utility :

Provided that any capital expenditure incurred by the Transmission Licensee based on
the specific requirement of a Generating Company or Distribution Licensee shall be
substantiated with necessary documentary evidence in the form of request for the same and
undertaking given as appropriate.

56.5 The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-
year Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the
Transmission Licensee taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure
and estimated impact on transmission charges.

56.6 The Transmission Licensee shall submit, along with the Petition for determination
of Aggregate Revenue Requirement or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance
Review, as the case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects,
together with such other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may
require to assess such progress.

57. Norms for operation—
57.1 Target availability for the Transmission Licensee shall be as under—

(a) For full recovery of Annual Transmission Charges—

(a) AC system : 98 per cent ;

(b) HVDC bi-pole links and HVDC back-to-back stations : 95 per cent ;
(b) For Incentive consideration—

(¢) AC system : 99 per cent ;

(d) HVDC bi-pole links and HVDC back-to-back stations : 96 per cent ;

Note 1.—Recovery of annual transmission charges below the level of target availability
shall be on pro-rata basis, and at zero availability, no transmission charges shall be payable.

Note 2.—The target availability shall be computed in accordance with procedure
provided in the Annexure-II to these Regulations and be certified by MSLDC.
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57.2 The Transmission Licensee shall be entitled to incentive on achieving annual
availability beyond the target availability, in accordance with the following formula :—

Incentive = Annual Transmission Charges x (Annual availability achieved — Target
Availability) / Target Availability ;

Where,

Annual transmission Charges shall correspond to Aggregate Revenue Requirement
for each year of the Control Period for the particular Transmission Licensee within the
State:

Provided that no incentive shall be payable above the availability of 99.75 % for AC
system and 98.5 % for HVDC system :

Provided further that for AC system, two trippings per element per year shall be
allowed, and after two trippings in a year, additional 12 hours outage for that particular
element for each such tripping shall be considered in addition to the actual outage :

Provided also that in case of outage of a transmission element affecting evacuation of
power from a generating Station, outage hours shall be multiplied by a factor of 2 :

Provided also that the computation of incentive/disincentive shall be undertaken during
Mid-Term Review and at the end of Control Period.

58. Operation and Maintenance expenses—

58.1 The norms for O and M expenses for existing and new Transmission Licensees
have been specified on the basis of circuit kilometre of transmission lines and number of bays
in the substation of the Transmission Licensee, as given below :—

Explanation.—For the purpose of applying normative O and M expenses under these
Regulations, a ‘Bay’ shall mean a set of accessories that are required to connect an electrical
equipment such as Transmission Line, Bus Section Breakers, Potential Transformers, Power
Transformers, Capacitors and Transfer Breaker and the feeders emanating from the bus at
sub-Station of Transmission Licensee. Further, the Bays referred to shall include only the
Bays at the Transmission substation and shall exclude any Bays of the Generating Station
switchyard whose maintenance is usually the responsibility of the Generating Company :

Provided that for computing the allowable O and M expenses for any Year, 50 per cent of
the circuit kilometre of transmission lines and number of bays in the substation of the
Transmission Licensee added during the Year shall also be considered :

Provided further that at the time of Truing up along with the Mid-term Review or at the
end of the Control Period, the allowable O and M expenses for any Year shall be based on the
norms for O and M expenses specified by the Commission in this Regulation and documentary
evidence of assets capitalised by the Petitioner, subject to the prudence check of the

Commission.
58.2 The norms for O and M expenses for MSETCL shall be :—

Voltage Level FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
HVDC (Rs. Lakh) 1774 1922 2082 2256
Rs. Lakh/ckt km.

765 kV 0.97 1.02 1.07 1.13
400 kV 0.69 0.73 0.76 0.80
>66 kVand <400 kV 0.28 0.29 0.30 0.32
66 kV and less 0.17 0.17 0.19 0.19
Rs Lakh/bay

765 kV 171.47 180.04 189.04 198.50
400 kV 122.49 128.61 135.04 141.80
>66kVand <400 kV 17.75 18.64 19.57 20.55

66 kV and less 3.71 3.89 4.09 4.29
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58.3 The norms for O and M expenses for The Tata Power Company Ltd. - Transmission
(TPC-T) shall be :—

Voltage Level FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
Rs. Lakh/ckt km
>66kVand <400 kV 1.19 1.25 1.32 1.38
Rs. Lakh/bay
>66kVand <400 kV 31.12 32.68 34.31 36.03
66 kV and less 6.51 6.83 7.18 7.53

58.4 The norms for O and M expenses for Reliance Infrastructure Ltd. - Transmission
(RInfra-T) shall be :—

Voltage Level FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
Rs. Lakh/ckt km
>66 kVand <400 kV 0.59 0.62 0.65 0.68
Rs. Lakh/bay
>66 kVand <400 kV  27.70 29.09 30.54 32.07
66kV and less 5.79 6.08 6.38 6.70

58.5 The norms for O and M expenses for Jaigad Power Transmission Company Limited
(JPTL) shall be :—

Voltage Level FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
Rs. Lakh/ckt km.
400 kV 0.42 0.44 0.46 0.48
Rs. Lakh/bay
400 kV 74.13 77.84 81.73 85.82

58.6 The Year-wise O and M norms for higher voltage levels and HVDC as specified in
Regulation 58.7 and not specified for other existing Transmission Licensees, shall be the
applicable norms for transmission assets added by such other existing Transmission
Licensee(s) in the respective year during the Control Period.

58.7 For the new Transmission Licensees, the year-wise O and M norms shall be :—

Voltage Level FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20
HVDC (Rs. Lakh) 1774 1922 2082 2256
Rs. Lakh/ckt km.

765 kV 0.97 1.02 1.07 1.13
400 kV 0.42 0.44 0.46 0.48
>66 kVand <400 kV 0.28 0.29 0.30 0.32
66 kV and less 0.17 0.17 0.19 0.19
Rs. Lakh/bay

765 kV 171.47 180.04 189.04 198.50
400 kV 74.13 77.84 81.73 85.82
>66kVand <400 kV 17.75 18.64 19.57 20.55
66 kV and less 3.71 3.89 4.09 4.29

Explanation.—The term “New Transmission Licensee” shall mean the transmission
Licensee(s) for which Transmission Licence is granted by the Commission prior to or after the
date of coming into effect of these Regulations, and for whom the O and M norms have not been
specified in Regulations 58.2 to 58.5.
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58.8 For such Transmission Licensees whose bays are installed in the premises of and
maintained by another Transmission Licensee, the O and M expense for such assets shall be
allowed in accordance with the norms applicable for the Transmission Licensee who performs
the O and M of such assets :

Provided that the Transmission Licensees shall mutually agree on sharing of such allowed
O and M expenses :

Provided further that Transmission Licensees shall project addition of such assets over
the Control Period separately in their Capital Investment Plan.

59. Non-Tariff Income—

59.1 The amount of non-Tariff income relating to the Transmission Business as approved
by the Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Annual Transmission Charges of the Transmission Licensee :

Provided that the Transmission Licensee shall submit full details of its forecast of non-
Tariff income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

59.2  The Non-Tariff Income shall include :(—
(a) Income from rent of land or buildings ;
(b) Income from sale of scrap ;
(¢) Income from investments ;
(d) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors ;
(e) Income from rental from staff quarters ;
(f) Income from rental from contractors ;
(g) Income from hire charges from contractors and others ;
(h) Supervision charges for capital works ;
(i) Income from advertisements ;
(/) Income from sale of tender documents ;
(k) Any other Non-Tariff Income :

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Transmission Licensee shall not be included
in Non-Tariff Income.

60. Income from Other Business—

Where the Transmission Licensee has engaged in any Other Business under Section 41
of the Act for optimum utilisation of its assets, an amount equal to two-thirds of the revenues
from such Other Business after deduction of all direct and indirect costs attributed to such
Other Business shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in calculating
the Annual Transmission Charges of the Transmission Licensee :

Provided that the Transmission Licensee shall follow a reasonable basis for allocation of
all joint and common costs between the Transmission Business and the Other Business and
shall submit the Allocation Statement, duly certified by the Statutory Auditor, to the
Commission along with its Petition for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement :

Provided further that where the sum total of the direct and indirect costs of such Other
Business exceeds the revenues from such Other Business, no amount shall be allowed to be
added to the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Transmission Licensee on account of
such Other Business.

61. Determination of Intra-State Transmission Tariff—

61.1 The aggregate of the yearly revenue requirement for all Transmission Licensees
shall form the “Total Transmission System Cost” (TTSC) of the Intra-State transmission
system, to be recovered from the Transmission System Users (TSUs) for the respective year
of the Control Period, in accordance with the following Formula :—
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TTSC,= % ARR
Where,
TTSC,,, = Pooled Total Transmission System Cost of year (t) of the Control Period
n = Number of Transmission Licensee(s) ;

ARR, = Yearly revenue requirement approved by the Commission for i** Transmission
Licensee for the yearly period (t) of the Control Period :

Provided that in case of transmission system projects undertaken in accordance with
the Guidelines for competitive bidding for transmission under Section 63 of the Act, the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement as per the annual Transmission Service Charges (TSC)
quoted by such projects, shall be considered, for aggregation under the TTSC.

61.2 The Commission shall approve yearly ‘Base Transmission Capacity Rights’ as
average of Coincident Peak Demand and Non-Coincident Peak Demand for TSUs as projected
for 12 monthly period of each year (t) of the Control Period, representing the ‘Capacity
Utilisation’ of Intra-State transmission system and accordingly determine yearly ‘Base
Transmission Tariff’, in accordance with the following formula :(—

Base Transmission Capacity

Rights (Base TCR) for the .
yearly period (t) = ?
Where, =

CPD, = Average of projected monthly Coincident Peak Demand for the yearly period (t) of
Control Period for each Transmission System User (u)

[(CPD(r)+ NCPFDIt)/Z

NCPD,,, = Average of projected monthly Non-Coincident Peak Demand for the Yearly period
(t) of Control Period for each Transmission System User (u) :

Provided that for the first year of the Control Period, the Base Transmission Capacity
Rights for all Transmission System Users shall be determined based on average monthly
CPD and NCPD of the Transmission System Users prevalent during the 12 months prior to
date of coming into effect of these Regulations or 12 months prior to filing of the Petition by
the Transmission Licensees, depending on availability of such data :

Provided further that the Allotted Capacity for long-term Open Access Users excluding
partial Open Access Users shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD and NCPD
for calculating the Base Transmission Capacity Rights :

Provided also that the Yearly CPD and NCPD or the Allotted capacity, as the case may
be, to be considered for determination of the subsequent yearly Base Transmission Capacity
Rights shall be computed at the beginning of the Control Period based on the past trend and
on the basis of demand projections made by various TSUs connected to the Intra-State
transmission system as part of their MYT Petitions for the Control Period :

Provided also that on completion of each year of the Control Period, MSLDC shall submit
the recorded CPD and NCPD data or the Allotted capacity, as the case may be, for past 12
months in respect of each Transmission System User and on the basis of the same, the Base
TCR shall be suitably revised at the time of Mid-Term Review and at the end of the Control
Period for the subsequent years.

61.3 Base Transmission Tariff for each Year shall be determined as ratio of approved
‘TTSC’ for intra-State transmission system and approved ‘Base Transmission Capacity Rights’
and shall be denominated in terms of “Rs/kW/month” (for long-term/medium-term usage) or
in terms of “Rs/kWh” (for short-term bilateral open access transactions usage, short-term
collective transactions over Power Exchange and for Renewable Energy transactions) in
accordance with the following formula :

Base Transmission Tariff(t)
(long-term/medium-term) = TTSC,, / Base TCR,

(Rs/kW/month or Rs/MW/day)
97T ¥R H-¢o-Ro
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Base Transmission

Tariff, (Short-term) i
© TTSC (t)

(Rs/kWh) : Y= (Energy Transmined by T x 1)

Where,

TTSC,,, = Pooled cost for InSTS for yearly period (t) of the Control Period

Base TCR, = Base Transmission Capacity Rights for the yearly period (t) ;
n = Total number of Transmission Licensee(s) in that particular year of Control Period ;
Tx, = i** Transmission Licensee :

Provided that the energy units transmitted by the Transmission Licensees shall be based
on the energy input requirement of the Distribution Licensees at Generation-InSTS interface
point, as projected by each Distribution Licensee as part of its MYT Petition for the Control
Period and as approved by the Commission:

Provided further that any revisions in Base Transmission Capacity Rights and Base
Transmission Tariff as determined in Regulations 61.2 and 61.3 due to the variation in the
actual and approved CPD and NCPD shall be made at the time of Mid-Term Review and at
the end of the Control Period for the subsequent years:

Provided also that in case new Transmission Licensees are added to the intra-State
transmission network during the Control Period, then the TTSC, Base Transmission Capacity
Rights and Base Transmission Tariff as referred under Regulations 61.1, 61.2 and 61.3 shall
be re-determined for each remaining Year of the Control Period.

61.4 The Base Transmission Tariff shall continue to be billed at the Tariff approved
by the Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2016 for the period starting from April 1,
2016 till approval of Base Transmission Tariff by the Commission in accordance with these
Regulations.

62. Sharing of TTSC by long-term TSUs—

62.1 The long-term Transmission System Users shall share the TTSC of the intra-State
transmission system in the proportion of Base Transmission Capacity Rights of each
Transmission System User to the total Base Transmission Capacity Rights allotted in the
intra-State transmission system.

62.2 The Annual Transmission Charge payable by Transmission System User shall be
computed in accordance with the following formula :—

ATC(uw) . = TTSC“) X ([Base TCR(u)](t) / i [Base TCR(u)]

®
Where,

ATC(u)

(t))

= Annual Transmission Charges to be shared by Transmission System User
(u) for the yearly period (t) ;

Base TCR (u) = [CPD(u),, + NCPD(u) | /2
Where,

Base TCR represents the Base Transmission Capacity Right of each Transmission
System User (u) for the yearly period (t) ;

CPD (u)

(t)

= Average Coincident Peak Demand of the Transmission System User
(u) for the yearly period (t) ;

(t)

NCPD (u)(t) = Average Non-coincident Peak Demand of the Transmission System
User (u) for the yearly period (t) :

Provided that the Allotted Capacity for long-term Open Access Users, excluding partial
Open Access Users shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD and NCPD for
calculating the Base TCR for such Open Access Users.
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63. Usage of Intra-State Transmission System—

The charges for intra-State transmission usage shall be shared among various TSUs in
the following manner :(—

(a) Long-term TSU with recorded demand up to Base TCR shall not be subjected to
payment of short-term transmission charges ;

() Long-term TSU with recorded demand greater than Base TCR but lower than
Contracted Capacity shall make payment of short-term Transmission charges for the
recorded demand in excess of Base TCR ;

(c) Where the recorded demand of long-term TSU is greater than Contracted Capacity,
the TSU shall bear additional transmission charges as specified in the Regulations of the
Commission Governing Transmission Open Access :

Provided that short-term transmission charges and additional transmission charges,
if payable or paid by long-term TSUs in accordance with the clauses (a), (b) and (c) above,
shall be adjusted during subsequent billing period upon availability of information regarding
actual recorded demand by such long-term TSUs.

64. Transmission Pricing Framework—

The Commission may, after conducting a detailed study and due regulatory process,
change the existing transmission pricing framework to one considering factors such as voltage,
distance, direction and quantum of flow based on the methodology specified by the Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission, as the Commission may deem appropriate.

65. Billing and Payment of Charges—

65.1 The State Transmission Utility (STU) shall raise monthly bill for Intra-State
Transmission Charges on every Transmission System User (TSU) on the first working day of
the month for the Transmission Charges of preceding month.

65.2 The monthly bill for transmission Tariff shall be payable within thirty days of
receipt of bill by the TSUs.

65.3 All TSUs shall ensure timely payment of Transmission Tariff to STU so as to enable
STU to make timely settlement of claims raised by Transmission Licensees.

66. Transmission Losses—
The energy losses in the intra-State transmission system, as determined by the State Load

Despatch Centre and approved by the Commission, shall be borne by the Transmission System
Users in proportion to their usage of the intra-State transmission system.

67. Reactive Energy Charges—

67.1 A Generating Station shall inject/absorb the reactive energy in to the grid on the
basis of machine capability as per the directions of MSLDC.

67.2 Reactive energy exchange, only if made as per the directions of MSLDC, for the
applicable duration (injection or absorption) shall be compensated/levied by the MSLDC to
the Generating Station at rate of 12.00 paise/RkVAh for FY 2016-17 escalated at 0.50 paise/
RkVAh annually in subsequent Years of the Control Period, unless otherwise revised by the
Commission.

67.3 The Transmission System Users shall be subjected to the following Incentive/
Disincentive to be compensated/levied by the MSLDC for maintaining the reactive energy
balance in the transmission system:

Party responsible Threshold Voltage at Interchange Rate for
for reactive energy performance point (Vp) compensation
compensation
TSU Maximum reactive energy -If Vp >103% of V_  -Incentive at the rate

drawal at each interchange of Rs 0.12/RkVAh for
point to be limited additional drawal.
corresponding to power -IfV <97% of V=~ -Penalty at the rate
factor of 0.9 of Rs 0.12/RVkAh for

additional drawal.
If97% < Vp <103% -Nil.

Where,
Vp = Voltage at the Interchange point
V ... = Nominal Value of Voltage

no
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PART G : DISTRIBUTION WIRES BUSINESS
68. Separation of Accounts of Distribution Licensee—

Every Distribution Licensee shall maintain separate accounting records for the
Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business and shall prepare an Allocation
Statement to enable the Commission to determine the Tariff separately for :—

(a) Distribution Wires Business ;
(b) Retail Supply of electricity :

Provided that in case complete accounting segregation has not been done between the
Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business of the Distribution Licensee, the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Licensee shall be apportioned between
the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business in accordance with the following
Allocation Matrix :

Particulars Distribution Wires Retail Supply

Business (%) Business (%)
Power Purchase Expenses 0% 100%
Inter-State Transmission Charges 0% 100%
Intra-State Transmission Charges 0% 100%
Operation and Maintenance Expenses 65% 35%
Depreciation 90% 10%
Interest on Long-term Loan Capital 90% 10%
Interest on Working Capital 10% 90%
Interest on Consumer Security Deposits 10% 90%
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 10% 90%
Income Tax 90% 10%
Contribution to Contingency Reserves 90% 10%
Return on Equity 90% 10%
Non-Tariff Income 10% 90%

Provided further that the above Allocation Matrix shall be applied for all or any of the
heads of expenditure and revenue, where actual accounting separation has not been done
between the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply Business :

Provided also that the Commission may require the Distribution Licensee to file separate
Petitions for determination of Tariff for the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply
Business.

69. Applicability—

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to the determination of Wheeling Charges
payable for usage of distribution wires of a Distribution Licensee by a Distribution System User.

70. Components of Aggregate Revenue Requirement for Distribution Wires
Business—

70.1 The Wheeling Charges of the Distribution Licensee shall provide for the recovery
of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Wires Business for the respective
Years of the Control Period, as approved by the Commission and comprising the following
components :(—

(@) Operation and maintenance expenses ;

(b) Depreciation ;

(c) Interest on Loan Capital ;

(d) Interest on working capital ;

(e) Interest on deposits from consumers and Distribution System Users ;

() Provision for Bad and doubtful debts ;
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(g) Contribution to contingency reserves ;

(h) Return on Equity Capital ;

() Income Tax ;

minus

(j) Non-Tariff income ;

(k) Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in these Regulations :

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on working capital,
Interest on deposits from consumers and Distribution System Users, Contribution to
Contingency Reserves, Return on Equity, and Income Tax for Distribution Wires Business
shall be allowed in accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations:

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission
at the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, subject to prudence
check :

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Licensee to any party
for failure to meet any Standards of Performance or for damages, as a consequence of the
orders of the Commission, Courts, Consumer Grievance Redressal Forum, and Ombudsman,
etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue Requirement :

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Licensee, if any, and shall submit them to
the Commission along with its Petition.

70.2 The Wheeling Charges of the Distribution Licensee shall be determined by the
Commission on the basis of a Petition for determination of Tariff filed by the Distribution
Licensee in accordance with Part B of these Regulations :

Provided that the Wheeling Charges may be denominated in terms of Rupees/kWh or
Rupees/kW/month, for the purpose of recovery from the Distribution System User, or any
such denomination, as may be stipulated by the Commission :

Provided further that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be
determined by the Commission till the date of coming into of these Regulations, the
Commission may determine the ceiling Wheeling Charges that may be charged by such Deemed
Distribution Licensee till such time as considered appropriate by the Commission.

70.3 The Wheeling Charges shall continue to be billed at the Tariff approved by the
Commission and applicable as on March 31, 2016 for the period starting from April 1, 2016
till approval of Wheeling Charges by the Commission in accordance with these Regulations.

71. Capital Investment Plan—

71.1 The Distribution Licensee shall submit a detailed Capital Investment Plan,
financing plan and physical targets for each Year of the Control Period for strengthening and
augmentation of its distribution network, meeting the requirement of load growth, reduction
in distribution losses, improvement in quality of supply, reliability, metering, reduction in
congestion, etc., to the Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-Year Tariff Petition
for the entire Control Period.

71.2 The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments
and shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. Ten Crore or such
other amount as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time and shall be in such
form as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time.

71.3 The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars
and documents as may be required including but not limited to the information such as number
of distribution sub-stations, consumer sub-stations, transformation capacity in MVA and
details of distribution transformers of different capacities, HT : LT ratio as well as distribution
line length showing the need for the proposed investments, alternatives considered, cost-
benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing on the Wheeling Charges :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit separate details of Capital
Investment being undertaken in each Distribution Franchisee area within its Licence area.
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71.4 The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-
Year Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the
Distribution Licensee taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure
and estimated impact on Wheeling Charges.

71.5 The Distribution Licensee shall submit, along with the Petition for determination
of Wheeling Charges, or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance Review, as the
case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects, together with such
other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may require to assess such
progress.

72. Operation and Maintenance Expenses—

72.1 The Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Distribution Wires Business
shall be computed in accordance with this Regulation.

72.2 The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the
average of the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the
share of efficiency gains/losses, for the three years ending March 31, 2015, excluding abnormal
Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the Commission.

72.3 The average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be considered as
Operation and Maintenance expenses for the year ended March 31, 2014, and shall be escalated
at the escalation rate of 5.72% to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses for the
base year commencing April 1, 2015.

72.4 The O and M expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined by escalating
the base expenses determined above for FY 2015-16, at the inflation factor considering 60%
weightage for the actual point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per
Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India in the previous year and 40% weightage
for the actual Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau,
Government of India in the previous year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1%, to arrive
at permissible O and M expenses for each year of the Control Period :

Provided that a different efficiency factor may be stipulated by the Commission from
time to time :

Provided further that at the time of Truing-up the O and M expenses for the different
years during the Control Period, the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for the actual
point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India in the concerned Year and 40% weightage for the actual Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau, Government of India in
the concerned year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or any other value as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, shall be considered.

72.5 In case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be determined by
the Commission till the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, the Commission may
determine the O and M expenses on case to case basis.

73. Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts—

For any Year, the Commission may allow a provision for bad and doubtful debts up to
1.5 % of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Wheeling Charges in
the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee for that Year :

Provided that the Commission, in its MYT Order, shall provisionally approve provision
for bad and doubtful debts for each Year of the Control Period, based on the actual provision
for bad and doubtful debts made by the Distribution Licensee in the latest Audited Accounts
available for the Petitioner, as allowed by the Commission :

Provided further that such provision allowed by the Commission for any Year shall not
exceed the actual provision for bad and doubtful debts made by the Distribution Licensee in
the audited accounts of that Year, duly allocated for the Distribution Wires Business, excluding
the provision made by the Distribution Licensee for unbilled revenue at the end of the Year :



HERTE IS TS0 STHTEIRUT 91T 9R-&, fEUew ¢, 0%4/UEEUT 9, Tk 2’39 U]

Provided also that in the Year when the cumulative provisioning for bad and doubtful
debts allowed by the Commission, duly allocated for the Distribution Wires Business, exceeds
five per cent of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Wheeling Charges
in the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee, no such appropriation shall be allowed,
which would have the effect of increasing the cumulative provisioning beyond the said
maximum :

Provided also that the actual amount of bad and doubtful debts written off by the
Distribution Licensee shall have to be adjusted by the Distribution Licensee against the
accumulated provision for bad and doubtful debts and shall not be allowed separately as an
expense in the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Licensee.

74. Non-Tariff Income—

74.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income relating to the Distribution Wires Business as
approved by the Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Wheeling Charges of the Distribution Wires Business :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit full details of its forecast of Non-
Tariff Income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

74.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include :—
(a)Income from rent of land or buildings ;
(b) Income from sale of scrap ;
(¢) Income from investments ;
(d)Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors ;
(9)Income from rental from staff quarters ;
(f )Income from rental from contractors ;
(g)Income from hire charges from contactors and others ;

(h)Income from consumer charges levied in accordance with Schedule of Charges
approved by the Commission ;

(i) Supervision charges for capital works ;
(j) Income from advertisements ;
(k) Income from sale of tender documents ;
({) Any other Non-Tariff Income :

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity
corresponding to the regulated Business of the Distribution Wires Business shall not be
included in Non-Tariff Income.

75. Income from Other Business—

Where the Distribution Wires Business of the Distribution Licensee has engaged in any
Other Business under Section 51 of the Act for optimum utilisation of its assets, an amount
equal to two-thirds of the revenues from such Other Business after deduction of all direct
and indirect costs attributed to such Other Business shall be deducted from the Aggregate
Revenue Requirement in determining the Wheeling Charges of Distribution Wires Business :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall follow a reasonable basis for allocation of
all joint and common costs between the Distribution Wires Business and the Other Business
and shall submit the Allocation Statement, duly certified by the Statutory Auditor of the
Company, to the Commission along with its Petition for determination of Wheeling Charges:

Provided further that where the sum total of the direct and indirect costs of such Other
Business exceeds the revenues from such Other Business, no amount shall be allowed to be
added to the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Wires Business on account
of such Other Business.

76. Wheeling Losses—

The Distribution Wires Business shall be allowed to recover, in kind, the approved target
level of Wheeling Losses arising from the operation of the distribution system :
Provided that the Commission may stipulate a trajectory for Wheeling Losses in
accordance with Regulation 9 as part of the Order on the Multi-Year Tariff Petition filed by
the Distribution Licensee.
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PART H : RETAIL SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY
77. Applicability—
The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply to the determination of Tariff for retail
supply of electricity by a Distribution Licensee to its consumers.
78. Components of Aggregate Revenue Requirement for Retail Supply Business—

78.1 The Tariff for retail supply of the Distribution Licensee shall provide for the
recovery of the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Retail Supply Business for the
respective Years of the Control Period, as approved by the Commission and comprising the
following components :—

(a) Cost of own power generation /power purchase expenses ;
(b) Inter-State Transmission Charges ;
(¢) Intra-State Transmission Charges ;
(d) MSLDC Fees and Charges ;
(e) Operation and Maintenance expenses ;
(f) Depreciation ;
(g) Interest on Loan Capital ;
(h) Interest on working capital ;
() Interest on consumer security deposits ;
(/) Provision for Bad and doubtful debts ; and
(k) Contribution to contingency reserves ;
(I) Return on Equity Capital ;
(m) Income Tax ;
minus
(n) Non-Tariff income ;
(0) Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in these Regulations ;
(p) Receipts on account of Cross-Subsidy Surcharge ;
(g) Receipts on account of Additional Surcharge :

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan Capital, Interest on working capital,
Interest on consumer security deposits, Contribution to Contingency Reserves, Return on
Equity, and Income Tax for Retail Supply Business shall be allowed in accordance with the
provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations :

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission
at the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, subject to prudence
check :

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the Licensee to any party
for failure to meet any Standards of Performance or for damages, as a consequence of the
orders of the Commission, Courts, Consumer Grievance Redressal Forum, and Ombudsman,
etc., shall not be allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue Requirement :

Provided also that the Distribution Licensee shall maintain separate details of such
penalties and compensation paid or payable by the Licensee, if any, and shall submit them to
the Commission alongwith its Petition.

78.2 The Tariff for retail supply by the Distribution Licensee shall be determined by
the Commission on the basis of a Petition for determination of Tariff filed by the Distribution
Licensee in accordance with Part B of these Regulations :

Provided that the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Distribution Licensee shall
be allocated or apportioned between the Distribution Wires Business and Retail Supply
Business in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 68 :

Provided further that the Tariff for retail supply may comprise any combination of fixed/
demand charges, energy charges, and any other charges, for the purpose of recovery from the
consumers, as may be stipulated by the Commission :
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Provided also that the Commission may determine the area-wise Tariff for Distribution
Licensee based on the performance parameters as may be stipulated by the Commission :

Provided also that in case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be
determined by the Commission till the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, the
Commission may determine the ceiling Tariff for retail supply that may be charged by such
Distribution Licensee till such time as considered appropriate by the Commission.

78.3 The Tariff for retail supply by the Distribution Licensee shall continue to be billed
at the Tariff approved by the Commission and applicable as on March 31st, 2016 for the
period starting from April 1st, 2016 till approval of Tariff for retail supply by the Commission
in accordance with these Regulations.

78.4 The Distribution Licensee may offer a rebate to the consumers on the Tariff and
charges determined by the Commission :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit details of such rebates to the
Commission every quarter, in the manner and format, as stipulated by the Commission :

Provided further that the impact of such rebates on the Distribution Licensee shall be
borne entirely by the Distribution Licensee and the impact of such rebate shall not be passed
on to the consumers, in any form :

Provided also that such rebates shall not be offered selectively to any consumer/s, and
shall have to be offered to the entire consumer category/sub-category/consumption slab in a
non-discriminatory manner.

79. Sales forecast—

79.1 The Distribution Licensee shall submit a month-wise forecast of the expected sales
of electricity to each Tariff category/sub-category and to each Tariff slab within such Tariff
category/sub-category to the Commission for approval alongwith the Multi-Year Tariff Petition,
as specified in these Regulations :

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit relevant details regarding category-
wise sales separately for each Distribution Franchisee area within its Licence area, as well
as the aggregated category-wise sales in its Licence area.

79.2 The sales forecast shall be consistent with the load forecast prepared as part of
the power procurement plan under Part C of these Regulations and shall be based on past
data and reasonable assumptions regarding the future :

Provided that where the Commission has stipulated a methodology for forecasting sales
to any particular Tariff category, the Distribution Licensee shall incorporate such methodology
in developing the sales forecast for such Tariff category.

80. Capital Investment Plan—

80.1 The Distribution Licensee shall submit a detailed Capital Investment Plan,
financing plan and physical targets for each Year of the Control Period for meeting the
requirement of growth in number of consumers, reduction in distribution losses, metering,
etc., to the Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-Year Tariff Petition for the entire
Control Period.

80.2 The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments
and shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. One Crore or such
other amount as may be stipulated by the Commission and shall be in such form as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time.

80.3 The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars
and documents as may be required showing the need for the proposed investments, alternatives
considered, cost-benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing on the Tariff for
retail supply of electricity.

80.4 The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan alongwith the Multi-
Year Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the
Distribution Licensee taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure
and estimated impact on the Tariff for retail supply of electricity.

T IR sh-C0-%
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80.5 The Distribution Licensee shall submit, alongwith the Petition for determination
of the Tariff for retail supply of electricity, or alongwith the Petition for Mid-term Performance
Review, as the case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects,
together with such other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may
require to assess such progress.

81. Operation and Maintenance Expenses—

81.1 The Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Retail Supply Business shall be
computed in accordance with this Regulation.

81.2 The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the
average of the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the
share of efficiency gains/losses, for the three years ending March 31st, 2015, excluding abnormal
Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the Commission.

81.3 The average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be considered as
Operation and Maintenance expenses for the year ended March 31st, 2014, and shall be
escalated at the escalation rate of 5.72% to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses
for the base year commencing April 1st, 2015.

81.4 The O and M expenses for each subsequent year shall be determined by escalating
the base expenses determined above for FY 2015-16, at the inflation factor considering 60%
weightage for the actual point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per
Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India in the previous year and 40% weightage
for the actual Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau,
Government of India in the previous year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1%, to arrive
at permissible O and M expenses for each year of the Control Period :

Provided that a different efficiency factor may be stipulated by the Commission from
time to time :

Provided further that at the time of Truing-up the O and M expenses for the different
years during the Control Period, the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for the actual
point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index Numbers as per Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India in the concerned year and 40% weightage for the actual Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers (all India) as per Labour Bureau, Government of India in
the concerned year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or any other value as may be
stipulated by the Commission from time to time, shall be considered.

81.5 In case of a Deemed Distribution Licensee whose tariff is yet to be determined by
the Commission till the date of coming into effect of these Regulations, the Commission may
determine the O and M expenses on case to case basis.

82. Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts—
The Commission may allow a provision for bad and doubtful debts upto 1.5 % of the amount

shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Sale of Electricity in the audited accounts of
the Distribution Licensee for that Year:

Provided that the Commission, in its MYT Order, shall provisionally approve provision
for bad and doubtful debts for each Year of the Control Period, based on the actual provision
for bad and doubtful debts made by the Distribution Licensee in the latest Audited Accounts
available for the Petitioner, as allowed by the Commission:

Provided further that such provision allowed by the Commission for any Year shall not
exceed the actual provision for bad and doubtful debts made by the Distribution Licensee in
the audited accounts of that Year, duly allocated to the Retail Supply Business, excluding
the provision made by the Distribution Licensee for unbilled revenue at the end of the Year:

Provided also that in the Year when the cumulative provisioning for bad and doubtful
debts allowed by the Commission, duly allocated for the Retail Supply Business exceeds five
per cent of the amount shown as Trade Receivables or Receivables from Sale of Electricity in
the audited accounts of the Distribution Licensee, no such appropriation shall be allowed,
which would have the effect of increasing the cumulative provisioning beyond the said
maximum :
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Provided also that the actual amount of bad and doubtful debts written off by the Distribution
Licensee shall be adjusted by the Distribution Licensee against the accumulated provision for
bad and doubtful debts and shall not be allowed separately as an expense in its Aggregate Revenue
Requirement.

83. Non-Tariff Income—

83.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income relating to the Retail Supply Business as approved
by the Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by the Distribution Licensee:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall submit details of its forecast of Non-Tariff
income to the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

83.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include :(—
(a)Income from rent of land or buildings ;
(b)Income from sale of scrap ;
(¢) Income from investments ;
(d)Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors ;
(e) Income from rental from staff quarters ;
() Income from rental from contractors ;
(g)Income from hire charges from contactors and others ;
(h)Supervision charges for capital works ;

(i) Income from consumer charges levied in accordance with Schedule of Charges
approved by the Commission ;

(/) Income from recovery against theft and/or pilferage of electricity ;
(k) Income from advertisements ;
(I) Income from sale of tender documents ;
m)Any other Non-Tariff Income:
Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity

corresponding to the regulated Business of the Retail Supply Business shall not be included
in Non-Tariff Income.

84. Income from Other Business—

Where the Retail Supply Business of the Distribution Licensee has engaged in any Other
Business under section 51 of the Act for optimum utilisation of its assets, an amount equal to
two-thirds of the revenues from such Other Business after deduction of all direct and indirect
costs attributed to such Other Business shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement in calculating the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by the Distribution Licensee:

Provided that the Distribution Licensee shall follow a reasonable basis for allocation of
all joint and common costs between the Retail Supply Business and the Other Business and
shall submit the Allocation Statement, duly certified by the Statutory Auditor of the Company,
to the Commission along with its Petition for determination of Tariff:

Provided further that where the sum total of the direct and indirect costs of such Other
Business exceeds the revenue from such Other Business, no amount shall be allowed to be
added to the Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the Retail Supply Business on account of
such Other Business.

85. Receipts on account of Cross-Subsidy Surcharge—

The amount received by the Distribution Licensee by way of Cross-Subsidy Surcharge, as
approved by the Commission in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission governing
Distribution Open Access, shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in
determining the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by such Distribution Licensee.

T @R h-Co-RR
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86. Receipts on account of Additional Surcharge—

The amount received by the Distribution Licensee by way of Additional Surcharge, as
approved by the Commission in accordance with the Regulations of the Commission governing
Distribution Open Access, shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement for
determining the Tariff for retail supply of electricity by such Distribution Licensee.

87. Distribution Losses—

The power purchase requirement of the Distribution Licensee at the Transmission-
Distribution interface point, shall be computed by grossing up the sales with the distribution
losses approved by the Commission :

Provided that the Commission may stipulate the target distribution losses in accordance
with Regulation 9 as part of the Order on the Multi-Year Tariff Petition :

Provided further that the Distribution Licensee shall submit the details of areawise
distribution losses for the relevant years, in accordance with the formats prescribed by the
Commission :

Provided also that the areawise distribution losses shall separately indicate the distribution
losses in each Distribution Franchisee area within its Licence area, for the relevant years.

88. Determination of Retail Supply Tariff—

88.1 The Commission may categorize consumers on the basis of their load factor, power
factor, voltage, total consumption of electricity during any specified period or the time at
which the supply is required or the geographical position of any area, the nature of supply
and the purpose for which the supply is required.

88.2 The retail supply tariff for different consumer categories shall be determined on
the basis of the Average Cost of Supply, computed as the ratio of the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement of the Distribution Licensee for the Year determined in accordance with
Regulation 78, and including unrecovered revenue gaps of previous years to the extent proposed
to be recovered, to the total sales of the Distribution Licensee for the respective Year.

88.3 The Commission shall endeavour to gradually reduce the cross-subsidy between
consumer categories with respect to the Average Cost of Supply in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

88.4 While determining the tariff, the Commission shall also keep in view the cost of
supply at different voltage levels and the need to minimise tariff shock to consumers.

PART I : FEES AND CHARGES FOR MSLDC
89. Applicability—

The Regulations contained in this Part shall apply in determining the Fees and Charges to
be levied by the MSLDC after April 1st, 2016.

90. Capital Investment Plan—

90.1 The MSLDC shall submit a detailed capital investment plan, financing plan and
physical targets for each Year of the Control Period based on the operational requirements
prescribed by the Commission and recommendations of various Committees constituted for
looking into matters related to strengthening and ring fencing of the State Load Despatch
Centres by the Ministry of Power, Government of India or any such other statutory authorities,
to the Commission for approval, as a part of the Multi-Year Aggregate Revenue Requirement
for the entire Control Period.

90.2 The Capital Investment Plan shall be a least cost plan for undertaking investments
and shall cover all capital expenditure projects of a value exceeding Rs. One crore or any
other limit as may be stipulated by the Commission from time to time and shall be in such
form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

90.3 The Capital Investment Plan shall be accompanied by such information, particulars
and documents as may be required showing the need for the proposed investments, alternatives
considered, cost/benefit analysis and other aspects that may have a bearing on the MSLDC
Fees and Charges.
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90.4 The Commission shall consider the Capital Investment Plan along with the Multi-
Year Aggregate Revenue Requirement for the entire Control Period submitted by the MSLDC
taking into consideration the prudence of the proposed expenditure and estimated impact
on MSLDC Fees and Charges.

90.5 The MSLDC shall submit, along with the Petition for determination of Aggregate
Revenue Requirement or along with the Petition for Mid-term Performance Review, as the
case may be, details showing the progress of capital expenditure projects, together with such
other information, particulars or documents as the Commission may require to assess such
progress.

91. LDC Development Fund—

The Commission may permit MSLDC to create and maintain a separate development fund
for such purposes and from such sources of income, as the Commission may consider appropriate,
on a Petition filed by MSLDC.

92. Annual Fixed Charges for MSLDC—

The Annual Fixed Charges to be levied by the MSLDC shall provide for the recovery of the
Aggregate Revenue Requirement of the MSLDC for the respective Year of the Control Period,
as reduced by the amount of Non-Tariff Income as approved by the Commission and comprising
the following :—

(a) Operation and Maintenance expenses ;

(b) Regional Load Despatch Centre (RLDC) Fees and Western Region Power Committee
(WRPC) Charges ;

(c) Depreciation ;

(d) Interest on Loan Capital ;

(e) Interest on Working Capital ;

(f) Return on Equity Capital ;

(g) Reactive Energy Charges paid to Generators/TSUs ;
(h) Income Tax ;

minus

() Income from Open Access charges ;

() Income from Reactive Energy Charges ;

(k) Non-Tariff income :

Provided that Depreciation, Interest on Loan, and Return on Equity for the MSLDC
shall be allowed in accordance with the provisions specified in Part D of these Regulations:

Provided further that prior period income/expenses shall be allowed by the Commission
at the time of truing up based on audited accounts, on a case to case basis, subject to prudence
check :

Provided also that all penalties and compensation payable by the MSLDC to any party
for failure to meet its obligations or for damages, as a consequence of the orders of the
Commission and Courts shall not be allowed to be recovered through the Aggregate Revenue
Requirement :

Provided also that the MSLDC shall maintain separate details of such penalties and
compensation paid or payable by the MSLDC, if any, and shall submit the same to the
Commission along with the Petitions to be submitted under these Regulations.

93. Operation and Maintenance Expenses—

93.1 The Operation and Maintenance expenses for the MSLDC shall be computed in
accordance with this Regulation.

93.2 The Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be derived on the basis of the
average of the Trued-up Operation and Maintenance expenses after adding/deducting the
share of efficiency gains/losses, for the three Years ending March 31st, 2015, excluding
abnormal Operation and Maintenance expenses, if any, subject to prudence check by the
Commission.
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93.3 The average of such Operation and Maintenance expenses shall be considered as
Operation and Maintenance expenses for the Year ended March 31st, 2014, and shall be
escalated at the escalation rate of 5.72% to arrive at the Operation and Maintenance expenses
for the base Year commencing April 1st, 2015.

93.4 The O and M expenses for each subsequent Year shall be determined by escalating
the base expenses determined above for FY 2015-16, at the inflation factor considering 60%
weightage for the actual point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per
Office of Economic Advisor of Government of India in the previous Year and 40% weightage
for the actual Consumer Price Index for Industrial Workers as per Labour Bureau, Government
of India in the previous Year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1%, to arrive at permissible
O and M expenses for each Year of the Control Period :

Provided that a different efficiency factor may be stipulated by the Commission from
time to time :

Provided further that at the time of Truing-up the O and M expenses for the different
Years during the Control Period, the inflation factor considering 60% weightage for the actual
point to point inflation over Wholesale Price Index numbers as per Office of Economic Advisor
of Government of India in the concerned Year and 40% weightage for the actual Consumer
Price Index for Industrial Workers as per Labour Bureau, Government of India in the
concerned Year, as reduced by an efficiency factor of 1% or any other value as may be stipulated
by the Commission from time to time, shall be considered.

94. RLDC Fees and WRPC Charges—

94.1 The RLDC Fees and Charges payable by the MSLDC in accordance with the relevant
Orders issued by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission from time to time shall be
allowed to be recovered by the MSLDC through the Fees and Charges as approved by the
Commission.

94.2 The WRPC Charges payable to the WRPC’s Secretariat shall be allowed to be
recovered by the MSLDC through the Fees and Charges as approved by the Commission.

94.3 The MSLDC shall have to produce documentary proof towards payment of such
Charges at the time of Mid-Term Review or Truing up :

Provided that any variation between the approved RLDC Fees and Charges and WRPC
Charges and that actually paid by the MSLDC shall be considered during the true-up as per
audited accounts, subject to prudence check and any other factor considered appropriate by
the Commission.

95. Non-Tariff Income—

95.1 The amount of Non-Tariff Income relating to the MSLDC as approved by the
Commission shall be deducted from the Aggregate Revenue Requirement in determining the
Fees and Charges of the MSLDC :

Provided that the MSLDC shall submit full details of its forecast of Non-Tariff Income to
the Commission in such form as may be stipulated by the Commission.

95.2 The Non-Tariff Income shall include :(—
(@) Income from sale of scrap ;
(b) Income from investments ;
(c) Interest income on advances to suppliers/contractors ;
(d) Income from rental from staff quarters ;
(e) Income from sale of tender documents ;
(f) Any other Non-Tariff Income :

Provided that the interest earned from investments made out of Return on Equity of the
MSLDC shall not be included in Non-Tariff Income.
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96. Sharing of MSLDC Charges—

96.1 The MSLDC Charges payable by the Transmission System Users shall be computed
in accordance with the following formula :—

AFC(uw),, = AFC, X ([Base TCR(uw)], / el [Base TCR(u)] )

Where,

AFC(uw),, MSLDC Charges to be shared by the Beneficiary (u) for the Yearly period (t);

AFC(t) = Total MSLDC Charges to be shared by the Beneficiaries for the Yearly
period (t) ;

Base TCR (u) = [CPD(u), + NCPD(u),| /2

Where,

Base TCR represents the Base Transmission Capacity Right of each Beneficiary (u) for
the Yearly period (t) ;

CPD (uw), = Average Coincident Peak Demand of the Beneficiary (u) for the Yearly
period (t) ;
NCPD (u)(t) = Average Non-coincident Peak Demand of the Beneficiary (u) for the

Yearly period (t) :
Provided that the Allotted Capacity for long-term Open Access Users, excluding partial

long-term Users, shall be considered in lieu of the average monthly CPD and NCPD for
calculating the Base TCR for Open Access consumers.

96.2 The MSLDC Charges approved for the Year shall be equally spread over the 12
months of the Year and MSLDC Charges per MW per month shall be computed by MSLDC in
accordance with the following Formula :(—

Monthly MSLDC Charges (Rs. / MW / Month)

= [AFC(w),, + . [Base TCR(w)] | + 12

(t)

96.3 The Open Access consumers excluding those covered under Regulations 96.1 and
96.3, shall be liable for payment of the MSLDC Charges in proportion to the duration for
which they were granted Open Access during the concerned billing period.

96.4 The Charges to be recovered by MSLDC shall continue to be billed at the Tariff
approved by the Commission and applicable as on March 31st, 2016 for the period starting
from April 1st, 2016 till approval of Charges by the Commission in accordance with these
Regulations.

97. Fees to be Charged by MSLDC—

97.1 The MSLDC shall recover the following Fees as approved by the Commission from
time to time :(—

(a) Registration or Connection Fees per connection from all users connecting to the
Intra-State Transmission System ;

(b) Scheduling Fees per day for intra-State short-term Open Access transactions ;

(c) Re-scheduling Fees for each revision in schedule after the finalization of schedules
by the MSLDC on a day-ahead basis or for non-submission of schedule as per State
Grid Code requirements ;

(d) Short-term Open Access Application Processing Fees ;
(e) Any other Fees approved by the Commission from time to time.

97.2 The revenue from such Fees shall be considered for adjustment of Annual Fixed
Charges in subsequent Years unless the same forms part of the LDC Development Fund.
98. Billing and Payment of Charges—

98.1 The MSLDC shall raise monthly bill for MSLDC Charges on every Long-term

Beneficiary and Medium-Term Open Access consumer on the first working day of the month
for the MSLDC Charges of preceding month.

98.2 The monthly bill for MSLDC Charges shall be payable within thirty days of receipt
of bill by the Long-term Beneficiaries and the Medium Term Open Access consumers.
TN AR F-Co-33
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PART J : GRANT OF SUBSIDIES BY STATE GOVERNMENT
99. Manner of grant of subsidy by State Government—

99.1 If the State Government requires the grant of any subsidy to any consumer or
class of consumers in the Tariff determined by the Commission, the State Government shall
pay in advance the amount to compensate the Distribution Licensee/person affected by the
grant of subsidy in the manner specified in this Regulation, with prior intimation to the
Commission.

99.2 The amount of subsidy agreed to by the State Government shall be provided in the
form of grant by the State Government.

99.3 The subsidy shall be passed on to eligible consumers through credit in their
electricity bills only in proportion to the extent to which the total requirement of the
Distribution Licensee is paid by the State Government :

Provided that in case of shortfall in actual release of subsidy, either because of errors in
estimation or for any other reason, such shortfall, shall be shown clearly in the consumers’
bills and shall be distributed proportionately between the concerned eligible consumers until
such time as it is reduced or eliminated.

99.4  The Distribution Licensee shall clearly indicate the following details in the
consumers’ bills :

(a) the Tariff determined by the Commission ;
(b) the amount of State Government subsidy and the rate and period thereof ;

(c) the net amount payable.
PART K : MISCELLANEOUS
100. Issue of Practice Directions—

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Commission may, from time to time, issue Practice
Directions in regard to implementation of these Regulations.

101. Power to amend—

The Commission may, at any time, vary, alter, modify or amend any provisions of these
Regulations.

102. Power to remove difficulties—

If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of these Regulations, the Commission
may, by general or specific order, make such provisions not inconsistent with the provisions of
the Act, as may appear to be necessary for removing the difficulty.

Annexure I : DEPRECIATION SCHEDULE

Description of Assets Depreciation Rate
(Straight line
method)
(D (2)
A. Land owned under full title —
B. Land held under lease
(a) for investment in the land 3.34%
(b) for cost of clearing the site 3.34%
(¢) Land for reservoir in case of Hydro Generating Station 3.34%
C. Assets Purchased New :
(a) Plant and machinery in Generating Stations including plant
foundations
(1) Hydro-electric 5.28%
(it) Steam electric 5.28%

NHRS and Waste Heat Recovery Boilers /Plants
(i1i) Diesel-electric and gas plant 5.28%
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(1)

(2)

®)
(c)

(d)

(e)

%
@)

(h)

@)

)
(k)
)]

(m)

Cooling towers and circulating water systems
Hydraulic works forming part of Hydro-electric systems including :—

(i) Dams, Spillways, weirs, canals, reinforced concrete Flumes and
siphons

(i1) Reinforced concrete pipelines and surge tanks, steel pipelines,

sluice gates, steel surge (tanks) hydraulic control valves and other

hydraulic works
Building and civil engineering works of permanent character :—
(i) Offices and showrooms
(ii) Containing thermo-electric generating plant
(iti) Containing hydro-electric generating plant
(iv) Temporary erection such as wooden structures
(v) Roads other than kutcha roads
(vi) Others

Transformers, transformer (Kiosk) sub-Station equipment and other
fixed apparatus (including plant foundations) :—

(1) Transformers (including foundations) having a rating of 100 kilo
volt amperes and over

(iz) Others
Switchgear including cable connections
Lightning arrestors
(i) Station type
(i1) Pole type
(iii) Synchronous condensor
Batteries
() Underground Cable including joint boxes and disconnected boxes
(i) Cable duct system
Overhead lines including supports :

() Lines on fabricated steel operating at nominal voltages higher
than 66 kV

(iz) Lines on steel supports operating at nominal voltages higher than

13.2 kilovolts but not exceeding 66 kilovolts

(i11) Lines on steel or reinforced concrete supports
(iv) Lines on treated wood supports
Meters
Self propelled vehicles
Air conditioning plants :

(i) Static

(it) Portable

(i) Office furniture and fittings

(it) Office equipments
(i1i) Internal wiring including fittings and apparatus
(iv) Street light fittings

5.28%

5.28%

5.28%

3.34%
3.34%
3.34%
100%

3.34%
3.34%

5.28%
5.28%
5.28%

5.28%
5.28%
5.28%
5.28%
5.28%
5.28%

5.28%

5.28%
5.28%
5.28%
5.28%
9.50%

5.28%
9.50%

6.33%
6.33%
6.33%
5.28%

T AR h-C0-333
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(D (2)
(n) Apparatus let on hire :

(i) Other than motors 9.50%
(ii) Motors 6.33%
(o) Communication equipment :
() Radio and high frequency carrier system 6.33%
(i1) Telephone lines and telephones 6.33%
(i17) Fibre Optic 6.33%
(p) LT. equipments 15.00%
(@) Software 30.00%
(r) Any other assets not covered above 5.28%

Annexure II : Procedure for calculation of Transmission System Availability for a
Month—

1. Transmission system availability for a calendar month shall be computed by the
respective Transmission Licensee, and certified by the MSLDC, separately for each AC and
HVDC transmission system. For the purpose of calculation of Transmission System
Availability :

(1) AC transmission lines : Each circuit of AC transmission line shall be considered as

one element.

(i1) Inter-Connecting Transformers (ICTs) : Each ICT bank (three single phase

transformer together) shall form one element.

(ii1) Static VAR Compensator (SVC) : SVC along with SVC transformer shall form one
element. However, 50% credit to inductive and 50% to capacitive rating shall be
given.

(iv) Bus Reactors/Switchable line reactors: Each Bus Reactors /Switchable line reactors

shall be considered as one element.

(v) HVDC Bi-pole links : Each pole of HVDC link along with associated equipment at
both ends shall be considered as one element.

(vi) HVDC back-to-back Station : Each block of HVDC back-to-back Station shall be
considered as one element. If associated AC line (necessary for transfer of inter-
regional power through HVDC back-to-back Station) is not available, the HVDC
back-to-back Station block shall also be considered as unavailable.

2. The Availability of AC and HVDC portion of Transmission system shall be computed
as under :(—

% Availability for AC system

0XAVo+pXAVp+qXAVq+rXAVr
= X 100
oO+p+q+r

% Availability for HVDC system

s X AVs + t X AVt
= X 100

s+t
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Where
) =  Total number of AC lines ;
AVo = Availability of o number of AC lines ;
P =  Total number of bus reactors/switchable line reactors ;
AVp = Availability of p number of bus reactors/switchable line reactors ;
q = Total number of ICTs ;
AVq = Availability of g number of ICTs ;
r = Total number of SVCs ;
AVr = Availability of r number of SVCs ;
S =  Total number of HVDC poles ;
AVs = Availability of s number of HVDC poles ;
t = Total number of HVDC back-to-back Station blocks ;

AVt = Availability of t number of HVDC back-to-back Station blocks.
3. The weightage factor for each category of transmission element shall be as under :—

(a) For each circuit of AC line — Surge Impedance Loading (SIL) for Uncompensated
line multiplied by ckt-km.

SIL rating for various voltage levels and conductor configurations is given in Appendix-I.
However, for the voltage levels and/or conductor configurations not listed in Appendix-I,
appropriate SIL based on technical considerations may be used for availability calculation
under intimation to long-term transmission customers/DICs.

For compensated AC line, SIL shall be as certified by the Maharashtra State Power
Committee (MSPC) Secretariat considering the compensation on the line.

For shunt compensated line, the reduced value of SIL shall be taken in accordance with
the location of the reactor. Similarly, in case of the lines with series compensation, the higher
SIL shall be taken as per the percentage of compensation.

(b) For each HVDC pole- The rated MW capacity x ckt-km ;

(¢) For each ICT bank — The rated MVA capacity ;

(d) For SVC- The rated MVAR capacity (inductive and capacitive) ;

(e) For Bus Reactor/switchable line reactors — The rated MVAR capacity ;

(f) For HVDC back-to-back Station connecting two Regional grids- Rated MW capacity
of each block.

4. The availability for each category of transmission element shall be computed based on

the weightage factor, total hours under consideration and non-available hours for each element of
that category. The formulae for calculation of Availability of each category of the transmission
elements are as per Appendix-II.

5. The transmission elements under outage due to following reasons shall be deemed to be

available :—

(1) Shut down availed for maintenance or construction of elements of another transmission
scheme. If the other transmission scheme belongs to the Transmission Licensee, the MSLDC
may restrict the deemed availability period to that considered reasonable for the work
involved.

(11) Switching off of a transmission line to restrict over voltage and manual tripping of
switched reactors as per the directions of MSLDC.

6. Outage time of transmission elements for the following contingencies shall be excluded

from the total time of the element under period of consideration :

(i) Outage of elements due to acts of God and force majeure events beyond the control of
the Transmission Licensee. However, onus of satisfying the MSLDC that element outage was
due to aforesaid events and not due to design failure shall rest with the Transmission Licensee.
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A reasonable restoration time for the element shall be considered and any additional time
taken by the Transmission Licensee for restoration of the element beyond the reasonable
time shall be treated as outage time attributable to the Transmission Licensee. Circuits
restored through ERS (Emergency Restoration System) shall be considered as available.

(i1) Outage caused by grid incident/disturbance not attributable to the Transmission
Licensee, e.g., faults in substation or bays owned by other agency causing outage of the
Transmission Licensee’s elements, and tripping of lines, ICTs, HVDC, etc. due to grid
disturbance. However, if the element is not restored on receipt of direction from RLDC while
normalizing the system following grid incident/disturbance within reasonable time, the
element will be considered not available for the period of outage after issuance of RLDC’s
direction for restoration.

Appendix-I
SURGE IMPEDANCE LOADING (SIL) OF AC LINES
Sr. No. Line voltage(kV) Conductor Configuration SIL(MW)
1. 765 Quad Bersimis 2250
2. 400 Quad Bersimis 691
3. 400 Twin Moose 515
4. 400 Twin AAAC 425
5. 400 Quad Zebra 647
6. 400 Quad AAAC 646
7. 400 Triple Snowbird 605
8. 400 ACKC(500/26) 556
9. 400 Twin ACAR 557
10. 220 Twin Zebra 175
11. 220 Single Zebra 132
12. 132 Single Panther 50
13. 66 Single Dog 10
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Appendix-II

FORMULAE FOR CALCULATION OF AVAILABILITY OF EACH CATEGORY OF
TRANSMISSION ELEMENTS

AV (Availability of o no. of AC lines) =3 M

r"_

s

AVs(Availability of s no. of HVDC pole) =% Wi(Tj -TNAJj)

Fl T j=1
q
AV (Availability of g no. of ICTs) =3 WE(TEK - Tyak) 2Wik
K=1 Tk k=1
r r
AV (Availability of rno. of SVCs) =X 0.5W(T-Tyl) +2 0.5 Wel(Tel — ach)
=1 Ty =1 Tel
r r
Y 05W +Y 0.5 Wl —‘
=1 =1

P P
AVp(Availability of p no. of Switched= ¥ Wan(Tm-Tuyum) / ¥ Wm

Bus reactors) m=l  Tm m=1

| t

AVt (Availability of t no. of HVDC = X Wn(Tn-Tyan) > Wn

Back-to-back Blocks) n=1 Tn n=1
Where Wi = Weightage factor for i transmission line
Wi = Weightage factor for j" HVDC pole

Wik = Weightage factor for k" ICT
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Wil & Wil = Weightage factors for inductive & capacitive operation
of I" SVC
Wm = Weightage factor for m™ bus reactor
Wn = Weightage factor for n" HVDC back to back block.
Ti, Tj, Tk, Ti, Tel, = The total hours of i" AC line,j" HVDC pole, k" ICT, 1" SVC
Tm&Tn (Inductive Operation), " sy (Capacitive {)peralimu.m”’ Switched

Bus Reactor &n" HVDC back-to-back block during the period under
consideration (excluding time period for outages not attributable to

Transmission Licensee for reasons given in Para 6 of the procedure)

Trai Tuad . Tuak= The nen-availability hours (excluding the time period for Tral.

Tract, Tuam, outages not attributable to transmission Licensee taken as Tyan,
deemed availability as per Para 5 of the procedure) for i" AC
line, , j"HVDC pole, X" ICT, 1" SVC (Inductive Operation), "
SVC (Capacitive Operation), m" Switched Bus Reactor and
n"HVDC back-to-back block.

ASHWANI KUMAR,
Mumbai, Secretary,
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